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HIGHLIGHTS

FINANCIAL

REVENUE
M)
[ 2015 1822 |

PUBLISHING REVENUE
($M)

[ 2015 145.4 |

ADJUSTED? PUBLISHING
OPERATING PROFIT!

($M)
[ 2015 185 |

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR
THE YEAR®

($M)

2015% 85

ADJUSTED? EARNINGS
PER SHARE (EXCLUDING
BCOKS & GIFTS DIRECT)
(CENTS)

2015 46 0

BASIC (LOSS)/EARNINGS
PER SHARE
(CENTS)

20153 413

includes the contribution from acquired businesses in 2015 ang 2016 and a reduced amortisation charge in 2016 arising from the review

of useful hves of our titles, providing consistency acress all imprints in the portfoho Further details are set out in Note 1 and Note 30

explanation of these alternative performance measures
* Restated for an error in our Books & Gifts Direct business with respect to the valuation of stock in transit at 31 Decemnber 2015 and prior
pernods Further details are set out in Note 1

Adjusted measures are stated before amortisation of acquired intangible assets and other exceptronal items See Note 32 for further

OPERATIONAL

Resilient performance in publishing business;
revenue up 6%, operating profit up 17%.

Children’s publishing revenues up 34% with both
organic and acquisitive growth.

Foreign rights revenues up 8% despite currency
headwinds in certain markets.

Positive contribution from acquired businesses in
2016, Harvard Common Press and becker&mayer.

Extended value of backlist confirmed by review
of useful economic lives of titles.

Group refocused on core publishing portfolio
during the course of 2017 with new organisational
and financial reporting structure.

Resignation of Group Chief Financial Officer
Michael Connole.

IOINVYNHIAOD
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Strateqic Report

QUARTO AT A GLANCE

We are the leading global illustrated non-fiction
book publisher. We create and own long-lasting
content to make and sell great books that
entertain, educate and enrich the lives of adults
and children around the world.

400+

EMPLOYEES

48

IMPRINTS AND BUSINESSES

10,000

BOOKS IN QUR CATALOGUE

o8%

OF ANNUAL SALES
FROM BACKLIST

40

YEARS
FOUNDED IN 1976

$37M

ANNUAL INTELLECTUAL
PROPERTY INVESTMENT

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

ORGANIC ACQUISITION OPERATING INTELLECTUAL DISTRIBUTION
GROWTH GROWTH MODEL PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT
EFFICIENCIES INVESTMENT

® Read more on pages 16-17
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EIGHT MAIN PUBLISHING CATEGORIES

Do what you love
and make
it happen.

Quality matters
N everything
we do.

BOOKS ON BODY, MIND, BOOKS ON INTERIORS,
FOC?IS)EE% (II))II\Q,INK DBI)E%IC()BT\IS /C'-\)FZJT SPIRIT, PARENTING AND ARCHITECTURE, DIY,

AND CR'AFT RELATIONSHIPS PETS AND GARDENING
o
Q
<
m
A
z
2
BOOKS ON BOOKS ON FUN & IMAGINATIVE STATIONERY, KITS, 9

CARS, TRAINS, BIOGRAPHY, BOOKS AND KITS CALENDARS AND MORE

BOATS, MOTORCYCLES TRAVEL, HISTORY, FOR CHILDREN OF
AND PLANES SPACE AND MORE ALL AGES
SIX VALUES
n
£
BE BE BE z
ACCOUNTABLE CONSISTENT CURIOUS g
Take responsibility Be clear, Try things. L';
and do what concise and fail well, J—>|
yOou $ay. clear-headed do it guickly o
X
m
z
—
wy
BE BE BE
PURPGSEFUL EXCELLENT COLLABORATIVE

Use ‘'we’ and bring
the best out In
each other.
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OUR IMPRINTS
AND PHILOSOPHY

Our imprints make up a diversified portfolio that strengthens
with each addition. They are supported by a central operational
and financial platform, allowing our creative ecosystem fo
flourish without the distraction of non-core activities.

Suppliers

Experts
Marketing

Mustrators

o

Platform

Freelancers

Foreign
rights sales

Publishing
operations

Board of
Directors

G Partners

h
Customers Authors
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CREATIVITY AT
OUR VERY CORE

In 1976, the founders of Quarto were
the first publishers to make the
economics of illustrated books work,
by having the books co-published
across different markets so that
print runs could be big enough to
reduce costs per unit Quarto was
born from creativity and innovation
and 40 vyears later that is stil 1n our
DNA as we constantly explore new
formats, new content ideas and new
busingss ventures

We have been a global leader in
Hlustrated books ever since Qur size
and scale have changed, but at the
heart of what we do, our mission
has not changed - to make and sell
books that entertan, educate and
enrich the lives of adults and children
around the world That 1s what we are
passionate about.

Many 1ssues that we deal with every
day as a business are very important -
commercial and financial management,
sourcing, print buying, acquisitions
and many others - but the creative
qualty of our content and books will
always be our number one priornty

Ideas are our livehhood and the
Ifeblood of Quarto We succeed or fail
by the ideas we put into our hundreds
of books every year. Big ideas inspire
everyone, they shine a hght on
information that most of us are unable

to see Having the best 1deas for our
imprints and our customers is what will
make us successful

That 1s why our guiding philosophy has
always been - and remains - ‘creative
independence’. Each one of our 48
mprints can publish what they want.
We believe that the autonomy given to
our people ensures that we remain
market-focused and relevant to our
readers and customers Each imprint
has its own identity, 1its own lifecycle,
and caters for different audiences and
rmarkets We work hard to manage our
intellectual property (P} investment
accordingly, consistently and carefully
- one size does not fit all when it comes
to creativity

In order to be creative, you need to be
effective Cur imprints are supported
by a strong central platform that
includes finance, operations, sales,
marketing and foreign nghts sales
Process will never trump passion, but
it can enable creativity when used
effectively, By removing distractions -
sharing common Infrastructure and
support networks, designing efficient
back office tools and processes, and
other things that can be managed
efficiently at a central level - it frees up
time and space for our pecple to be
more creative, which 1s what Quarto 1s
all about,

JONVYNHIADD
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Strategic Report

A GLOBAL BUSINESS

Quarto is a global Group that has had
a strong international focus ever since
we were founded in 1976.

550+

FOREIGN CO-EDITION
CUSTOMERS

“Our Foreign Rights team achieved

a record performance in 2016 with

$32.5m revenue, an impressive 8%
increase year-on-year.”

Karine Marko
Group Director of Foreign Rights
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“Launching our publishing partnership
with Kalimat Group to publish and distribute
books in Arabic in the Middle East and
North Africa has been a major highlight
as we continually seek to develop alternative
models to distribute our books worldwide.”

David Inman
Managing Director, Quarto Partners

2

INTERNATIONAL
PUBLISHING
PARTNERSHIPS

FONYNHINOS

Guarto Offices
Seattle, USA
California, USA
Minneapolis, USA
Boston, USA
New York, USA
London, UK (x2)
Brighton, UK
Yate, UK

Heng Kong, China
Sydney, Australia

SLNIWILVLS TVIONYNIL

47

FOREIGN LANGUAGE ——
MARKETS
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GROWTH STRATEGY

“Our goal is to become the dominant publisher
of illustrated books worldwide.”

Marcus E. Leaver
Chief Executive

Organic Growth

Growing Guarto organically, either
by bringing more creativity to market,
expanding and developing our
business with existing customers or
by gaining new business with
additional customers, is an integral
part of our strategy to enhance
shareholder value.

Bullding long-term relationships with
our customers. We pride ourselves in
the excellent business relationships we
have bullt over the years, both in our
main US and UK markets but also with
over 550 foreign language co-edition
partners around the world By offering
the best product range, being
knowledgeable about the marketplace,
and by prowviding excellent tevels of
service, we have gained our customers’
trust and confidence.

Acquiring new customers. We are
constantly striving to find new customers
and opening new distribution channels
Bockstores are only one of the many
places you can find our books 1n, we
sell books wherever we believe our
consumers might come across them.
That includes, for nstance, Tractor
Supply, Costco, Urban Qutfitters or
Holland & Barrett, among many cthers

Expanding our offering We strive to
expand our business with all our
customers, either by expanding our
product offering avalable to that
customer, or expanding to parts of their
operations where we might not have
previously been a recognised supplier.

Acquisition Growth

Acquisitive growth is a key strategic
area for the Group. As the market
leader with a global and scalable
platform in what remains a
fragmented industry, the potential
opportunity is significant.

When benchmarking and evaluating
potential acquisition oppeortunities, we
go through an exhaustive due diligence
process and only target those
businesses that meet the specific
parameters that fit our business model
and growth strategy

Quarto has along history of acquisitions
Most recent ones have included small
world creations 1in 2014, lvy Press in
2015, and Harvard Common Press,
Burgess Lea Press and becker&mayer
in 2016. All are already contnbuting
positively to the Group

Over the years, we have developed
a successful model and track record
i antegrating  acquired  businesses
quickly and effectively.

Businesses acquired bring additional
innovation and expertise to Quarto,
Each time we buy a company, the
culture of cur whole Group changes for
the better
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OQUR SIX KEY
ACQUISITION PARAMETERS:

1 4

CATEGORY ENHANCING STEP CHANGERS
Adds new titles to our portfolio Sigrnuficant additions
and expands one of our categories, to the business,
e g Harvard Common Press. e g becker&mayer

2 5 m—

ADDITIONAL EXPERTISE ADJACENCIES
Brings an area or market we Complementary to existing
do not have expertisein, e g portfolio and sales channels,

small world creations, speciahsed such as Book Plus and
in children's 0-3 formats educational products,
eg SmartLab

3 6

COMPETITOR INGESTION DISTRIBUTION ENHANCING
Synergistic consolidation, A business that owns a specific
e g lvy Press, channel to market.

FONVYNHEIADD

“We were initially a little nervous about joining a
bigger company and maybe losing control and our
identity. In reality, it has been a two-way process.
We have benefited from Quarto’s scale, size and
platform, as well as bringing our people and ideas
to the Group. Now we are part of the team.”

Simon Gwynn
Group Publisher, Ivy Press

SLINIWILYLS TVIDNYNIS
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

“Quarto has a clear vision, a clear
strategy for the future and an experienced
Senior Leadership Team.”

Peter Read
Chairman

2016 was my first year as Chairman of
The Quarto Group, following my election
at the Annual Meeting In May 2016
Consistently, | have been impressed by
the quality of the people | have met
within the organisation, at all levels. They
showed restless passion and innovation
last year, whether they had been with
Quarto for a long time or have joined the
Group more recently, including those
who have Jjoined through acquisitions.

Quarto continues to demonstrate the
market value and global demand for
illustrated print books. Since 2012, debt
has been reduced, adusted Group
operating profit and dwidends have
tncreased and strong foundations for
future growth have been put In place In
2016, Quarto showed a resilient
performance In 1ts publishing business,
with revenue growth of 6% and adjusted
operating profit growth of 17%. The
Group achieved its largest publishing
profit ever - agratifying result considering
the uncertain economic environment

Quarto has a clear vision to become
the dominant publisher of illustrated
books worldwide, a clear strategy for
the future and an expernenced Senior
Leadership Team

In the course of 2017, the Group will be
refocused on its core publishing
expertise, following the exit of Books &
Gifts Direct (BGD) in Australia/New
Zealand and Regent Publishing
Services in Hong Kong. The Board has
regularly discussed whether Quarto
was the correct owner of both
businesses. BGD has disappomnted for
a number of years, and whiist Regent
Publshing Services has performed
well since 1t was founded 1n 1985, the
Board believed that Quarto should
focus on what it does best - making
and selling books

Refocused on its publishing activities,
Quarto will be uniquely positioned to
create further shareholder value,
through 1its rich portfolio of content,
the combunation of organic and
acquisitive growth, further distribution
development and added value from
the Group's operational platform

| joined a Board comprising three Non-
Executive Directors and two Executive
Directors, including Chief Executive
Marcus Leaver Our Non-Executive
Directors constructively challenge and
adwise the Executive Directors, contribute

10
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to the development of strategy and
monitor the delivery of the Group's
strategy. Michael Hartiey and Jess Buriey
both bring very different skill sets to the
Board and respectively chair the Audit
Comrmitteeand Remuneration Committee.
Unfortunately, our third Non-Executive
Director, Marte-Louise Windeler, stepped
down at the end of September for health
reasons The Nominations Committee 1s
making good progress In 1ts search for a
new Non-Executive Director and we
hope to provide an update soon

Michael Connole submitted his
resignation as CFCO on 20 March 2017
The Board has commenced an
executive search to 1dentify a suitable
replacement for the rofe Having known
Michael for more than 25 years, | am
particularly sorry to see him leave the
Group but wish him and his farmily weil.

Alongside Chief Executive Marcus
Leaver, Quarto has an expenenced
and international operational Senior
Leadership Team that prowvides solid
strategic direction to the business |
have every confidence in the successful
continued development of the Group
under their leadership,

Additionally, Quarto's solid institutional
ownership structure, following the placing
of approximately 35% of the Company’s
shares with blue chip investors over the
last 18 months, will be a benefit to the
Company as it continues to grow and
dehver its potential over the coming years

The Board 1s pileased to recommend a
final dividend of 987c per share,
making the total dividend for the year
15.0¢ per share, a 3% increase over last
year, giving dividend cover excluding
BGD, based on adjusted earnings per
share of 54 7¢c (2015. 460c) or 36
times (2015. 3 2 times)

On behalf of the Board and all
shareholders, | would like 1o thank all our
people, as well as our giobal ecosystem of
ppliers, for ther continued
nd commitment to Quarto

Peter Refd
Chairman
19 Apnll 2017

n

L

INVESTMENT CASE

Global leader in illustrated publishing
Resihent global book market, especially in
llustrated books Unrivalled footprint and size
Substantial {P with a back catatogue of 10.000
titles and an annual investment of about $35m
Solid expertise and performance in foreign
language rights

Attractive, de-risked business model
Clear focus on enduring IP In the long term.
Market, channel and customer diversity. Not
dependent on immediate best-sellers with close
toc 60% of sales pa from back catalogue.
Co-edition model 1s lower rnisk with high
revenue visibihty.

Growth story and financial strength
Publishing revenues up 26% since 2012 and
publishing adjusted operating profit up 69%
since 2012 Net debt reduced 24% from 2012
to date

Balanced and growing imprint portfolio
Solidity and balance - both geographical
and genre Increasing exposure to children's
bocks, one of the faster growing areas in
publishing, Organic growth supplemented by
acguisitive growth

Global consolidation ptatform
International publishing platform is both flexible
and scalabte. Clear acquisition strategy with
magnitude of posstble opportunities in the short
to medium term Systems and people In place;
acquisition capabilities and track record

FONVNAIAOD

SINIWILVLS IVIONYNIZ
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’'S STATEMENT

“We celebrated our 40th anniversary with
our largest publishing profits ever.”

Marcus E. Leaver
Chief Executive

Overview

We delivered a resihient performance in
our publishing business in 2016 and
celebrated our 40th anniversary with
our largest publishing profits ever. The
hard work and tenacity of every Quarto
employee across the business
particularly carried the Company
through a challenging year.

We exploited the size, scale and reach
we have built in the last five years and
enhanced our business with two
strategic acquisitions that are already
contnbuting posttively to the Group.

In 2017, our exit from both BGD and
Regent Publishing Services will allow
us to focus entirely on our publishing
portfollo We have long beleved
that Quarto, once fully positioned on
what we do best - making and selling
books - has a unmique opportunity in
a fragmented industry to become
the dominant publisher of illustrated
books worldwide

12

Strategic Update

Qur children’s publishing revenues
grew by 34% year-on-year and have
increased by 135% since 2012 Our
Foreign Rights sales team achieved a
record performance with 8% revenue
growth despite foreign currency
fluctuations In certain markets The
extended value of our backlist was
confirmed by the review of the useful
economic hves of our titles As we
continually seek to further expand our
scale and reach across the globe, our
new publishing partnership with
Kalimat Group to publish books In
Arabic 1in the Middle East and North
Africa s also a major highlight

As in any portfolio, some areas of the
business had more success than others
Each of our 48 imprints 15 at a different
stage of matunty and point in its
creative cycle, from young start-ups to
longer-running 1mprints  that might
need new creative injection, and to
businesses at the top of their game.
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SENIOR LEADERSHIP TEAM

Michael Connole
Chief Financial Officer

{Resignation subrmitted
30 March 2017)

Ken Fund
Chief Operating Officer

President and CEQ, Quarto
Publishing Group USA, until
31 December 2016

David Breuer
Chief Creative Officer

Managing Director, Guarto
tnternational Co-Editions,
until 31 December 2016

Karine Marko
Group Director of
Foreign Rights

Sally Dwyer
Group Director
of People

David Inman
Managing Director,
Quarto Partners

Managing Director, Quarto
Publishing Group UK,
until 31 December 2016

Dorothée de Montgolfier
Group Director of
Communications

Anne Crompton
Group Director of Legal
and Business Affairs

FONVNHIAOD

13
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S STATEMENT CONTINUED

“The creativity, tenacity and team
spirit of everyone employed in the business,
coupled with the strategic direction provided
by our experienced Senior Leadership Team,
have been key to our ongoing success.”

The dedication, commitment and
passion of everyone employed in the
business, coupled with the strategic
direction provided by our experienced
Senior Leadership Team, have been key
to our ongoing success In particular,
| would like to recogruse Ken Fund and
David Breuer, recently appointed to
the new global roles of Chief Operating
Officer and Chief Creative Officer,
as well as Karine Marko, Group Director
of Foreign Rights, who have made
significant  contributions to  the
business this year.

| would also like to express our thanks
to Michael Connole, Chief Financial
Officer, who has decided to resign,
Significant changes have been made
to the business over the last 18 months
or 50 and the Group 1s now well placed
as a focused publishing business We
all wish Michael and his family the best
in the future.

Since | took over as Chuef Executive in
late 2012, my aim has been to make
Quarto an even healthier and more
talented company We have become
more profitable in our publishing
business while continuing to invest
more in the qualty of our books and in
our global sales and marketing teams.
We have attracted new, extremely
talented people to cur already excellent
teams We are strategically well placed
N our markets as our direct
relationships with retailers continue to
develop Qur model I1s simple but solid’
the nght People, high qualty and icng-
lasting Product, efficient Processes,
a balanced Portfolio of imprints and a
global, scalable Platform

The clanity of this model has facilitated
the onboarding of acquired businesses
in the last two years and we now have
a tested and solid integration process
In place

Operating Review

Overall, our 2016 performance s a
gratifying result set aganst a more
difficult trading background than we
had anticipated and a tough
comparative given the success of
colounng bocks In 2015. Undeniably,
2016 has been an uncertain and
unpredictable year, economically and
politically, in both our largest domestic
markets While we have fulfilled many
of the business objectives that we set
ourselves, there are others that we
have not met

Our net debt at 31 December 2016 was
$619m (2O15 $59.5m), a result of both
poor trading within BGD and negative
working capital timing movements in
the final quarter. However, due to the
strong underlying performance of the
business, the Board has recommended
an increase In the Company's final
dvidend Working capital and debt
management will remain a key point of
focus in 2017

BGD has disappointed for a number of
years, Including 2016, and the
excepticnal impairment charge of
$14 2m has ympacted our overall 2016
results negatively

14
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The performance of our publishing
operations 15 set out later in this report
Total revenue from  publishing
operations of $154 6m showed a 6%
increase on 2015 ($145 3m) Adjusted
operating profit for these publistung
businesses for 2016 was $21 7m which
was up 17% (2015 $185m) We
reviewed the useful hves of our backhst
of Hustrated book titles during the
year and the pre-publicatton costs for
all our iImprints are now amortised over
three years This review confirms the
fact that, taken across all our illustrated
titles, our backlist continues to sell for
at least three years This has reduced
our amortisation charge for 2016
by $21m

New Organisational and
Reporting Structure

On 1 January 2017, we mplemented
a new organisational structure which
establishes a stronger partnership
between creative, commercial and
financial management within the Group,
while enablng us to respond to
changing market conditions and
acquisitton opportunities with enhanced
agility and purpose

We have moved on from our
geographical business divisions. In line
with  our philosophy of creative
independence, mprints no  longer
report Into a country division but are
run as independent businesses with
creative, commercial and financial
oversight from the centre They are
serviced and supported by our central
and global platform,

As a conseqguence, starting in 2017, we
will no longer report revenue by
publishing divisions, but by the
geography of where transactions take
place, including the US, UK, Rest of the
World and foreign rights.

Outlook

In 2016 we delivered a resilient
performance in our publishing business
through a combination of organic
growth supplemented with two
strategic acquisitions

We were not helped by the political
chimate in our two domestic markets,
nor by the resultant volatility in
currency which resulted n slower
trading wn our traditionally stronger
second half

In the very short term, we feel it
prudent to assume a continuation of
this uncertamty n 2017 and we are
budgeting accordingly Nevertheless,
for the year as a whole, we expect to
show further progress in the business
and redouble our efforts in net debt
management and capital allocation
for growth

Looking forward, the future for Guarto
remains  very exciting. With  the
disposals of both BGD and Regent
Publishing Services in the first half of
2017, we shall be able to focus resolutely
on what we do best - making and
seling books The Group 1s full of
talented entrepreneurs running a
dwverse portfolio of imprints, who
leverage our glebal platform to grow
therr businesses and to create valuable
iP, which we are seling into more
markets, 1n more foreign languages
and through more distribution channels
than we have ever done before

Quarto has a unique opportunity In a
fragmented industry to become the
dominant publisher of illustrated books
worldwide, exploiting the size, scale
and reach we have built in the last five
years In 2017, we shall continue to
pursue that goal.

Lastly, a large thank you to each one of
our employees worldwide They make
Quarto the success that it continues
to be and ther creativity, tenacity
and collaboration, especially, have
carned the Company through a
challenging year.

Marcus E. Leaver
Chief Executive
19 April 2017

15
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL
AND STRATEGY

OUR BUSINESS MODEL

We are the leading global illustrated non-fiction book
publisher. Our mission is to make and sell great books that
entertain, educate and enrich the lives of adults and
children around the world. We make high-quality books
as economically as possible, and we sell these books
as far and wide and for as long as we possibly can.

Our model 1s simple but solid: the right
People, high quahty and iong-lasting
Product, efficient Processes, a
balanced Pertfolio of imprints and
a global, scatable Platform

People

QOur people and talent make Quarto.
Each of our 48 wmprints 1s creatively
independent, publishing what they
believe 1s nght for their customer base
andthe market. Thatistheunderpinning
ethos of Quarto

Product

Each of our imprints has a different
vision for the products they produce
We are proud of the wide variety of
books we publish and our unique, high
quality content

Portfolio

All our imprints make up a diversified
portfolio that strengthens with each
addition, whether organic start-up
or acquisition

Process

Our books are created by many
different people but underpinned by
one financial model.

Platform

All our imprints are sitting on the Quarto
platform of cperations, people, sales
and marketing that we have bullt and
adhering to the financial model through
which we manage our portfolio

Our goal in formally recognising
the ‘Quarto Pentagon’ is to systematise
our business model so that we
enhance our organisational IP, atlow

transmission of the operating model easily

throughout the Group, and support the
transition of new businesses and imprints

as we grow.

16
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QUR STRATEGY

ORGANIC
GROWTH

ACQUISITION
GROWTH

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
INVESTMENT

We are constantlty looking to
grow our publishing revenues
organically, both by expanding
and developing our business
with  existing customers and
by gaiming new business with
additional customers

We also search for businesses
that satisfy key criteria, including
earnings accretive lists, imprints
or businesses that can enhance
the marketing and sales efforts
of existing imprints while at
the same time providing
opportunities to extract further
value as part of The Quarto Group.

Quarto 15 committed to invest
in long-lasting IP In pursuwing
the wvery best i1deas, wnting,
photography, artwork and
design, we am to safeguard
the future revenue streams of
the business.

OPERATING MODEL
EFFICIENCIES

DISTRIBUTION
DEVELOPMENT

Each of our mprnnts and
businesses Is creatively
independent while recewving
support, scale and reach through
the Group’'s global operations,
sales and marketing platform We
leverage our scale to buy print
and freight effectively, as well as
being relentless in 1dentfying
other supply chain efficiencies.

We develop direct physical
distribution reiationships and
partnerships, and are committed
to seling our books wherever
consumers might come across
them - and in multiple markets,
languages and formats.

“Each of our imprints and businesses is creatively
independent while adhering to one financial model
and receiving support, scale and reach from our global
platform, which inciudes operations, sales and foreign
rights sales, marketing, IT, people and legal. We leverage
our scale to buy print and freight effectively, and we are
relentless in identifying other supply chain efficiencies.”

Ken Fund
Chief Operating Officer

17
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2016 PORTFOLIO HIGHLIGHTS

“Quarto’s expertise is in creating great content that stands the
test of time and constantly reinventing long-lasting niches of
interest. Once again, highlights from 2016 show the breadth of
our books across topics, adults and children, backlist and
frontlist, individual titles and successful series.”

David Breuer
Chief Creative Officer

Creative Lettering
and Beyond
Published 2014
$1,388,000

(0.9% publishing revenue

Color Me and Portable Color Me Series
Published 2015

$2,.909.000

1.9% publishing revenue

Art Lab for Kids
Published 2012
%$150,000

01% publishing revenue

101 Dog Tricks
Published 2007
$274,000

0 2% publishing revenue

All New Square Foot
Gardening - 2nd Ed.
Published 2013
$307.000

0 2% publishing revenue

The Book of Home
How-To

Published 2014
$209,000

01% publishing revenue
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1001 Movies (2016 Edition)
First published 2001

$245,000

0.2% pubhshing revenue

Block Wonders
Published 2016
$410,000

0 3% publishing revenue

The Book of Beetles
Published 2014
$203,000

01% publishing revenue

The Bread Lover’s Bread
Machine Cookbook
Published 2000 —
$237.000

0 2% publishing revenue

The KetoDiet
Cookbook

Published 2016
$242,000

Q 2% publishing revenue

Vegan Bowl Attack!
Pubhshed 2016
$189,000

01% publishing revenue

IONVYNHIADD

Build the Dragon and
8uild the Human Body
First published 2013
$690.000

0 4% publishing revenue

SINIWIALYLS IVIONYNIL

Cutest Puppies Ever
Pubhshed 2016
$439,000

0 3% publishing revenue

Secrets of... (Shine a Light)
First published 2013

$1,84 3,000 (nine titles)

1.2% pubhshing revenue
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OUR KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Our strategy is to grow our revenue and margins
by leveraging our size, scale and reach as the
leading global illustrated book publisher, to build
a business with sustainable growth in earnings
per share while also managing our net debt.

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT
BEFCRE DEPRECIATION

PUBLISHING ADJUSTED
OPERATING PROFIT

(EBITDA) ($M)

($M)

| 2015 17.7 | 2015 185

| 20142 170 | 2014 158

[ 20132 159 | [203 143 |

{ 20122 165 | 2012 128

EBITDA 1s used to measure the Publishing adjusted operating profit up

operational performance of the Group

69% since 2012

RETURN ON NET
OPERATING ASSETS
(%)

| 2015'
{2014
[ 20132
[ 20122

134 |
12.0 |
18 |

1.0 |

NET DEBT

(M)

|

[ 2015 595 |

[ 2004 66 0 |
2013 710
2012 81.0

The Board uses this ratio to evaluate
the long-terrn financial health of
the Group. Excluding Books & Gifts
Direct, the return on net operating
assets for 2016 was 141%

Qur net debt has reduced by 24% since
2012 Qur 2016 net debt is a result of
both poor trading within BGD and
negative working capital  bming
movements in the final quarter, and we
will redouble our efforts in net debt
management in 2017

! Restated as per Note 1

2 The 2014 closing balance sheet restatement was all corrected through the 2014 results as it
was impractical to determine the impact on these earlier individual financial years and it 1s
not expected to result iIn a matenal change to these years

' The definbions and additional information in relation to these alternative performance measures
are included in Note 32 to the financial statements
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ADJUSTED DILUTED
EARNINGS PER SHARE

(CENTS)

[ 2015 46.1 |
[ 20142 391}

[ o013z 361 |

[ 20122 416 |

BACKLIST % OF SALES
(%)

The Board uses this ratio to evaluate
the quality of the Company’s earrings

Excluding Books and Gifts Direct, the
adjusted diluted earnings per share for
2016 was 53 5¢ (2015 46 Oo).

Backlist has reduced as a % of sales as
we have invested in new IP

INVENTORY % OF REVENUE
(%)

20142 139
20132 112
[ 20122 126 |

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

DEVELOPMENT SPEND
($M)
R
[ 2015 349 |

[ 2014 335 |

[ 2013 317 |

| 2012 305 |

This 1s @ measure of the cash used up In
inventory as a proportion of revenue

We have increased the IP spend to grow
the publishing portfolio organically
Frontlist sales have grown by 74% In
the perod

PRODUCT EFFICIENCY

2014 116x
[ 2013 1.0Mx |
[ 2012 1.02x |

CHILDREN'S PUBLISHING
REVENUES

—~
Roi]

<

Z

[ 2015 324 |

2013 196
2012185

This 1s the new title sales for any given
year divided by the IP spend of the
previous year, It 1s a leading indicator
of how effective and reliable our
backlhst sales might be

Children’s publishing revenues have
increased by 135% since 2012,

ADNVYNHIAOD
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RISK MANAGEMENT, PRINCIPAL
RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Quarto Group's risk management framework is designed
to identify and assess the likelihood of risks arising, the
conseqguences of them doing so and the actions necessary
in order to mitigate their impact.

The Board has carried out its periodic
assessment of the principal business
risks facing our various businesses
and has updated these risks in 1ts risk
register, which 1s regularly reviewed
The Board continues to monitor these

controls. Detalls of the Group’s financial
rnsk management objectives and
pohcies are set out in Note 22 to the
financial statements The business nisk
review identified the following key risks
that face our businesses

principal risks and associated matenal

MARKET AND FINANCIAL RISKS

Risk

Description

Mitigating factor

Economic
conditions

The Group operates across many of the major
world economies and our revenues and profits
depend on the general state of the economy In
those terntories A downturn caused by a global
recession could reduce consumer discretionary
spending, which might result in a reduction in
profitability and operating cash flow The UK's
exit from the European Union and the US
elections have also caused some uncertainty in
the economic environment.

The Group has adequate facilities with over $90m In
available debt facilibies In addition, in such an event,
the Directors have the ability to take a number of
rmitigating  actions, including the reduction of
discretionary spend on pre-publication costs

Currency

The Group's businesses operate in a number of
different currencies giving rise to a nsk of
exchange loss due to fluctuating exchange
rates.

The Group has hedging and currency swaps In place
We have a natural hedge that mitigates against
currency movements impacting our earnings in that
one of our largest costs, which is print costs, are paid in
US Dollars Borrowings have been taken out in different
currencies to mitigate nsk of currency movements
impacting our net assets

Acquisitions

The Group’'s growth strategy includes

The Group continually reviews acguisition targets and

integration acquisttions  Although the Group has a tested has established processes and procedures with regard
integration model for acquired businesses, to detailed pre-acquisition due dihgence and post-
there 1s a risk that not all of the acquisitions will acquisition integration
be successful.

OPERATIONAL RISKS

Risk Description Mitigating factor

Customer A significant dependency on a small number of The Group has a long-established strategy of

customers, for instance co-edition partners or
retallers, could be problematic If one of them
tned renegotating preferential terms or
stopped doing business with the Group The
falure of a major customer could impact
revenue and profits

diversifying its customer base, resulting in the fact that
no one customer has a significant percentage of the
business Customer relations are well managed with all
Quarto's larger customers to ensure a far trading
relationship Management monitors debts closely and
maintains close relationships with all customers, which
may provide prior warning of likely faillure
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OPERATIONAL RISKS

Risk

Description

Mitigating factor

Supply chain
and raw
materials

The Group uses a number of print suppliers,
many of which are based in Southern China
There 15 a nsk that an interruption In the
avallability of printing services n that area or
the financial fallure of one printer could disrupt
the distribution of new books to customers Any
Increase In costs such as ol, port charges etc.
would also 1mpact shipping costs Any
disruption in supply of paper could fead to an
increase 1n costs and production disruption
There 1s also a reputational risk of using non-
environmental paper

The Group maintains relationships with printers in other
parts of the world and 1s confident that printing couid be
carried cut by an alternative range of printers If supply
from China was interrupted or to mitigate shipping
costs We maintain close relations with our printers,
reducing the risk of a lack of knowledge of any printer
being in financial trouble. The Group worked with our
major printers on a plan to move to sustainable paper
and recently instituted a Forest Stewardship Council
(FSC) paper or Sustainable Forestry Initiative (SFI)
paper policy across all our imprints

Product
safety

Our business 1s faced with increasing safety and
testting requirements on vanous product
components, especially for our Book Plus
preducts The nisk of a product recall due to
children’s safety would have a severe
reputational iImpact on the business

Allcomponents receive safety testing fromindependent
third parties. Management carefully selects suppliers
for components, The Group has twe dedicated
Sourcing and Qualty M™anagers who handle
components sourcing and safety test management

Loss of
intellectual
property

A loss of stored IP through fallure of storage
medium or loss of back-ups would impact our
ability to process reprints and revisions and
could cause a loss of revenue.

We regularly review our storage and back-up routines
and disciplines A new title managerment system for our
Pubhlishers that improves the security of and access to
our IP was rolled out to our US business during the year,
and we anticipate the UK roll ocut to be completed
in 2017

Laws and
regulations

As a creative and [P business, any changes to
copyright laws could have an impact on the
Group's activities and any infringement could
lead to increased costs inconsistent internal
practices for negotiating contracts or cleanng
rights could lead to IP clams

Quarto has recently streamlined and simphfied the
number of legal entities it operates through, and reviewed
the structure of our Legal team, including hiring a new
Group Director for Legal and Business Affairs, This will
ensure that all practices are aligned and consistent across
imprints and geographies within the Group.

Cyber
security

Ltke many organisations, the Group 15 at risk
from cyber-attack This presents a potentially
serious risk of disruption to the production
process and could have a significant impact on
the profitabihty of the business and the securnty
of IP assets

The Group uses firewalls and IT controls to prevent
attack as well as mamntaining offsite back-up of IP
Computernised files of the Group’s books are alse
maintained by printers. We do not store any personal
or credit card data on our transactional website
guartoknows com. We undertook a full review and
upgrade of our IT systems in 2016

People

As In any creative business, the Group 1s heavily
rehant on its people and operates with the
inherent risk of not making the ‘right’ books, or
creativity being uneven year-on-year Faillure to
retain existing talent and attract new talent
could ultimately lead to a fallure to generate
new titles, leading to a drop In revenue

Our portfolio of iImprints and large number of products
spread this risk With the exception of colounng books
in 2015, no single book accounts for more than 10% of
our annual sales Quarto’s Publishers are experienced
and talented, and strive to stay close to publishing
trends and markets The Group also offers competitive
market rate remuneration packages and has been
working on making Quarto an attractive place to work
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

“Operating profit for the Group (excluding BGD)
was $17.7m, an improvement of 22%.”

Michael Connole
Chief Financial Officer

Presentation of Results

The presentation of our results for 2016
shows the results of our Books & Gifts
Direct (BGD) business separately as
we have indicated that we are exiting
this business. BGD did not meet the
criteria to be accounted for as a
discontinued operation at the balance
sheet date. The additional separate
disclosure was considered appropriate
to allow better understanding of the
Group results given the disposal of the
BGD Austrahan business completed
post year end

Note 32 to the financial statements
explains the alternative performance
measures we use to judge the
performance of the Group

Group Results including BGD
Revenue for the year was $188 4m
showing an increase of 3% on the
comparative figure for 2015 of $182.2m
(as restated) The Group's operating
profit of $17m shows a $136m
reduction on the comparative figure
for 2015 of $15 3m (as restated) and
principally  reflects the  $14 2m
exceptional impairment charge relating
to the BGD business referred to above.
The loss before tax for the Group was
$13m (2015, profit before tax of
$12 2m, as restated), also reflecting the
exceptional impairnment charge
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Group Results excluding BGD
The following commentary looks at our
results for 2016 excluding BGD, which
comprises our publishing business and
Regent Publishing Services in Hong
Kong We also completed the disposal
of Regent Publshing Services on
31 March 2017

Revenue for 2016 of $169 1m shows a
6% Increase on the comparative figures
for 2015 of %1601m The Harvard
Common Press and becker&mayer
publshing businesses which we
acquired in the US during 2016, account
for $12 7m of 2016 revenue.

Adjusted operating profit, which 1s a
key measure of how the business is
performing, rose by 19% from %$156m
in 2015 to $18 6mn 2016 This includes
a combined contribution of $2.3m
from the Harvard Common Press and
becker&mayer businesses. it also
includes the benefit of $2.1m relating to
the reduction 1n the amortisation of
our capitalised pre-publication costs

During the year, we undertook a review
of the useful hves of the pre-publication
costs incurred in the development of
illustrated book titles Certain of our
imprints that we had either started up
or acquired in the last few years had
been employing useful lives that were
shorter than three years. We examined
the sales of these 1mprints and
determined that their respective sales
profiles now Justified using a three-
year useful hfe The capitalised pre-
publication costs for all cur illustrated
book titles are now amortised on a
straight hne basis over three years
As stated in Note 1 to the financial
statements, the revisions were
accounted for prospectively as a
change in accounting estimate and as
a result, the amortisation charge of the
Group for the current financial year has
been reduced by $21m

The Quarto International Co-Editions
business had a very good 2016,
recording an adjusted operating profit
of $94m, an increase of 47%. with
ancther strong contribution  from
children's publishing and from lvy
Press, which we acquired 1n March
2015 Quarto Publishing Group USA
also had a good year with adjusted
operating profit of $96m, an increase
of 8% on the 2015 figure of $8 9m As
stated above, 1t benefited from the
contribution of the acquired Harvard
Common Press and becker&mayer
businesses, which helped offset the
reduction 1n the sales of adult art
instruction/colouring books with which
we had particular success in 2015
Quarte Publishing Group UK had a
disappointing vyear with adjusted
operating profit of $2.8m showing a
15% decline on 2015, with one imprint
having a particularly disappointing
year and recording a contribution loss
for the year

Operating profit for the Group
excluding BGD was $177m (2015
$14 5m), an improvement of 22%

Books & Gifts Direct

We completed the disposal of the
Australian operating company, Books
& Gifts Direct Pty Limited (BGD
Australa) on 31 March 2017. The
consideration for the sale of the
company 15 A%$1 and Quarto will also
take an assignment of certain debts
owed by the master franchisees to
BGD Austraha of A%$1.9m (US$14m)
which wil be repayable in monthly
instalments over two years, and are
interest bearing The repayments will
be used to reduce the Group’s bank
debt as they are received Quarto 1s
entitied to receive 10% of the profit
before interest and tax of the business
for the next five years QOur direct sales
business 1n New Zealand, remains for
sale, and we are currently discussing a
potential disposal with a number of
interested parties
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

In the process of finalising the results
of the BGD business for the vear ended
21 December 2016, we uncovered
errors N the cut-off procedures and
accounting for returns n relation to
stock in transit and the related liability
accounts at BGD Australia. The errors
were caused by a fallure in controls
relating to proper cut-off and
reconcihation procedures in respect of
stock In transit and the related
purchase clearing accounts, and
accounting for returns on certain
products. The errors have required the
restatement of the result of BGD for
the year ended 31 December 2015 with
areduction in operating profit of $0 7m
through an increase in cost of sales
This has resulted 1n lower operating
margins for that year It has also
required the restatement and reduction
of retained earnings at 1 January 2015
by $10m Further details are set out In
Note 1 to the financial statements.

The business recorded revenue of
$19 4m for 2016, which dechned by 12%
on the 2015 comparative figure of
$22.1m, indicating the continued weak
economic  environment n both
Australia and New Zealand where the
business has operated

The operating loss for the vyear of
$16 Im (2015 operating profit of $0.8m,
as restated) included excepticnal
impairment charges of $14.2m to write
down the net and other attributable
assets of BGD to reflect ther
recoverable value, The total impairment
charge includes $8 Om relating to the
impairment of the net operating assets
of the business, together with $6.2m
relating to the impairment of goodwill
Further details are set out in Note 3 to
the financial statements

Finance Costs

Finance costs of $31m (2015 $32m)
represent the interest costs on the
Group’s borrowings together with the
amortisation of the debt issuance
costs The decrease in net finance
costs despite higher net debt at
31 December 2016 arose as our interast
margin reduced

Tax

The tax charge for the year of $4 Om
(2015 $3 7m) arises on the loss before
tax as no tax credit has beenrecognised
on the BGD loss before tax for the year
of $161m The effective tax rate for
the Group excluding BGD 15 27.3%
(2015 25.1%). A significant proportion
of the Group’s taxable profit arises in
the US where the federal tax rate is
34%. In the absence of tax reform in
the US, we expect the effective rate to
remain at approximately the current
effective rate

(Loss)/Earnings Per Share

QOur loss per share of 28 5¢ (2015
earnings per share of 41 3¢, as restated)
and our adjusted basic earnings per
share of 5 7¢ (2015 46 2¢, as restated)
are both principally explained by the
exceptional impairment charge of
$14.2m relating to BGD. Our adjusted
basic earmnings per share for the Group
excluding BGD of 54 7¢ shows an
annual Increase of 19% on the
comparative figure for 2015 of 46.0c
and reflects the increase in the profit
before tax. Note 10 to the financial
statements sets out how we calculate
the adjusted earnings per share figures
Qur adjusted dividend cover excluding
BGD was 36 tirnes (2015 3 2 times)

and s calculated using adjusted
earnings per share See Note 32
for detauls.
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Return to Shareholders

The Directors are recommending a
final dividend for the year of 9 87¢ per
share, bringing the total dividend for
the year to 15 Oc per share (2015 14 5¢
per share)

Cash Flow

Cash generated by the operations of
the business amounted to $437m
(2015 $519m) and the reduction on
last year's figure reflects a disappointing
last quarter of 2016 which historically 15
our best quarter for generating cash,
with poor trading within BGD and
negative working capital timing
movements around the year end.

We Invested $372m (2015 $34 9m)
In  pre-publhcation c¢osts using the
cash generated from operations and
the ncrease in our investment n
pre-publication costs reflects the
acquisitions 1n the year and our
continued investrment In new titles we
publsh each year This year’s new titles
become part of cur backhst in the
following year We spent $37m on
acquiring new businesses (2015 $16m)
and $16m on capital expenditure
(2015 $20m) The investment in
pre-publication costs for new titles and
our Investment N acquirng new
businesses are key factors in driving
future revenue growth

Acquisitions

We acquired becker&mayer in August
2016 for a total consideration of $111m.
$2 3m was paid in cash on completion,
with a further $75m payable in loan
notes, of which $25m was pad
In January 2017, with $2 5m payable in
August 2017 and $25m payable
In August 2018 We have also provided
for $1 5m for contingent consideration
arrangements Provisional gocdwill of
$2 3m arose on the acquisition

We also acquired the assets of Harvard
Common Press in February 2017 for a
total consideration of $1 0m, of which
$0.2m was paid 1in cash and $0.8m In
loan notes payable in 2017 Goodwill of
$0 8m arose on the acquisition,

Both acquisitions have been accounted
for under the acquisihon method and
further details are set out In Note 30 to
the financial statements

Net Assets

The Group's net assets of $441m at
31 December 2016 show a reduction
of $93m on the 2015 comparative
figure of $53.4m (as restated), mainly
reflecting the loss for the year, the
dividends of $2.9m paid toshareholders
and deferred tax on certain exchange
gains Included n  our currency
translation reserves,

Indebtedness and Borrowing
Facilities

Qur net debt comprising our bank
borrowings less cash balances has
increased from $595m to $619m
Although net debt did not fall In 2016,
it has reduced by $121m in the last
four vears since 31 December 2012
The continued reduction of cur net
debt remains a key a key objective for
the Group Our bank borrowings at
21 December 2016 were $807m
(2015: $84 6m)

In February 2015, the Group agreed a
$95m multi-currency term loan and
revolving credit facility, which expires
on 30 Apnl 2019 We repaid $5m of the
term faciity n February 2016 and
February 2017

The facihity requwes us to maintain
certain levels of interest cover, leverage
and cash flow in the busmness and
the interest payable on the debt 1s
based on a ratchet whereby we pay
LIBOR plus a margin of between 2.1%
and 2 8% depending on our leverage
ratic We also have a £5m working
capital overdraft facility, which s
renewable annually
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

A direct result of our disappointing
cash generation in the final quarter of
2016 was that we did not pass the
cash flow after debt service (CFADS"
cover covenant test at 31 December
20156, contained within our banking
faciities agreement This does not
constitute a breach of the Group's
banking facilities The agreement
states that If we do not pass a particular
quarter’s cash flow covenant test, it
does not amount to a breach provided
that 1t 1s the first time we have not
passed the test and that we pass the
test at the end of the next quarter The
seasonality of the publishing industry
means there 15 always a degree of
sensitivity around our working capital
movements We have identified
mitigating actions that would mamtain
covenant headroom in such situations
and the Directors are confident that
the Group will comply with all financial
covenants for the foreseeable future.
Please refer to Note 1 and 19 to the
financial statements for further details
relating to our banking covenants

Currency

The Group reports in US Dollars, which
1s the principal functional currency, but
durning 2016 1t also transacted In
Sterling, Euros, Australian Dollars, New
Zealand Dollars and Hong Kong Dcollars.,
We use a currency swap arrangement
to mitigate the fluctuations between
S Dollars and Sterling Qur borrowings
are drawn 1In US Dollars, Sterling and

net assets in those currencies The key
exchange rates for the year are shown
In the table below

Exchange Rates

In the vyear, all of the currencies we
transact in weakened against the US
Dollar The net wnpact of these
currency movements on our net assets
was to increase them by $0.7m (2015
reduction of $2 3m as restated).

Principal Risks and
Uncertainties

Detalls of the prnncipal nsks and
uncertainties are set out on pages 22
and 23

Detaills of the Group's finanaal risk
management objectives and policies
are set out In Note 22 to the financial
statements

Going Concern and Viability

Statement

in accordance with provision ¢ 2 2 of
the 2014 rewision of the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the Directors have
assessed the prospects of the Group
over both a one-year and a three-year
penod The one-year penod has a
greater level of certainty and is,
therefore, used to set budgets for all
our businesses which culminates in the
approval of a Group budget for the
Board. The three-year period coffers
less certainty, but 1s aligned with long
term ncentives offered to Executive

Directors and certain Senor
Euros to hedge the movement In our management
Year end rate Average rate

% %
Versus US Dollar 2016 2015 change 2016 2015 change
Sterling 081 064 27% 074 065 14%
Euro 095 083 14% C 90 090 -
Awstraban Dollar 1.38 122 13% 136 133 2%
New Zeafand Dollar 143 128 12% 144 143 1%
Hong Kong Dollar 772 777 (1%) 779 773 1%
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The bDirectors have considered the
underlying robustness of the Group’s
business model, products and
proposition and 1ts recent trading
performance, cash flows and key
performance indicators They have
also reviewed the cash forecasts
prepared for the three years ending
31 December 2019, which comprise a
detalled cash forecast for the year
ending 31 December 2017 based on the
budget for that year and standard
growth assumptions for revenue and
costs for the years ending 31 December
2018 and 2019, to satisfy themselves of
the going concern assumption used i
preparnng the financial statements

The Directors have assessed the
Group's wviability over a three-year
period ending on 31 December 2019
based on a financial model which was
prepared as part of the process of
considering and approving the 2017
budget. The Directors used the three-
year review period for the following
reasons’

+« The Group’s pubhshing programme
planning cycle normally works over
a two to three-year pernod

« The Group’s current banking
facilities have just over two vears to
run before they will need to be
refinanced n Apnl 2019 Consistent
with previous facilities, the Directors
have assumed that these faciities
will be renewed or extended at that
time on similar terms.

In carrying out their analysis of viability,
the Directors took account of the
Group’s projected profits and cash
flows, its banking covenants and the
impact of a downturn In trading that
the Group could endure whilst
remaining viable

They also took account of the principal
nsks and uncertainties facing the
business referred to above, a sensitivity
analysis on the key revenue growth
assumption and the effectiveness of
avallable mitigating actions. Based on
their assessment, the Directors have a
reasonable expectation that the Group
will be able to continue In operation
and meet all of its habilities as they fali
due up to 31 December 2019,

For this reason, they continue to adopt
the going concern basis In preparng
the financial statements. In doing so,
it 1s recognised that such future
assessments are subject to a level of
uncertainty that increases with time
and, therefore, future cutcomes cannot
be guaranteed or predicted with
certainty Note 1 to the financial
statements provides additional
information on the Group's banking
covenants and sensitivity

Ne

Michael Connole
Chief Financial Officer
19 Apnl 2017
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PUBLISHING BUSINESSES

QUARTO INTERNATIONAL
CO-EDITIONS GROUP

QUARTO PUBLISHING
GROUP USA

REVENUE

$51.9m

(2015 $501m)

REVENUE

$81.2m

(2015. $72.4m)

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT

$9.4m

(2015 36 4m)

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT!?

$9.6m

(2015 $8.9m)

Quarto International Co-Editions
Group performed well In 2016 and 1s
continuing to grow year-on-year.
Revenue was $51.9m (2015 $50.1m),
up by 4%, and adjusted operating
profit grew by an impressive 47% to
$9.4m (2015 $6.4m). The dvision
benefited from good trading in our
children’'s imprints - one of our key
strategic areas of focus - as well as an
outstanding performance by vy Press,
which we acquired in March 2015 Like
any diverse portfolio, some of our
imprints performed better than others
due to a vanety of factors but we
recognise the cychcal nature of our
creative businesses and  actively
manage and rewvitalise the portfolio
accordingly.

ThislsYourCookbook.com had a steady
first full year following its launch in
2015 and proved its concept of
producing personalised cookbooks
We saw a nice uphft particularly befare
the Christmas period We will invest
some marketing funds in this business
In 2017 1t s still too early to say whether
this new venture will reach commercial
success, but investment in new ways of
exploting our (P 15 essential to the
ongoing health of Quarto

' Includes the benefit of the reduced
amortisation change ansing from the
review of useful ives of our titles

2 Includes the contribution from acquired
businessess

Quarto Publishing Group USA had an
excellent year. Revenue grew by 12%
over 2016, and adjusted operating
profit iImproved by 8% from $8 9m to
$9.6m. This was a particularly pleasing
performance as the business replaced
the spike in sales of adult art
instruction/colouring book titles that
we saw In 2015 with other titles As
antrcipated, we saw signs of retail
oversaturation with this category and
sales of these tities have settled to a
lower, more consistent level, but one
in which our titles stifl to continue
tc participate

becker&mayer, acquired In August
2016, exceeded management
expectations by effectively becoming
our sixth most profitable imprint in the
year. As stated at the time of the deal.
this acquisition has further enhanced
the Group's offering in both adult and
children's publishing, particularly in the
USA It is an excellent addition to our
portfolio. We continue to focus the
product of the SmartLab business
towards Book Plus products and are
pleased with the initial direction

In addition, we are satisfied with the
integratron of Harvard Common Press
and Burgess Lea Press, both also
acquired in 2016, which performed to
expectations These acquisitions
further our position as a leading
publisher of lifestyle-orientated titles
for the consumer markets

The US presidential
November did introduce

election In
some

n

uncertainty into the marketplace and
trading was a Ittle weaker than
anticipated In the final weeks of the
year We are therefore budgeting
cautiously for 2017 but we have a
strong portfolio of preducts and
increasingly. are strategically well
placed in the US market

Qur direct relationships with retailers
continue to develop as we focus our
publishing and distribution on niche
markets Our strategy remains to
diversify our channels to market in a
way that matches the breadth of our
publishing programmes which cater
for enthusiasts

QUARTO PUBLISHING
GROUP UK

REVENUE

$21.5m

(2015 $22.8m)

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT?

$2.8m

(2015, $3 3m)

ADNVYNHIACD

Quarto Publishing Group UK showed
modest growth in 2016 1n absolute terms
but was badly impacted by currency
volatility, resulting overall in a 6% decline,
with revenue of $21.5m. The UK market
has been somewhat softer in 2016,
undermined to some extent by the
anticipation and result of the European
Union (EU) referendum and subsequent
currency volatiity, and the weakness in
Sterling has reduced revenue growth,
As in the US, there was a slow finish to
the year and we are also budgeting
cautiously here. That said, this remains a
portfolio of good imprints that publish
excellent books.

We have seen particularly gratifying
performances from Aurum Press In
adults, as well as children’s imprints
Wide Eyed Editions and Frances
Linceln Children’s Books.
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CHILDREN'S PUBLISHING

CHILDREN’S PUBLISHING

REVENUE

$43.4m

(2015. $32.4m)

Our children's revenues have grown by
34% vyear-on-year, both organically
and through the acquisition of
becker&mayer, which compnses about
50% children’s books

Overall, our children’s revenues have
grown by 135% since 2012 and it
remains an area of strong focus for
the Group

Our talented creative teams around
the world are switably teamed up with
excellent specialst children’s book
sales people and marketers.

We continue to attract and develop
talent, and constantly manage creative
cycles by starting new imprints,
renewing publishers of long-running
mprints and  exarmining potential
acqguisiions on  both sides of the
Atlantic

“I will be forever grateful to Quarto
for giving me such an amazing
opportunity and allowing me to
create my first book The Bear and
the Piano. Working with such a
forward thinking and creative team
whilst developing my books is a joy.
Their passion is incredibly inspiring
and their continued support allows
me to fulfil my dream job.”

David Litchfield
Author and illustrator

“It was fantastic to turn the iconic
pop anthem ‘Footloose’ into a
children’s book working with singer
and songwriter Kenny Loggins. We
created MoonDance Press to make
books for dreamers, books that
capture young imaginations with
enthralling stories.”

Anne Landa
Group Publisher, Cahfornia imprints

“We create the most didactic titles
possible, including a wide range of
books plus titles - adding components

to books so that children can interact

with the content and learn from it.
We are the ‘go-to’ creators of
innovative books for publishers
around the world.”

Zeta Jones
Group Publisher, QED Publishing, Quarto
Children's Books, words & pictures
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FOREIGN RIGHTS SALES

FOREIGN RIGHTS SALES

REVENUE

$32.5m

(2015 $301m)

Qur Quarto Foreign Rights team
achieved a record performance In
2016, particularly commendable given
the uncertainties and currency
headwinds 1in some of the markets In
which we conduct business. This
demonstrates their expertise and
entrepreneunal approach, as well as
the solid, enduring relationships they
have bullt with co-edition partners all
over the world

Besides foreign nights sales, we
continue to work to identify further
opportunities  for growth 1n both
Enghsh and foreign language - in
existing markets and in new markets -
proceeding cautiously to ensure that
we find the rnight partners who share
our values.

In 2016, we entered Into a new
international  publishing partnership
with Sharjah-based Kalimat Group
Qur new Kalimat QGuarto 1imprnnt
launched in November 2016 at the
Sharjah Book Fair with a range of
cookbooks in Arabtc repurposed from
our existing 500 senes and distributed
throughout the Middle East and North
Africa Other categories, including

children’s books, are envisaged as the
co-operation grows We see great
scope for developing the market for
justrated non-fiction In the United
Arab Emurates (UAE) as well as the
larger Arabic-speaking world The
category 1s currentlty dominated by
English language imports - excluding a
significant potential readership, as
English is not that widely spoken in the
Arabic speaking world as a whole

Qur Brazihan distribution agreement
with Grupo Nobel, Quarto Editora, had
a steady performance in line with
management expectations Cur 2016
programme included 60 titles, with a
mix of core adult categornes (Food and
Wine, Esoteric, Pets, Drawing) and
some new topics such as Healthy
Living, Intenior, Gardening and Kids.

“The Foreign Rights team makes sure
that every book gets sold in as many
languages as possible. We're often
described as ‘the secret sauce of

[
Quarto’ - few others in our industry %
can compete with our scale, reach E
and expertise in this field.” &
Karine Marko
Group Director of Foreign Rights
“Quarto is dynamic and proactive Z
in looking at new business :z:
opportunities - for instance ®
unexploited opportunities to offer §
access to our platform and L
distribution network to third parties, g

unexploited foreign language
territories, or unexploited copyright

opportunities.”

David Inman
Managing Director, Quarto Partners
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TRADING BUSINESSES

QUARTO HONG KONG

REVENUE

$14.5m

2015 $14 8m)

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT

$1.6m

2015 $15m)

Regent Publishing Services (Regent),
our long-established print broking
business based i Hong Kong.
performed to expectations in 2016 with
operating profit up 7% from revenues
down 2%

On 3 Aprd 2017, we announced the
completion of the disposal of our 75%
interest In Regent The consideration
for the disposal 15 $70m, including a
payment of $2 5m (HK$19 5m) for the
Group’s share of the excess cash in
the business, payable in cash on
completion, which I1s expected to take
place on 31 March 2017 The busmess s
being sold to 1010 Printing Group Ltd, a
Hong Kong-based printing business
iisted on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. The consideration will be
used to reduce the Group’s net debt

Regent has performed well since it was
founded and 25% shareholder George
Tal has been a loyal partner to the
Group for over 30 years 1010 Printing
Group Ltd, one of Quarto’s long-term
and most valued printing suppliers,
will be a good home for Regent and
Its people.
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BOOKS & GIFTS DIRECT

REVENUE

$19.4m

(2015 $221m)

ADJUSTED OPERATING
(LOSS)/PROFIT

$(9.8)m

(2015 $0 9m as restated)

BGD's revenue for the year ended
31 December 2016 was $194m,
showing a dechne of 12% on the 2015
figure of $22 1m The operating loss for
the year was $161m (2015 operating
profit of $09m as restated). and
includes exceptional impairment
charges of $14 2m as discussed below.
Further details of the exceptional
impairment charges are set out n
Note 5 to the financial statements.

On 3 Apnl 2017, we announced the
completion of the disposal of BGD
Australla to Zocom Pty Limited (as
trustee for the Zooom Investment
Trust), a company Incorporated in
Austraha and formed for the purposes
of acquiring the business by a group
comprising certain of the master
franchisees and former employees of
the business 1n  Australa The
consideration for the sale of the
company 15 A%l and Quarto will also

take an assignment of certain debts
owed by the master franchisees to
BGD Australa of A$19m (US$14m)
which will be repayable n monthly
instalments over two years and are
interest bearing The repayments will
be used to reduce the Group's bank
debt as they are received Quarto 1s
entitled to recewve 10% of the profit
before interest and tax of Zooom Pty
Limited for the next five years

We have determined that exceptional
impairment charges totalling $14 2m
are required to write down the goodwill
and other net attributable assets of the
BGD business at 31 December 2016 to
reflect the recoverable value

In the process of finalising the results
of the Books and Gifts Direct business
for the year ended 31 December 2016,
errors were uncovered in the cut-off
procedures and accounting for returns
in relation to stock in transit and the
related liability accounts at BGD
Australla The errors related to the
value attributed to stock In transit at
each of the three years ended
31 December 2016, 31 December 2015
and 31 December 2014 where detalled
examination has shown that supplier
inveices for stock In transit were not
processed in the correct accounting
period, nor was the correct accrual or
return provision recorded In  the
financial statements The wmpact of
these errors has resulted in the lower
operating margins for the vear ended
31 December 2015 Full detaills of the
error and the restatement are set out In
Note 1to the financial statements
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OUR PEOPLE

“Our priority is to invest in our talent to
develop and to find people who are
inspired by great work, have a growth
mindset and a strong team orientation.”

Sally Dwyer
Group Director of People

More than 400 talented people help us
make and sell great books every day.

As a creative business, we are
particularty dependent on the
imagination and passion of our people
Qur pricnty is to invest In our own
talent to grow and develop and to find
people who are inspired by great work,
have a growth mindset and a strong
team crientation

We focus on recruiting only the best
creative talent we can find, from
everywhere and anywhere in the world,
and we have a respoensibility to ensure
that each and every member of Quarto
feels they can contnbute ther best
each and every day

We believe our people are acompetitive
advantage for QGuarto Their creatwvity,
tenacity and team spirit help grow our
business - and the businesses of our
customers ~ every day.

Culture and Values

Quarto 15 too human to be truly
corporate - ourimprints and businesses
are too individual, however, we try to
create a culture in which all cur people
flourish. Every business has to find
what s authentic to them, and we
believe that when cur people feel able
to bring their true selves to work we
get the best from each other

Our culture s a key indicator of how we
treat each other and the behaviours we
want to be known for Qur values shape
the way we do business and select the
people we work with,
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Our Values
+ BE ACCOUNTABLE

+ BE PURPOSEFUL

« BE CONSISTENT

*» BE EXCELLENT

+ BE CURIOUS

« BE COLLABORATIVE

We believe In creative independence
and that the autonomy we give our
people ensures that we reman market-
focused and relevant to all readers and
customers Our imprints are supported
by a strong central platform that
includes finance, operations, sales,
marketing, human resources and
foreign nghts sales.

We have designed an organisation that
atits core has de-centralised leadership
into each publishing business, so that
our Group Pubhshers and Publishers
are truly running their own businesses,
with complete creative control over the
books they publish

Employee Engagement

We believe that treating our people
with respect, providing consistent
and fair policies and allowing them to

be creatively independent helps
demonstrate the wvalue we hold
them in

In 2016, we reviewed and increased our
global benefits for maternity, paternity,
adoption and surrogacy. We updated
our internship policy to ensure that all
interns we employ across our impnnts
and businesses are paid the minimum
wage Across our UK businesses, we
harmonised the employment terms
and conditions of all our employees
And we piloted new flexible workplace
inthiatives such as Summer hours

In early 2017, we will conduct our first
ever employee engagement survey,
which will give us insights into how we
can keep improving the way our
leaders engage with thewr teams
across Quarto

The Guarto Group, Inc. Annual Report 2016

Performance Management

QOur pniority 1s to make sure that all our
employees feel that Quarto enables
them to do their job in the best way
possible.

We ensure that individual performance
goals are connected to the overall
strategic goals of Quarto, that people
understand  what behaviours are
expected of them and that they have
regular conversations about therr
perforrmnance with their ine manager

We have listened to our employees
and reviewed our annual performance
review process, moving away from
a single annual process towards a
more flexible and less formal
qguarterly check-in. This allows for
more timely performance coaching
and development

During 2016 we undertook a review of
the Quarto behaviours to ensure that
they were reflective of our values and
the behaviours that create success In
Quarto. These will [aunch in 2017

Launching our Purple Guagga
Awards

We ke toc celebrate our people's
achievements and, in 2016, we launched
our first ever employee award scheme
- the Purple Quagga Awards

These consist of 12 awards in total -
one awarded monthly and 11 awarded
annually - across three areas
publishing (four awards), people (four
awards), and sales, marketing and
foreign rights sales (four awards). Eight
of these are nominated directly by
employees or [ine managers and then
chosen by a panel of judges, while a
few are metric or target driven Winners
can be individuals or teams and prizes
range from $500 to $5,000 The 2016
winners across all categories will be
revealed in Aprnl 2017,

Learning and Development

We want to develop our people and
enable them to take con different or
more senior roles within the business
We do this predominately by
mentoring, ceoaching and on-the-job
development
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Today's business environment
demands greater need for
collaboration, ongomng learning and
agility. We believe that about 70% of
an employee’s development happens
‘on the job’ through problem solving,
shadowing and special projects, as well
as secondments and internal job
rotations Abocut 20% comes from their
communities of practice, both within
Quarto and therr external networks.
Coaching and mentoring also help
provide momentum. The final 10% 1s
through active learning events To help
get the most from this 10%, we are
developing Quarto & You - which will
allow our people to acquire new skills
In a structured and consistent way

Fostering Diversity and
Inclusivity

The diversity of people and ideas I1s
crucial In a creative business such as
Quartc We believe that our teams
should be as diverse as the communitres
we live and work in, and the people we
publish books for We recognise that it
1S a journey and we are working to
become an even more Inclusive
business

We do not discriminate against age,
gender, ethnicity, cultural background,
sexual orientation or relgious beliefs,
We recruit, develop and promote our
staff based on thewr performance
alone, We review each job application
and do not filter thern through a system
that disqualifies candidates based on
education, sex or age

We alsc promote diversity and
inclusivity  through our publishing
programme - particularly some of our
children’'s books. As part of our
continued efforts in this space, we will
soon taunch a learning workshop called
‘unconscious blas’ via our Quarto &
You platform, to help our people
understand their own biases and how
these can play out in the workplace.

Sally Dwyer
Group Director of People
19 Apnl 2017
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lives of our readers through rich content and beautifully
illustrated books, which in itself has a high social value.
We focus on integrity in all of our activities, consider

£16K

FUNDRAISED
FOR BREAST
CANCER

$5K

DONATED TO THE
STONE BARNS
CENTER FOR
FOCD AND
AGRICULTURE

Strategic Report

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY
AND SUSTAINABILITY

Our mission is to educate, entertain and enrich the

our impact on society and the environment, and
work to be a good corporate citizen.

Supporting our Communities
Our people individually and collectively
contribute to the cormnmunities in which
we live and work We are proud of the
efforts our people make to educate,
entertain and enrich the lives of many
people, not just our readers Some
of the highlights for this year are
detailed below:

» A $10,000 denation to the Goddard
Riverside Community Center in New
York City in support of therr annual
Gala The Goddard Riverside
Community Center serves some
17,000 people each year through 26
programmes on the Upper West
Side and throughout M™Manhattan,
They have established a decade-
long partnership with the publishing
industry - supported by The Quarte
Group - to fight against
homelessness.

* Qver £16,000 fundraised for Breast
Cancer Now by 27 UK-based Quarto
employees in May 2016, by walking
100km from London to Brighton ~ a
sigrificant portion of the total of
£80.000 raised by Breast Cancer
Now through this event

« $5,000 donated to the Stone Barns
Center for Food and Agriculture,
a 501()(3) nonprofit organisation

dedicated to creating “a healthy and
sustainable food system” This
donation was made through an
agreement that advances profits on
the Burgess Lea Press book Field &
Feast. Burgess Lea Press was
acquired by Quarto in May 2016 and
donates 100% of after-tax pubhshing
profits on every book to 501(c)(3)
organisations that address hunger
relief, farmland preservation and
cubinary education.
« Qur UK-based offices gave In-kind
book donations to several charities
across the year, including Help for
Heroes, Ronald McDonald House
and The Family School,
+ In November 2016, our Califorria
office suppeorted a volunteer project
organised by the YMCA. Within just
acouple of hours, Quarto employees
helped make more than 20 blankets
to keep seniors In need warm over
the holiday season
+ Other local chanties supported by
employee Iinftiatives In our offices in
2016 include
- Beverly Bootstraps
www beverlybootstraps.org,

- Cradles to Crayons
www.cradlestocrayons org;

- Second Harvest Heartland
www Zharvest org, and

- Assistance League
of Irvine Thrift Shop
www.assistanceleague org/irvine,

It 15 also worth mentioning two
publishing projects that our imprints
have worked onn 2016 1n partnership
with well-estabhshed charities, and
that will pulbhsh in 2017

*+ |vy Press has created a book n
partnership with Mencap, the voice
of learning disability, which will
receive 10% of proceeds from sales.
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The Label 1s a book for new parents
as a real and honest nsight
into what 1t means to have a child
with Down’s Syndrome in the
21st century

+* Frances Lincoln Children’s Books
has created a picture book of John
Lenncn’s Imagine 1n partnership
with  Amnesty International. The
bock will publish on 21 September
2017 and nghts have already been
sold in seven languages, with
Amnesty International receiving a
royalty from every copy sold

The Quarto Foundation

In 2017, we will launch The Quarto
Foundation to further support our
tocal communities 1n areas that are
close to our hearts and business -
education and knowledge This will
enable us to channel cur chantable
efforts to fund charties that support
causes that are aligned with our
Company’s mission

Every Quarto office will choose one
tocal chanty to support and will
be encouraged to raise money
through mecharisms such as matched
giving, in-kind denations and
volunteering time

Sustainability

We try to make our business more
sustainable by considermg  the
sustainabiity aspects of our most
important business decisions, where
these efforts can create value for our
shareholders while continung to
provide value to our customers,
partners and communities.

The impact of our business on the
environment predominantly comes from
the activibes we subcontract to our
supphers including the  pnnting,
production, distribution, recycling and
cisposal of printed books We also have
office-based product development,
editorial, sales and admimistrative
activities

Using sustainable paper

We recently instituted a Forest
Stewardship  Councall (FSC) paper
policy across alf our UK and US
imprints, with the following effects.

« All of our gift and stationery
products were already printed on
FSC matenal in compliance with the
European Union Timber Regulation
That remains unchanged

« At the start of 2016, we moved to
FSC paper for all our children's books
published under Guarto imprints

+ As of 1 January 2017, this will be
extended to all our adults’ books
pubhshed under Quarto imprints

As a consequence, we estimate that
about 90% of our publshed books
printed from 2017 onwards will use
FSC paper The remaining 10% will be
moved to FSC as soon as possible and
we are In the process of sourcing FSC-
complant materials from products
that require other specifications than
the standard paper and board we
usually use. We expect that, by the
rmiddle of 2017, close to 100% of our
newly printed books will use FSC
paper In 2017, we will also move to
FSC paper for all the co-edition
books we print for our foreign
language customers

Where we print domestically in the US,
and FSC matenal 1s not avallable, we
will use Sustainable Forestry Initiative
{SFI) paper

We continue to work with partners and
supphers who are certified by the FSC,
150 14001 which covers environmental
management systems, and the ICTI
CARE process covering ethical
standards of manufacturing

Developing more sustainable
operations

We are working towards developing
sustainable  operations  such  as
manhaging our carbon emissions by
ensuring that we consolidate shipments
across the Group and ship as
infrequently as possible. This mits the
shipping of empty space across the
oceans, and reduces energy waste and
our impact on the envirocnment

We ship most of our books to two
warehouses - one In the UK and one
in the US The majority of our books
are printed n socuthern China and
shipments are consolidated. As a rule,
we consolidate palletised shipments
from the printer and himit movements
to only full 40 foot containers to reduce
our iImpact on the environment When
a container 1s not full, we will hold
shipment until the following week
barring exceptional circumstances We
have been applying these guidehines as
standard practice for US-bound
stupments for the last two years, and
we started for UK-bound shipments in
mid-2016 Since we started for the UK,
our average pallet loading for each
container has been 49 pallets out of a
maximum capacity of 52 - so we are
performing efficiently in this area
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Governance

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Peter Read (60)
Chairman

Marcus E. Leaver (48)
Chief Executive Officer

Michael Connole FCA (52)
Chief Financial Officer
(resignation submitted 30 March 2017}

Peter joined the Board in May 2016

Peter 1s currentty a non-executive
director of EVR Holdings, Concha,
Quayle Munro Holdings, the
Professional Cricketers’ Association,
the Royal Automobile Club, and the
Motor Sports Association. He was
formerly chairmnan of KPMG's
Telecoms, Media and Technology
practice and a partner for over

20 years

Peter chairs the Nominations
Committes and 1s @ member of the
Remuneration Committee.

Marcus has been Chief Executive
Officer since December 2012 having
joined the Board of Quarto as Chief
Operating Officer in May 2012 Prior
to Quarto, he worked in the USA from
20065, latterly as President of Sterling
Publishing, a subsidiary of Barnes &
Noble, the leading bricks-and-mortar
bookselier in the US

Before living and working i the US,
he worked in London for Chrysalis
Group plc, a London Stock Exchange-
listed media company, latterly as
Chief Executive Officer of Chrysalis
Books Group, from 2002, and prior

to that as Corporate Development
Director and in a number of different
general management roles, from 1298

Marcus graduated from the University
of East Anglia with a degree Iin Art
History, and received his MBA from
London Business School

Marcus 1s a member of the
Nominattons Committee
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Michael joined Quarto as Chief
Financial Officer on 1 September 2015

Michael has considerable experience
in media, being Chief Financial Officer
of Global Radig, the UK's largest
commercial racho group, from June
2008 to August 2015, and before that
Group Finance Director at Chrysalis
Group plc, where he worked from
1997 to 2008. He has also been Vice
President - Finance (Europe) for
Management Consulting Group plc
and spent seven years with KPMG's
London office He qualified as a
chartered accountant in 1988.

Michael has decided to take a career
break after 21 years in senior finance
roles and has submitted his
resignation An executive searchis
underway for the Group's new CFO

In the meantime, Michael continues to
support the business during his notice
period. Accordingly, Michael is not
seeking re-elechion as a Director



Jess Burley (51)
Non-Executive Director

Quarto Group, Inc Annual Report 2016

Michael Hartley (68)
Non-Executive Director

Anne Crompton (40)
Company Secretary

140d3" D93 1vdLS

Jess has over 20 years’ experience

in medha, working previously as the
Group Managing Director of Hearst In
the UK, responsible for Hearst Digital
Media and the National Magazine
Company portfolio Jess joined m/SiX
(the WPP joint venture between
CHI&Partners and GroupM) as Chief
Executive Officer in May 2010, bringing
a wealth of knowiedge across all
media Jess has also held a number

of non-executive roles working
previously with UK Mail Group Plc, the
fashion retaller Jacques Vert Plc and
TalkTalk Telecom Plc. She 1s also a
trustee of the young pecple's chanty
Get Connected. Jess was appointed to
the Board as a Non-Executive Director
of Quarto in 2014 and was appointed
Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee on 1 December 2016,

Jess is a member of the Nominations
and Aucht Committees.

Mike was appointed to the Board

In August 2013 as Senior Independent
Director and Chair of the Audit
Committee from May 2014

Mike brings considerable board and
international experience and a broad
knowledge of strategic management
He formerly held a series of senior
executive positions in both retail

and manufacturing, serving latterly
as Chief Executive Officer of the
£8C0m turnover Viyella division of
Coats Viyella plc, retiring in 2003.

He has held a series of non-executive
roles, including Chairman of Dawson
International PLC from 2003 to 2009
and Senior Independent Director of
ITE Group plc from 2003 to 2014,

He 1s currently Chairman of US-
based Dawson Forte LLP

Mike 15 a member of the Nominations
and Remuneration Committees

4

Anne was appointed in January 2017
and 1s also Group Director of Legal
and Business Affairs

Anne 1s responsible for managing and
safeguarding alt our intellectual
property and contractual processes,
as well as assisting the Chief Financial
Officer in managing our risk across
the Group. She also adwvises the Board
and the Senior Leadership Team on
both regulatory and M&A matters,
and acts as Secretary to the Board and
varnous Board Committees

Anne has 10 years of experience as a
lawyer in the creative industries. She
joins us from media and entertainment
group This Is Global Ltd, where she
had been Head of Legal since 2010
She was previously a lawyer with the
law firmn Harbottle & Lews LLP, where
she trained
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Governance

NOMINATIONS
COMMITTEE REPORT

The members of the Norminations
Committee are the Group’s non-
executive Directors, Peter Read
(Committee Chatrman), Michael
Hartley. and Jess Burley, and the
Chief Executrve Cfficer, Marcus
Leaver. A copy of the Committee’s
formal terms of reference can be
found on the Company's website
(www.quarto com)

The search for Board candidates 1s
conducted and appomtments made,
on merit, against objective criteria
and with due regard to the benefits
of diversity on the Board, including
gender External search consultants
are engaged, as appropriate, and a
formal and transparent process is
followed When dealing with the
appointment of a successor to the
Chairman, the senior independent
non-executrve Director will chair the
Committee instead of the Chairman,
though in 2016, the meetings held
regarding the appointment of the
successor to the Chairman were
chaired by Tim Chadwick with Michael
Hartley present

Al Directors are required to allocate
sufficient time to discharge therr
responsibilities and new Directors
receive a tarored induction on
joining the Board This includes
presentations on the business, current
strategy, shareholder expectations,
and familiansation with the Group's
operations worldwide Guidance

15 also given on the duties,
responsitiiities and liabilities of a
Director of a hsted company and
key Board policies and procedures.

The Committee met three times
during the year and was active,
under its previous chairman, in my
appointment as Quarto's new
Chairman on 24 May 2016 Other
activities included a review of the
balance of skills and experence on
the Board to consider if any changes
were necessary, a review of the output
from the annual Board evaluation
process, and a review of the
Company's management structure
and succession plans

The Chairman of the Committee
attends the Annual Meeting to
address any shareholder questions
relating to the Comrmittee

Following the announcement that
Michael Connole, CFQ, has submitted
his resignation, the Nominations
Cornmittee on behalf of the Board
has commenced an executive search
to identify a suitable replacement,
Michael continues to support the
business in the normal course of his
notice period. The Board thanks
Michael for the significant changes
made to the business since his
appointmenyand wish him and his
In the future

Peter Read
Chairman of the
Nominations Committee
19 Aprit 2017
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The members of the Audit Committee
who served throughout the year are
non-executive Directors Michael Hartley
(Chairman), Jess Burley. Christopher
Mills served until the AGM on 24 May
2016 and Marie Louise Windeler from
the AGM until 27 September 2016 The
Board considers Jess Burley, Michael
Hartley and Mane |.ouise Windeler to
be independent Directors The Board
considers that Michael Hartley and
Chnistopher Mills have recent and
relevant financial experience and
together the Committee has a wide range
of financial and commercial experience
to fulfil the Committee's duties

Responsibilities

The Commuittee acts in accordance
with its terms of reference, and i1ts
specific responsibilities include

* To consider and recommend the
appointment of the Group's auditor,
the audit fee, audit engagement
letter and questions of auditor
performance, partner rotation,
resignation and dismissal

+ To meet with the auditor to discuss
all aspects of the audit including
audit planning, scope, findings,
accounting policies, management
Judgements and estimates

* To review the Board'’s
representation letter to the auditor

= Toreview the auditor’'s
rmanagement letter and
management's response.

+ To set policy and review the use of
any non-audit services and assess
the iIndependence of the auditor

* Toreview financial statements
released to the public including
interim and annual financial
statements.

+ Toreview the Group's accounting
pohlcies, practices and use of
accounting standards especially
for decisions requiring major
elements of judgement, significant
adustments, long term viability
and going concern

* To review the Group's internal
controls and rnisk management
including
- the financial reporting process;
- dentifying, managing and

monitoring financial, operational,
compliance and other risks,

- comphance with regulatory and
legal requirements,
- detecting fraud
+ To review the need for an internal
audit function at least annually

Committee Meetings

The Committee meets throughout
the year to fulfil its responsibilities
The Committee Chairman also meets
informally with the Chief Financial
Officer throughout the year and with
senior management. He alsc meets
with the external Audit Partner from
time to time to discuss 1ssues and

be appraised of regulatory change.

By invitation the Company’s Chairman
of the Board, Chief Executive Officer,
CFQ and representatives of the
Company's auditor also attend
Committee meetings although part
of some meetings are exclusively

for Committee members without
executive management present

The Chairrnan of the Cormmittee
attends the Annual Meeting to
address any shareholder questions
relating to the Committee.

The Committee met four times
during 2016 and once in 2017

The Committee, as part of full Board
meetings, was also involved In
approving announcements made to
the London Stock Exchange.

Activities of the Committee
During 2016 and 2017 to date the work
of the Committee included

+ Review of the plan and scope of the
external audit

+ Review of the external auditor’s
report on the 2016 year end audit
and approval of the preliminary
announcement and the annual
report.

+ Recommend to the Board its support
for management’s recommendation
for the final and interim dividend

+ Consider the external auditor’s
comments in relation to internal
control and review the need and
potential scope of internal audit
functions.

« Review complance of the policy
relating to use of the auditors for
non-audit work
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Review and approval of the interim

report 2016 after discussion with

management and the external

auditor,

Discussion of significant accounting

1Issues and judgements in the 2016

accounts as detailled below

» Review of the Directors’' viability
statement

+ Review of the iIndependence of the

external auditor

Performance Evaluation

The Committee assessed its
performance, constitution and terms
of reference during 2016 (based

on a questionnaire completed

by its members). The Committee
was deemed by the Board to have
performed satisfactorily.

Significant Audit risks, key
findings and financial
judgements relating

to year end accounts 2016

The Committee concentrated on the
following in relation to the 2016 accounts.

Going Concern and Covenant
Compliance

The Committee considered the
underlying robustness of the Group's
business model, products and
proposition, and the financial resources
available to it for the future to satisfy
itself of the going concern assumption
N preparing the financial statements.

On finahsation of the 2016 results,
management identified that the Group
had failled the Q4 2016 CFADS
covenant test This does not imply a
breach of the bank covenants, providing
it does not recur Rigorous analysis of
future cash flows and covenants was
performed, together with scenaro
testing and mitigation options, which
showed forecast compliance, The
Auditor challenged key assumptions
In management’s model, performed

historical forecasting accuracy analysis,

applied sensitivities and evaluated
management's sensitivities, and looked
at breakeven points on the covenants.

Management consulted with the lead
bank to ensure that they concurred
that it 1s appropriate to exclude
certain items as exceptional items
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

when calculating covenant
compliance This confirmation was
reviewed by the Auditor

The Committee noted these matters,
ncluding the significant control
observations on this area, and the
forecast comphance with the facihity's
covenants for the foreseeable future

Accounting for the potential
Books & Gifts Direct ('BGD")
disposal

The Group has been seeking to dispose
of the Australia and New Zealand BGD
businesses. Heads of Terms were signed
post vear end. The Australia business
sale contract exchanged on 27 March
and completed on 31 March New
Zealand discussions remain on-going

Management have disclosed additional
information on the Income statement
to show separately the results of BGD
and the other businesses, as they
believe this supptementary information
was more useful for the reader

They have also shown within exceptional
items $6 2m impairment of BGD
goodwill and intangible assets as well as
a write down of certain current assets
totaling $8 Om given the size and
non-recurnng nature of these items,

The Audit Committee and Audhtor
concluded this treatment and
presentation to be reasonable

Inventory accounting and prior
year adjustment

During the year end processes and in
preparing due diigence for the intended
transaction, management identified an
error, as a result of control falings, in the
BGD Australia accounts for the stock in
transit of $3.5m relating to cut-off
errors and errors in accounting for
inventory returns which related tg the
current year income statement and prior
years After management analysis and
adjustment, the component audit team
performed extensive testing on this
balance and on the creditors and
purchase clearing accounts The testing
identified further errors which
management corrected with the total
impact of adjustments identified and
recorded as per Note 1n the accounts

Acquisition accounting

During 2016, the Group acquired
becker&mayer and Harvard Common
Press, both in the US Management
prepared opening fair value balance
sheets with both being treated as a
husiness combination within the scope
of IFRS3. Management also used
external valuation specialists to value
the acquired intangibles within the
acquisition.

The Auditor assessed the nature

of the transaction, reviewed the
purchase agreements, assessed the
acquisttion accounting, engaged their
valuation experts to assess the work
of management’s external expert

and audited the acquired assets

and liabilities

Falings in financial reporting controls
were identified across the two
acquisitions with material reclassification
adjustments identified to the cpening
balance sheets. The identified errors
have been corrected by management
In the 2016 accounts

The Committee reviewed the results
and management’s methodology and
discussed the testing performed by
the Auditor to provide comfort that
any estimates used in the preparation
of the balance sheets were reasonable

Assessment of the carrying
value of Goodwill

Goodwill arising from acquisitions 1s
stated at cost less any accumulated
timpairment losses In accordance with
IAS 26 the Group tests the goodwill
on an annual basis for impairment.

Failings in financial reporting controls
arose as the Auditor identified errors
in the determination of the value in
use and headroom resulting In a
matenal reduction in the disclosed
headroom following corrections
made by management

The Committee reviewed the final
methodology and assumptions used
in the testing process with focus on
both the discount rate and growth
rates used In the discounted cash
flow valuations and the sensitivity
to changes in the discount rate and
growth rate Further detail 1s set out
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in Note 11 No impairment provision
for the publishing businesses
was required

The Committee noted the continued
sensitivity of the CGU to reasonably
possible changes in key assumptions
and confirmed the appropnateness of
the continued disclosure of this

Goodwill relating to BGD was mpaired
by $6.0m as detalled above

Recoverability of
pre-publication costs
Amortisation of pre-publication costs
1s charged to the income statement on
a straight line basis over the estimated
useful hves of the intangible assets
Pre-publication costs are capitalised
In accordance with |AS 38 and the
Committee, with the external auditor,
discussed the assumptions behind

the amortisation profile including the
amortisation period of the publications.
Further detail 1s set out In Note 15,

In 2016, management amended their
estimate of the useful life of certain
assets to better reflect the expected
useful hfe of the assets. The changes
had the effect of increasing operating
profit by $2.1m following the
prospective application of the change
in lives from the start of the year The
Committee noted the effect of this on
the Incocme Statement The Auditor
reviewed the presentation and
concurred with management’s
treatment of these changes to the
estimates prospectively under |IAS8

Exceptional items

The Committee, In consultation with
the Auditor, considered the latest
regulatory guidelines issued by the
FRC in December 2013 and agreed
with the Executive Directors to restrict
exceptional items to significant items
outside the scope of normal business
that need to be disclosed by virtue
of their size or incidence This has
been applied consistently from 2014

For the 2016 accounts, there have
been sigruficant exceptional items in
relation to BGD These have included
items relating to impairment of
goodwill and intangibles of $6 2m
as well as $8 Om relating to the



write-down of assets including
recelvables and inventory. These have
been included within Exceptional items
due to their scale and one-off nature
rather than being non-trading items
Further detaill 15 set out In Note 5

Revenue recognition and sales
returns

The Committee considered the risk
that revenue may not be captured in
the relevant penod. Apart from the
usual risks relating to the timing of
revenue recognition, management are
required to provide for returns, which
may be made subsequent to the
pernod end Thes requires a significant
degree of jJudgement as management
assesses saltes returns through
quantifying the previous returns
experience and post year end returns

The Commuttee reviewed
management's methodology, and
discussed the procedures followed to
ensure that revenue was booked into
the correct penod in ine with the
stated accounting policies and that
returns provisions were reasonable

Inventory provisioning

The economics of manufacturing and
wholesaling of books in the pubhshing
businesses inherently leads to
substantial inventories. Most of these
are not printed without guaranteed
sales so there is a degree of
judgement as to the provisions
required to hold this inventory at the
lower of cost or net realisable value

The Comrnittee reviewed
managements’ methodology and
discussed the testing performed by
the Auditor to provide comfort that
these estimates were reasonable.

For BGD, management booked
substantial inventory provisions within
exceptional items to best reflect the
estimated recoverable values from the
transaction and without a long term
trading future

Receivables provisioning

Trade receivables 1s inherently a
critical accounting estimate in relation
to the nisk of non recoverabihty of
trade recevables The Committee has
discussed and challenged the overall
receivables position and considered
the reasonableness of the level

of provisioning The Committee
noted the much-reduced level of
overdue receivables in the publishing
and printing businesses,

In BGD, trading in the final months
of 2016 detenorated sharply for
our master franchisee customers
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and substantial provisions were
booked within exceptional items,
also taking into account the
estimated recoverable values from
the transaction

External Audit

The Committee assesses the
effectiveness of its external audhtor
through on-going dialogue and
communication with the Auditor The
audit cycle ncluded formal meetings
The audit planmng meeting, which
happens prior to the audit, was when
the Committee discussed reporting
developments, significant accounting
risks, the new requirements in relation
to the viabihty statement and other
Corporate Governance Code changes,
improvernent in relation to rnsk
management and internal control and
controls Iin the accounting process

At the end of the audit process. the
Committee met with the auditors to
receive their report on the key findings
with focus on identified key audit risks,
any misstatements in management’s
iitial accounts and to consider areas
of judgement and estimates.

The Auditor showed diligence and
openness with the Committee during
meetings and through written
communication and duning intermediate
briefing sessions with the Chair of the
Audit Committee The Auditor gave
the Committee forthright views on
Jjudgement areas whilst recognising
that the decisions lay with the
Committee. The Committee also
received feedback from the Executive
Directors involved with the audit

The Committee Is satisfied with the
Auditor's effectiveness in 2016

Appointment and independence
Deloitte was appointed the Group's
auditor in December 2014 and as
auditoer to the UK and US subsidiaries.
Deloitte member firms were also
appomnted auditor of the Austrahan,
Hong Kong and New Zealand
subsidiaries in 2015.

The Committee considers the
appomintment of the external auditor
each year and considers the
performance of the lead audit partner
and the audit manager during the
audrt process.

A tender process for the Company's
audit was last completed in early
24, There are no restnctions on the
Committee's choice of external auditor

For the 2016 audit of the Group and
the Company's accounts, Deloitte was
pard £442,400 (2015, £266,600)
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Non-Audit services

Deloitte provided agreed upon
procedures in respect of the intenm
financial statements at a fee of £5,000
(2015, £5,000),

internal Audit

The Committee reviews the
appropriateness of having an internal
aud function To date there has not
been a separate internal audit function,
given the size and scale of the Group's
operations However, in 2016, the
Committee started to implement
more formalisation of the internal
review using a set hst of required
internal control tasks with reports on
these items coming to the Commuttee
for review

This intermediate step towards an
internal audit function has proved to
be ineffective Whilst senior members
of the financial management
performed internal audits, the reports
have not been published timeously,
and the remote locations coupled
with the additional pressures on
management time in the current yvear
resulted in insufficient follow up to the
problems identified.

The year-end audit identified a
number of errors These were mostly
BGD trading accounting, acquisition
accounting and goodwill impairment
testing The operations accounting
within the publishing businesses was
generally found to be adequate.

In view of the lack of real progress

on internal control and the 1ssues
identified during the audit, the
Committee intends to install some
form of dedicated internal audit
resource, which will report internal
audit matters direct to the Commuttee.

The Cormmittee notes that most of
the items identified in 2015 have been
adequately progressed, particularly

in the operational finance functions in
the US and the UK However, the scale
of accounting errors in 2016 and the
need for another restatement of the
accounts highlights the need for much
improved financial management

The Committee has highlighted

these concerns to the Board and In
conjunction with the CEQ, action

is being taken to address dentified

shortcomings

iy Hdo.

Michael Hartley
Chairman of the Audit Committee
19 April 2017
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REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE REPORT

Annual Statement

Dear shareholder
| am pleased to present the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year ended 31 December 2016, which has been
prepared by the Committee and approved by the Board.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, there were no substantial changes in Directors’ remuneration arrangements

This 1s the Company's fourth year of reporting in line with The Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
(Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2013.

The report I1s divided Into two sections

The first 1s Quarto’'s Remuneration Policy recommended by the Board, which will apply from 16 May 2017 subject to
approval at the 2017 Annual Meeting The proposed policy mirrors the existing policy first impiemented on 23 May 2014,
save for the annual bonus thresheld which s 2% growth in profit with stretch target of 10% (previously 3% threshold
with stretch target of 10%)

During the first quarter of 2017, the Committee has worked with Srmith & Willamson LLP on remuneration
benchmarking and reviewing Committee procedures Following this exercise the Committee and the Board will
consider appropriate amendments to the Remuneration Policy during 2017

The second section 1s the Annual Report on Remuneration, which reviews how the existing policy has been
implemented

Performance Evaluation
The Committee assessed its performance, constitution and terms of reference during 2016 (based on a questionnaire
completed by its members). The Committee was deemed by the Board to have performed satisfactorily.

In ine with The Large and Medium-sized Companies and Group's (Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulaticns

2013 the following parts of the Annual Report on Remuneration are audited. the single total figure of remuneration for
each director, including annual bonus outcomes for the financial year ended 31 December 2016, pension entitlements;
and, directors’ shareholdings and share interests All other parts of the Directors’ Remuneration Report are unaudited

I would be happy to receive any comments you may have on this report | hope you find the report clear and
comprehensive and that it helps demonstrate how remuneration is linked to the performance of the company,
and that you are able to support the resolutions on remuneration being presented at this year's Annual Meeting

e

Jess Burley
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
19 Apnil 2017
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Committee meeting attendance 2016

Committee membership Number of meetings held during the year: 4
Jess Burley (Chair from 21 December 2016) 4 of 4
Mike Hartiey (Chair until 21 December 2016) 4 of 4
Peter Read 20f2
Tim Chadwick (resigned 24 May 2016) 20f2
Chnstopher Mills (resigned 24 May 2016) lof 2

During 2016 the Remuneration Committee {'the Committee’) held four meetings During 2017 the Committee has held
3 meetings, and met for 1 presentation by appointed Remuneration Consultants, Smith & Willamson LLP

1H4Cd3d D{931vd1s

Marie Louise Windeler was appointed to the Board and the Committee on 24 May 2016 and resigned on 27 September
2016 due to health reasons She had been appointed as the Chair of the committee but no meetings were held during
her period of appointment

The Chief Executive Qfficer, Chief Finanaial Officer and the Group Director of People have also been invited to attend
parts of some Committee meetings No individual is permitted to participate in any matter concerning details of their
own remuneration

Policy

This section sets out Quarto’s Remuneration Pelicy for Directors which 15 recommended by the Board for approval at
the 2017 Annual Meeting The Group's principal remuneration policy aim 15 to ensure that the Executive Directors’
remuneration 1s designed to promote the long-term success of the Company.

Performance related elements are designed to be transparent, stretching and are rnigorously appled
In formulating 1ts policies the Committee had regard to and balanced the following factors

a) the need to align the interests of the executive with those of the shareholders,

b) the performance of the iIndividual executive and of the Group as a whole;

©) the remuneration practice in the markets in which the executive (s prncipally based; and,

d) the remuneration packages offered to executives in companies competing in the same markets and industry as the
Group, but exercising caution, Iin view of the risk of an upward ratchet of remuneration levels with no corresponding
improvement In corporate and individual performance.

SINIWIALYLS TVIDNVYNIL
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Quarto’s remuneration policy summary

FIXED PAY

Element of
Remuneration

Purpose and
link to strategy

Operation

Opportunity

Base Salary/ Set at competitive

Reviewed annually with

There 1s no prescribed Not applicable

Fees levels In the markets changes normally effective maximum to avoid setting
in which Quarto from 1 January of each year unhelpful expectations Any
operates, in order salary increases are appled in
to attract and Reviews take account of line with the outcome of the
retain executives, « scope of the role and the review and taking into account
markets in which Quarto wider factors, for example,
operates, local market inflation
+ perfermance and
experience of the
individual,
* pay levels at organisations
of a similar size and
complexity; and,
+ pay and conditions
elsewhere in the Group
Benefits Designed to be Benefits include life insurance Benefits vary by role and Not applicable
competitive in the and private medical Individual circumstance
market in which the insurance Where and eligibility 1s reviewed
individual 1s employed  appropnate, other benefits perniodically
may be offered including, but
not limited to, participation in 53925222(3?%”8; :ng;pgt:d
all- employee share schemes over the period for which
Benefits are non-pensionable  this policy applies
The Committee retains
the discretion to approve a
higher cost In exceptional
circumstances (e.g. relocation)
or In circumstances where
factors outside of the Group’s
control have materially
changed (e g. Increases
in medical premiums)
Pension To provide cost Participation in defined Up to 15% of base salary Not applicable

effective retirement
benefits

contribution plan or cash
allowance in lieu
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VARIABLE PAY

Element of

Remuneration

Purpose and
link to strategy

Operation

QOpportunity

Performance metrics

Annual
performance
bonus

Designed to
reinforce individual
performance and
contrbution to the
achievement of profit
growth and strategic
objectives

Measures are reviewed prior
to the start of the financial
year to ensure they remain
apprepriate and reinforce
the business strategy, and
performance targets are set
annually to ensure they are
appropriately stretching
and reflect those strategic
objectives At the end of
the year the Committee
determines the extent to
which these were achieved

Awards are payable in cash

Payments made under the
annual bonus are subject to
claw-back for the later of
one year following the date
of award or the completion
of the next audit of the
Group's accounts, in the
event of a fraud or matenal
misstatement of results being
identified in relation to the
year in which the bonus 1s
earned.

Maximurmn potential opportunity

of up to 60% of base salary

Typically, 10-15% of potential
1s achieved for Threshold
performance of the financial
goals and 100% for Stretching
performance.

At least half of the
annual benus 1s based
on financial objectives
with the balance on
personal objectives

The Committee will
vary the weightings
from year-to-year to
reflect the changing
strategic needs for the
business with a default
bias towards financial
objectives.

In exceptional
circumstances, the
Committee has the
ability to exercise
discretion to override
the formulaic bonus
outcome within

the hmits of the Plan
where it betieves

the outcome 15 not
truly refiective of
performance and to
ensure farrness to both
shareholders and
participants.

Medium-term
performance
bonus

Designed to reinforce
the achievemnent of
continuous profit
growth over a longer
time frame and aid
staff retention

Measures are reviewed prior
to the start of each three year
pericd to ensure they remain
appropriate and to ensure
they are appropriately
stretching At the end of the
three year period the
Committee determines the
extent to which these were
achieved

Awards are payable in cash

Payments made under the
medium-term bonus are
subject to claw-back for the
later of one year following
the date of award or the
completion of the next audit
of the Group’s accounts,

in the event of a fraud cr
material misstatement of
results being 1dentified in
relaticn to the year in which
the benus 1s earned

Maximum pctential opportunity
of up to 120% of base salary for

the three year period

Typically, 10% of potential 1s
achieved for achieving
Threshold performance and
100% for Stretching
performance

Tha medium-term
bonus 1s based entirely
on cumulative
INcreases In earnings
and i1s only paid at the
end of the three year
period based on the
cumulative result

In excepticnal
circumstances, the
Committee has the
ability to exercise
discretion to override
the formulaic bonus
outcome within the
himits of the Plan where
It believes the outcome
1s not truly reflective

of performance and

to ensure fairness

to both shareholders
and participants

140d3d 21931vy1S
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VARIABLE PAY

Element of

Purpose and

Remuneration link to strategy Operation Opportunity Performance metrics
Performance Ensures that the Awards of nominal-cost Award opportunities for Awards to Executives
Share Plan Executive’s interests {or nil-cost) options may participants are up to 50% are subject to four
(PSP) are aligned withthose  be granted annually as a of base salary year cumulative
of shareholders percentage of base salary earnings per share
through reward for Vesting I1s based on Awards of up to 100% of (EPS) and/or total
providing shareholders  performance measured over ~ Dase salary may be proviced shareholder return
with substantial four years The performance N @xceptional circumstances (TSR} performance
Increases in period normally starts at the (€9 recruitment)
shareholder value and/ beginning of the financial 20% of maximum vests for In exceptional N
or for achievement of a  year In which the date of Threshold, rising on a straight- grcums;ttanc:s. tthe
measure of sustaned  grant falls line basis to full vesting for ommittee has the
growth in earnings Stretch performance ability to exercise
over the mecum to Dwidends accrue on PSP P discretion to overnde
long term awards and are paid on those the formulaic PSP
shares which vest Award outcome within the
levels and performance Plan mits to ensure
conditions are reviewed alignment of pay
before each award cycle with the underiying
to ensure they remain performance of the
appropnate business during the
Payments made under the performance period
PSP are subject to claw-back,
for the later of one year
following date of vesting or
completion of the next audit
of the Group's accounts,
in the event of a fraud or
material misstatement of
results being identified In
refation to the years in
which the PSP s earned.
FIXED PAY

Non-executive
Directors’ fees

To reflect the time
commitment in
preparing for and
attending meetings,
the duties and
responsibilities of

the role and the
contribution expected
from the Non-
exacutive Directors

Annual fee for Chair

Apnual base fee for
non-executive Directors,
Additional fees are paid
to the Sencor Independent
Director and the Chair of
the Committees to reflect
additional respensibilities

Fees are reviewed annually,
taking into account time
commitment, responsibifities
and fees paid by comparable
companes

There 15 no prescribed
maximum. Non-executive
Director fee increases are

apphed in ine with the outcome

of the review and taking into
account wider factors, for
example, inflation

Not apphcable
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Performance measure selection and approach to target setting

The measures used under the annual bonus plan are selected annually to reflect the Group's key strategic priorities for
the year and reinforce financial performance and achievement of annual objectives as welt as individual performance
Financial measures include, but may not be mited to, profit before tax

The Comrmuttee considers that profit before tax adjusted for any exceptional items 1s the most appropriate measure
of long-term performance of the Group It 1s well-aligned with shareholder interests, provides clear visibility and the
scheme 15 simple

Performance targets are set at such a level as to be stretching and achievable, with regard to the particular strategic
priorties and economic environment, The annual bonus threshold is based on a 2% growth in profits with Stretch target
being 10% growth, The same basis 15 used for the medium-term bonus where the targets compound annually.

The Committee reviews the performance targets applying to awards made to the proposed PSP scheme annually
Awards made to participants will be based on either one or a combination of total shareholder return and cumulative
earnings per share over the measured period. These will be reported on each year in the Annual Report on Remuneration

Differences in remuneration policy operated for other employees

Quarto’s approach to annual salary reviews 1s consistent across the Group Key management personnel and senior
managers with substantial operational responsibilities are ehgible to participate inan annual and, in certain cases, the
medium-term bonus scheme with similar metrics to those used for the Chief Executive Officer Opportunities and specific
performance conditions vary by organisational level with business area-specific metncs ncorporated where appropriate

Key management personnel and senior managers are eligible to participate in the PSP. Performance conditions are
consistent for all these participants, while award opportunities may vary by organisational level but are typically hmited
to 50% of base salary

Shareholding guidelines

The Committee recognises the importance of aligning the interests of Executives with shareholders through the butllding
up of a significant shareholding in the Group. Save for the intbial award made to Marcus Leaver in May 2014, Executive
Dhrectors are required to retain shares of a value equal to 50% of the after-tax gain made on the vesting of awards under
the Plans, until they have buillt up a mimimum shareholding of a value equivalent to at least 100% of annual base salary.

Remuneration policy for new directors
When hiring or appomting a new executive director, including by way of internal promotion, the Committee may make
use of all the existing components of remuneration as follows.

Medium-Term

Component: Base Salary Benefits Pension Annual 8onus Bonus PSP
Approach Determined in ine in fine with in line with fn line with stated In tine with stated In ine with the
with the stated the stated the stated policy, with the policy, with the stated policy.
polcy, and taking policy policy relevant maximum relevant maximum
into account their pro-rated to reflect  pro-rated to reflect
previous salary the proportion of the proportion of
Initial salaries may the year served the year served

be set below market
and consideration
given to phasing
any increases

over two or three
years subject to
development in

the role

Maximum Not applicable Not Not 60% of base salary  120% of base salary  100% of base

Value applhcable apphcable over three years salary 200%
In exceptional
circumstances)
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In determining appropriate remuneration for a new executive, the Committee will take into consideration all relevant
factors (including quantum, nature of remuneration and the jurisdiction from which the candidate was recruited) to
ensure that arrangements are Iin the best interests of both The Quarto Group and 1ts shareholders The Committee
may consider it appropnate to grant an award under a structure not included in the policy, for example to ‘buy out’
incentive arrangements forfeited on leaving a previous employer, and will exercise the discretion available under Listing
Rule 9 4 2 R where necessary In doing so, the Committee will consider relevant factors including the expected value
of all cutstanding equity awards using a Monte Carlo, Black-Scholes, or other relevant equivalent valuation and, where
applicable, taking into account toughness of performance conditions attached to these awards and the iikkehihood of
those conditions being met

In cases of appointing a new Executive Director by way of internal promotion, the Group will honour any contractual
commitments made prior to their promotion to Executive Director

In cases of appointing a new non-executive Director, the approach will be consistent with the policy

Service contracts and exit payments policy
Non-executive Directors are engaged on the basis of a letter of appointment In ine with the UK Corporate Governance
Code, all Directors are subject to re-election annually at the Annual Meeting

The Chair, Peter Read, was appointed on 24 May 2016 with an initial one year contract, subject to review prior to 24 May
2017. The Chair, together with the other non-executive Directors, have a one month notice penod, and are subject to
re-election each year,

The non-executive Director Letters of Appointment are available to view at the Group's reaistered office and the
effective dates of their Letters of Appointment are as follows:

Director Date of Appointment Notice period
Peter Read 24 May 216 (coincident with the 2016 AGM) 1 month
Jess Burley 22 May 2014 Tmonth
Mike Hartley 6 August 2013 1Tmonth

Executive Director service contracts have no fixed term and have a notice pericd of not more than 12 rmonths from
either the Executive or the Group These notice periods meet best practice guidelines and give protection, mutually, to
the Group and the Executive Executive Director service contracts are avatlable to view at the Group's registered office
The dates of the Executive Director service contracts and the relevant notice period are as follows

Director Effective date of contract Notice period
Marcus Leaver 30 April 2012 12 months
Michael Connole 1September 2015 12 months (resignation submitted 30 March 2017)
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The Committee’s policy 15 to hmit severance payments on termination to pre-established contractual arrangements and
the rules of the relevant incentive plans In doing so, the Committee’s objective 1s to avoid rewarding poor performance
Furthermore, the Committee will take account of the Executive Director’s duty to mitigate their loss

Termination payments are imited to base salary and benefits during the unexpired notice period which cannot
be mitigated

No payments to past Directors or payments for loss of office were made during the year ended 31 December 2016

In addition to the contractual provisicns regarding payment on termination set out above, the Group's incentive plans
and share schemes contain provisions for termination of employment

Component Annual bonus Medium-term bonus PSP

Bad leaver No annual No annual bonus payable Outstanding awards are forfeited
bonus payable

Good leaver Ehgible for an award Elgible for an award to the extent that Outstanding awards will normally continug
to the extent that performance conditions have been and be tested for performance over the full
performance satisfied and pro-rated for the proportion  penod, and pro-rated for time based on
conditions have of the three financial years served, with the propertion of the penod served, with

been satisfied and Committee discretion to treat otherwise Commuttee discretion to treat otherwise
pro-rated fer the

propertion of the

financial year served,

with Committee

discretion to treat

otherwise

Change-of-control Eligible for an award Elgible for an award to the extent that Qutstanding awards will normally vest and
to the extent that performance conditions have been be tested for performance over the pernod
performance satisfied up to the change of control and to change-of-control, and pro-rated for
conditions have pro-rated for the proportion of the three tirne based on the proportion of the period
been satisfledup to  financial years served, with Committee served, with Committee discretion to treat
the change of control discretion to treat otherwise otherwise

and pro-rated for the
proporticn of the
financial year served,
with Committee
discretion to treat
otherwise

Any commitment made prior t¢, but due to be fulfilled after the policy comes into force, will be honoured

An individual would normally be considered a good leaver if they leave for reasons of death, imury, 1ll-health, disability,
redundancy, part of the business in which the individual is employed or engaged ceasing to be a member of the Group,
circumstances that are considered by the Committee to be retirement, or any other reason as the Committee decides
Bad leaver provisions apply under other circumstances.

External appointments

The Executive Directors may accept external appointments with the prior approval of the Board and provided only that
such appointments do not prejudice the individual’'s abiity to fulfil their duties at the Group Whether any related fees
are retained by the individual or remitted to the Group will be considered on a case-by-case basis

Hiustration of the application of the remuneration policy

The chart on page 54 shows the remuneration that the Executive Directors could be expected to obtain based on
varying performance scenanos. lllustrations are intended to provide further information to shareholders regarding the
relationship between pay and performance

Potential reward opportunities lllustrated are based on the remuneration policy presented for shareholder approval

at the Annual Meeting on 16 May 2017, apphed to the latest known fixed pay of base salarnes, pension, other benefits
and vanable pay of annual bonus, medium term bonus and PSP To better illustrate the annual potential remuneration,
the medium-term bonus potential and PSP Awards are pro-rated to an annual equivalent All remuneration is contracted
in sterling.

N illustration 1s presented for Michael Connole due to his resignation submitted on 30 March 2017, An executive search
has commenced to identify a suitable replacement Michael will step down as a directar later in 2017, until that time he
will be ehgible for his full salary, benefits and pension
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS APPLICATION OF REMUNERATION POLICY

Uss
Marcus Leaver
1.400 1,294 B Fixed
1200 [ Annual vanable
1,010 MTIP
1.000 psp
800
600 583
400
200
0
Min Performing in ine Max

with expectations

In ilustrating the application of the remuneration policy the following assumptions have been made

Minimum performance Basic salary, pension or cash in leu of pension and benefits No bonus and no vesting of the PSP,

In line with expectation Basic salary, pension or cash in heu of pension and benefits Bonus payout at 60% of the
maximum bonus PSP vesting at 60% of maximum vesting

Maximum Basic salary, pension or cash in heu of pension and benefits. Bonus payout at 100%
Full vesting of the PSP

Consideration of conditions elsewhere in the Group

When reviewing and setting executive remuneration, the Commuttee takes into account the pay and employment
conditions of all employees of the Group. The Group-wide pay review budget is one of the key factors when reviewing
the salaries of the Executive Directors

The Group has not carned out a formal employee consultation regarding Board remuneration, though it does comply
with local regulations and practices regarding employee consultation more broadly

Consideration of shareholder views
It 1s the Committee’s policy to consult with major shareholders or their chosen shareholder representative bady prior
to any changes to its Executive Director remuneration structure

O

Jess Burley
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
19 Apnl 2017
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ANNUAL REPORT
ON REMUNERATION

The Remuneration Committee
The Committee's Terms of Reference are available on the Group's website.

The Committee 1s responsible for

» Recommending to the Board the remuneration and terms and conditions of employment
of the Chair, Executive Directors and key members of senor management,
» Measuring subsequent performance as a prelude to determining the Executive Directors’
and key managers’ total remuneration on behalf of the whole Board,
+ Determining the structure and quantum of short-term and medium-term bonus schemes, and,
+ Granting awards under the PSP Share Award Scheme

The main 1ssues discussed and/or approved during the financial year under review

140434 2I1D31vH LS

+« Approval of the prior year Directors’ Remuneration Report;

« Annual review of the Executive Directors’ salanes and benefits;

+ Review of the Executive Directors’ and the senior managers’ performance under the prior year’s annual bonus
scheme, including a review of their performance against their personal objectives and approval of the bonus awards,

+ Review of the destgn and targets for the forthcoming annual bonus scheme, Including personal objectives,

» Approval of awards made in the year under the Performance Share Plan, and

+ Approval of terms for new senior management appointments falling within the remit of the Commuttee.

Advisors
The Committee has not paid fees to any advisors during 2016. During 2017 the Committee has paid fees of £31,800 to
Smith & Willamson LLP

Statement of shareholder voting at the 2016 annual meeting
The following table shows the results of the advisory vote on the 2015 Annual Remuneration Report at the
Annual Meeting on 24 May 2016.

Total
number of % of
votes votes cast
For (including discretionary) 8,869,928 9999%
Aganst 1,000 Q0%
Total votes cast 8,870,928 100%
Withheld 8,000 -

The following table shows the results of the vote on the proposal to amend the performance conditions
relating to grants under the Performance Share Plan, at the Annual Meeting on 24 May 2016.

Total

number of % of g

votes votes cast >

d

For (including discretionary) 8,673,524 9781% 0O
I

Aganst 194,404 219% f
V5]

Total votes cast 8,867.928 100% N
_|

Withheld 11,000 - g
m

Z

-

w
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

Single total figure of remuneration (audited)

The table below sets out a single figure for the total remuneration recewved by each Director for the year ended

31 December 2016 and the prior year These amounts are shown in the reporting currency, although set in sterling,
The exchange rates used in 2016 and 2015 were 135 and 153, respectively

Long-term Total
Base Salary Benefits' Pension Annual Bonus? Incentives? remuneration
2016 2015 2006 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Executive Directors $'000 $00C $000 $000 $00C $000 $0O0C0 $CO0 $000 $000 $000 $C00
Marcus Leaver 488 536 & 8 73 80 34 305 2,651 - 3252 929
Michael Conncle 324 122 [ 2 49 18 - 59 - - 378 201
Bob Morley* 17 258 - 21 - - - - - - 17 279
Long-term Total
Fees? Benefits Pension Annual Bonus incentives? remuneration

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Non-executive Directors $'000C $'00C $000 $000 $000 000 $'000 $'000 %000 $000 000 $000

Peter Read* 57 - - - - - - - - - 57 -
Mike Hartley 60 69 - - - - - - - - 60 62
Jess Burley 48 54 - - - - - - - - 48 54
Tim Chadwick®* 54 153 - - - - - - - - 54 153
Christopher Millg* 19 54 - - - - - - - - 19 4
Marie Louise Windeler™ 19 0 - - - - - - - - 19 -

For period for which he/she was a Director/Non-executive Director

Benefits comprise private med:cal insurance contrnibutions

Annual bonus for performance over the relevant financial year Further details can be found on page 60

©On 31 March 2016, Marcus Leaver's Performance Share Plan award of 666,666 shares vested and were capable to being exercised at any time
after 30 June 2076 On 9 August 2016 the options were exercised and the shares were transferred to Marcus Leaver out of treasury stock
The closing mid-market price on that date was £2 64, Upon exercise of the options, he was also entitled tc a dividend equivalent payment in
respect of dividends paid from 31 December 2012 and 9 August 2016, subject to withholdings tax and National Insurance contributions The
dividend equivalent payment was £203,890

4 Detalls of non-executtve Directors’ fees can be found cn page 60

(TR
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Directors’ shareholdings
The share interests of the Directors who held office at 31 December 2016 and of therr connected persons in the share
capital of the Company are shown below

Number of share Number of US$0 10
options of common stock shares of common stock i
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 5'
Executive Directors 2016 2015 2016 2015 =
Marcus Leaver 241,214 750,398 383,500 14,000 5
Michael Connole 108,980 60.000 15,423 10,000 i
m
Number of US$0 10 S
shares of common stock E
31 December 31 December
Non-executive Directors 2016’ 2015!
Peter Read 10,000 -
Jess Burley? 3,300 3,300
Mike Hartley 10,000 10,000
Tim Chadwick - -
Chrnistopher Mills - 100,000

Marie-Louise Windeler - -

' Ordate of appointment
?  Jess Burley purchased 4,055 shares on 4 Aprl 2017

During the vear the market pnce of the shares of common stock ranged between 221p and 310p.

The mid-market price at 31 December 2016 was 304p

Directors’ Share Options
Shares: Common Stock of $0.10 each

Face value  Fair value

As at Asat atdateof atdate of Price at
1 January 31 December grant grant exercise
DCate of grant 2016 Granted  Exercised 2016 (E'000) (£'0C0) date
Marcus Leaver 22/04/2014 666,666 - (666,666) - 1133 153 £2.64
24/09/2015 83,732 - - B3,732 175 239 n/a
19/C4/2016 - 73,750 - 73,750 181 187 n/a
4/08/2016 - 83,732 - B3,732 175 239 n/a g
750,398 157,482 (666,666) 241,234 ]z>
5
Michael Connole 24/09/2015 60,000 - - 60,000 125 7 n/a ”
19/04/2016 - 48,980 - 48,980 120 124 n/a E
60000 48980 R 108,980 <
All awards under the PSP schemes have a 4 year vesting period. For the option grant on 22 April 2014 to Marcus Leaver é
shareholder approval was gained at the Annual Meeting held on 22 May 2014 to amend the vesting terms to 30 June 2016
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Executive director base salaries/fees
During the year, Marcus Leaver, the Chief Executive Cfficer, received £361,375 1n salary His salary was increased
by 3 25% for 2017 This was set in hine with the typical increase across the good performing UK employee population.

The next salary review date will be 1 January 2018

During the year, Michael Connole, the Chief Financial Officer, was paid £240,000 in salary in line with his contract
on appointment dated 1 September 2015

During the year, Bob Morley, the Deputy Chair, received £12,500 1n salary Bob Morley resigned on 31 March 2016

Pension and other benefits
The Group makes a contribution to the personal pension schemes of Marcus Leaver and Michael Connote equal to 15%
of their base salary which may, at their discretion, be taken as cash in line with the policy. Benefits are in line with the policy

Annual performance bonus

2016 bonus framework

For the 2016 financial year, the maximum annual bonus opportunity was 60% of salary for Marcus Leaver and
50% for Michael Connole

The annual bonus opportunity was split between targeted growth in adjusted profit before tax and other financial and
personal goals. 45% of total bonus potential for Marcus Leaver and 42.5% for Michael Connole 1s based on growth in
adjusted profit before tax The balance 1s based on achievement of personal objectives

The adjusted group profit before tax target was based on the 2015 actual result, adjusted upwards to reflect the
becker&mayer and Harvard Common Press acquisitions giving a Threshold of $15 65m and a Stretch of $16.72m

The actual adjusted profit before tax for the year for bonus purposes was $14 5m and thus neither the Threshold nor
the Stretch targets were exceeded and no bonus 1s payable in respect of this element of the overall annual bonus for
both Marcus Leaver and Michael Connole.

Personal objectives for Marcus Leaver and Michael Connole were set by the Committee in discussion with the Chairman.
For both executive directors, personal objectives included both financial and non financial cnitena with 15% of salary
potentially payable for Marcus Leaver and 7 5% of salary potentially payable for Michaet Connole Neither director
achieved the financial objective which was based on a reduction in net debt,

After taking account of their financial targets and personal goals, bonus awards were’

% of

$'000 maximum

Marcus Leaver 34 12%
Michael Connocle - n/a

2017 annual bonus framework
Following the review of Smith & Wilhamson LLP, the Remuneration Committee plan to review the remuneration
structure in 2017 to be implemented 1n 2018 following approval at the Annual Meeting
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Medium-term performance bonus

2014-2016 medium-term bonus framework

This 1s the third and final year of the current medium term bonus scheme which 1s designed to motivate management
to focus on continual profit improvement, The Commuttee recognises that profit development 1s not within an annual
financial cycle Rather, the publications (which are a substantial part of the Group's businesses) are substantially
created in the year before the sales are achieved Thus within any one financial year, there s a limut to the influence of
management on profits These in-year influences are the marketing of the publications and cost control Emphasis on
a single year can motivate cost cutting of creative publishing resources to the detriment of the following year’s resuits
Thus the Committee has developed a mix of annual and medium term perfarmance goals

To most align these goals with shareholders, the targets are based on improving profits from the prior year(s) as the
Committee believes that ultimate sharehclder value is most driven by a continual improvement in profits from which
cash i1s generated for dividend growth

1H40d3y 21931vd 1S

The profit targets are based on a base year of 2013. The targets have been changed by the Commuttee to reflect the
preferred measure of adjusted profit before tax in iine with the Annual Bonus Awards Base 1s the achieved adjusted
profits before tax for 2013 adjusted upwards to account for a one-off gain in 2014 on interest charges from the effect
of terminating an interest rate swap, In 2013. There has been no adjustment for acquisitions The target i1s based on
compound increases over three years over the Base of $12 46m giving Threshold for a 9 3% increase at $13.62m and
Stretch for a 33 1% increase at $16 6m.

The Adjusted Profit before Tax for the year ended 31 December 2016 for the purposes of the Medium Term performance
pbonus was $12 42m, on the base figure for 2013 of $12 46m, therefore the target performance was missed and no
medium-term performance bonus 1s payvable to Marcus Leaver

Long-term incentives

PSP Awards

Marcus Leaver was granted an award of 666,666 shares on 22 May 2014 which did not vest until 30 June 2016, subject
to performance cniteria of achieving an average share price of 250p per share over any consecutive 90 day pernod
occurring before the vesting pericd On 31 March 2016, the Company confirmed that the performance criteria attaching
to the award had been achieved, and that the shares became capable of being exercised at any time after 20 June 2016.
On 9 August 2016, 666,666 shares were transferred to Marcus Leaver out of Treasury Stock The mid-market closing
price on that date was 263.75p Marcus Leaver informed the Company on 12 August 2016 that he had sold 313,333
shares at a price of 250p to settle the tax liability arising on the exercise of the award

On 18 Apnl 2016, Marcus Leaver was granted 73,750 PSP Awards and Michael Connole was awarded 48,980 PSP
Awards. The value of these awards was £180,688 and €120,000 respectively based on a closing price of 245p on the
day before They represented 50% of salary respectively On 24 May 2016, following approval at the Annual Meeting
held on that date, Marcus Leaver was issued with a further 83,732 PSP Awards These awards which required
shareholder consent, are treated as though they were 1ssued on 24 Septernber 2015 and represented 50% of salary
at that time The value of these awards was £175,000 based on the closing price of 2 09p on 23 September 2015.

Half of the awards set out above have a performance condition relating to cumulative Adjusted Diluted EPS
performance for the four financial years 2016 to 2019 inclusive The other half of these awards have a performance
condition relating to total shareholder returns (‘'TSR') from a combination of dividends, capital returns and share
price growth (measured as an average over a 20 business day period leading up to grant and vesting as approprate)
The TSR pericd runs from 18 Apnl 2016 to 18 April 2020

Targets for EPS are annual compounded growth of 5% for Threshold to 10% for Stretch Targets for total shareholder
returns over the penod are annual compounded growth of 7% for Threshold and 15% for Stretch

The Committee believes the TSR directly measures shareholder returns and thereby aligns the goals of management
and shareholders However, TSR can be affected by a variety of investment factors, which are far removed from those
which management can directly affect, The Committee believes that cumulatrve diluted EPS to be a good measure of
managements’ long-term impact on the business and which over time translates into shareholder value Thus a
combination of TSR and EPS 1s believed to be suitable goals for the PSP Awards. Major shareholders have been
consulted about adding the TSR condition.

SINIWILVLS TWIONVYNIZ
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Chair and non-executive director fees

with effect from the date of the Annual Meeting in 2014, the non-executive Directors received an annual base fee
of £35,000, with an additional annual fee for Audit and Remuneration Committee Chairs of £3,500 and the Senior
Independent Director of £3,000 The Chair receives an annual fee of £70,000

The non-executive Directors' fees for 2017 are as follows. Jess Burley £38.500 and Mike Hartley £41,500. Following
a review of Peter Read’s appointment in accordance with his letter of appointment, it 1s proposed that he receives
a fee increase of £2,500, increasing his annual fee to £72,500, to take effect subseqguent to the Annual Meeting

on 16 May 2017

Relative importance of spend on pay
The graph below shows Quarto’s distnbutions to shareholders and total employee pay expenditure for the financial
years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016

372
40 342 349
308
30
20
10
31 29
0 N
Total employee pay Intellectual property spend Total dvidend

W 206 [J 205

Total employee pay has been impacted by exchange rate movements.

Review of group performance

The chart on page 61 compares the value of £100 invested In Quarto shares, including re-invested dividends, on

31 December 2010 compared to the egquivalent investment in the FTSE Small Cap (ndex, over the last eight financial
years The FTSE Small Cap Index has been chosen as it comprises companies of a broadly similar size to Quarto
The table below shows the single figure for the CEO over the same penod.

2009 2010 201 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

CEO single fiigure of 729 750 996 1020 870 842 929 3252
remuneration including
bonus ($'000)

Annual bonus awarded $ amount ($'000s) - 392 572 1212 233 169 305 34
% of maximum opportunity - - - - 569% 335% 95.0% 12 0%
PSP vesting $ amount ($'C00s) - - - - - - - 2,651
% of maximum opportunity - - - - - - - 100%

' The figure for 2012 1s a combinaticn of remuneration of Laurence Qrbach, the previous CEQ, and Marcus Leaver for the respective periods
2 Discretionary

2015 annual performance bonus
The Committee considered, in ight of the restatement of 2015 accounts, whether any clawback i1s activated on 2015
annual performance bonus awards and concluded no clawback I1s reguired
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Performance graph
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Change in CEO remuneration and for employees as a whole
The table below shows the change in CEO annual cash remuneration, defined as salary, taxable benefits and annual
bonus, compared to the average employees for 2015 to 2018

Average

for other

CEQO empioyees

$'000 2016 2015 % change % change
Salary 488 536 (9%) (2 4%)
Taxable benefits 6 8 (25%) (4%

Annual vanable bonus 34 305 (88%) 33%
Total 528 849 (38%) {1.6%)

Salary, benefits and bonuses have been impacted by exchange rate movements.

Dilution limits

The Group has at all times complied with the dilution imits set out In the rules of its share plans (principally a limit
of 10% 1n 10 years) In the 10 year period to 31 December 2016, awards made under the Group's share schemes
represented 6 8% (2015 4%) of the Group’s 1ssued share capital.

Directors’ shareholding guidelines and share scheme interests
Marcus Leaver’'s award of 666,666 shares (granted May 2014) vested in June 2016 and he was not required to retain
any proportion of these shares

Otherwise, to date, there has been no requirement for Executive Directors to retain shares as no other shares have
vested and they are comphant with the shareholding guidelines

¢/

Jess Burley
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
19 Apnl 2017
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Group
The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements of The Quarto Group, Inc, for the year ended
December 31, 2016.

Results and dividends

The loss for the year 15 $5.3m (2015 restated profit of $8.5m). The Directors propose a final ordinary dividend of
9 87¢ (796p) per share 25, 9 41c (1 9p) per share), amounting to $2 Om (205 $1.9m), subject to approvatl at the
Annual Meeting

Details of significant events since the balance sheet date are included in Note 31 to the financial statements. An
indication of likely future developments in business of the Group and included in the Strategic Report on page 15,

Directors

Serving Directors during the year and subsequently, were as follows
P. Read (Non-executive) Chairman Appointed 24 May 2016
M. E. Leaver

M. D. Conncle Reswgnation submitted 30 March 2017

J. Burley {Non-executive)

M. G. Hartley {Non-executive)

T. J. M. Chadwick (Non-executive) Chairman, Resigned 24 May 2016

M. L. Windeler (Non-executive) Appointed 24 May 2016, Resigned 27 September 2016

R. J. Morley {Non-executive) Deputy Chairman, Resigned 31 March 2016

C.H.B. Milis {(Non-executive) Resigned 24 May 2016

None of the Directors have a service agreement of more than one year’s duraticn All of the directors are subject
to annual re-election The terms and conditions of appointment of non-executive directors are made available for
inspection at the company’s registered office.

No Director had a contract of significance with the company or its subsidianes during the year

Disclosure of information under Listing Rule 9.8.4
For the purpose of compliance with LR 9 8 4 R, the following information 1s included by reference within the
Director's Report:

LR984R Location
Directors' remuneration Directors' Remuneratton Report, pages 55 to 61
Details of Long-term Incentive Plans Directors' Remuneration Report, pages 55 to 61
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Employees

Applications for employment of
disabled persons are always fully
considered, bearing in mind the
aptitudes of the applicant concerned
In the event of staff becoming
disabled, every effort is made to
ensure that their employment with the
Group continues and that approprate
training is arranged It 1s the policy of
the Group that the training, career
development and promaotion of
disabled persons should, as far as
possible, be identical with that of
other employees.

The Group places considerable value
on the involvement of its employees
and has continued its practice of
keeping them informed on matters
affecting them as employees and

on the vanous factors affecting the
performance of the Group This I1s
achieved through formal and informal
meetings. Employees are consulted
regularly on a wide range of matters

The Board recognises the importance
of diversity amongst its employees
and 1s committed to ensuring that
employees are selected and promoted
on the basis of merrt and ability,
regardless of age, gender, race,
religion, sexual orientation or
disability. The gender spht across

the Group for the year ended

31 December 2016 1s iflustrated

In the table below,

Males Females

Beoard 4 1
Senior Leadership 5 3
Team

All employees 136 24

The Group's Senior Leadership Team
comprises the Group’'s CEQ and CFQ,
together with seven senior managers

The gender spiit of the Senior
Leadership Team changed post
year-end to five males and four
females.
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Substantial shareholders

The Directors have been advised of the following shareholders who have an

interest of 3% or more In the shares of the common stock of the Company at
31 December 2016 and 31 March 2017 31 March 2017 is the latest practicable

date prior to the publication of this report

w

_|

As at As at ]72

31 December 2016 31 March 2017 ﬂ

Number %holding Number % heolding |}

of of the of of the o

US$0.10 issued  US$0.10 1ssued o

shares of capital shares of capital 8

common ofthe commen of the X

stock Company stock Company =
Mr L F Orbach 2,934,185 14,35 2,934,185 14,35
Liontrust Asset Management 2,630,282 12.87 2,556,282 12.50
Herald Investment Management 1,812,045 8.86 1,812,045 8.86
Henderson Global Investors 1,160,233 568 1160233 568
Unicorn Asset Management 1,081,582 529 150,000 563
Gresham House Asset Management 898,837 440 898,837 4 40

Limited

River & Mercantile Asset Management 896,555 432 401,555 1.96
AXA Investment Managers UK 875,000 428 875000 428
Lazard Freres Gesticn 830,000 406 993674 486
Cavendish Asset Management 791,000 3287 685000 3.35
JP Morgan Asset Management 769,969 377 769,969 377

The nghts attaching to the Company’s  Risk management strategy

shares of common stock are set out The Group 1s exposed to a number

in the Company's By-Laws, which can  of principal risks and uncertainties

be found on the Company’s website, The Group’s financial risk management
www guarto com The rules for strategy 15 set out In Note 22

appointment and replacement of the  Operational risks are set out on
Directors are set out in the Company's  page 22 of the Financial Review
By-Laws The powers of the Directors
are set out in the Company's By-Laws, Corporate governance

The Company is commutted to high
The Company may purchase Its own  standards of corporate governance
shares through the market or by and supports the principles laid down
tender at a price which will hot exceed In the UK Corporate Governance Code
the average prices at which business issued by the Financial Reporting
was done for 10 business days before  counal in 2016 (the "Code’ The
the purchase 1s made or, in the case of  poard considers that the Company
a purchase through the market, at the a5 been in compliance with the
market price, provided that it 1s not principles and prowisions of the Code,
more than 5% above such average, with the exception of those outhned
The Company rmay amend its By-Laws  pelow, throughout the year ended
by special resolution approved by the 21 pecember, 2016 and to the date
affirmative vote of the holders of of this report
a majornity of the voting power of
the shares. The Directors’ interests in
the shares of the Company are set out
on page 57 There are no restrictions
on the number of shares that Directors
can hold
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The principles of the Code have been
appled as follows

a) The Board of Directors represents
the shareholders’ interests in
maintaining and growing a
successful business including
opbimising consistent long-term
financial returns

b) As at 31 December 2016, the Board
comprised two Executive Directors
and three Non-executive Directors
The Chairman 1s responsible for
the leadership of the Board and
ensuring its effectiveness The
different roles of the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer are
acknowledged The senior
independent Non-executive
Director is Michael Hartley who s
available to shareholders, if they
have concerns which are not able
to be resolved through normal
channels Three Non-executive
Directors, Peter Read, Michael
Hartiey and Jess Burley are
considered by the Board to be
independent During the year
Timothy Chadwick (resigned
24 May 2016) and Christopher Mills
(resigned 24 May 2016) were not
deemed to be independent
because of their relationship with
Harwood Capital LLP, which was
a major shareholder Bob Morley,
(resigned 31 March 2016), who co-
founded the Group and previously
served as a Director until May 2012,
was also not deemed independent.

There are a number of standing
Committees of the Board to which
vanous matters are delegated. They
all have formal terms of reference
approved by the Board which are
availlable on the Company's website
(www guarto com).
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Attendance by Directors at Board and Committee meetings in 2016

Audit Nominations Remuneration

Board Committee Committee Committee
Jess Burley 5 2 3 4
Timothy Chadwick’ 2 - 1 2
Michael Hartley 7 4 3 4
Marcus Leaver® 7 4 3 2
Michael Connole® 8 4 - 2
Christepher Mills? - - 1 1
Robert Morley? 1 - - -
Peter Read* 5 4 2 2
Marie-Louise Windeler® 3 2 - -
Total number of meetings 8 4 3 4

Timothy Chadwick resigned on 24 May 2016

Christopher Mills resigned on 24 May 2016
Robert Morley resigned on 31 March 2016

Mare-Louise Windeler appointed on 24 May 2016 and resigned on 27 September 2016
These Directors are not members of the Audit or Remuneration Committees and attend

1
z
I
4  Peter Read appointed on 24 May 2016
5
&

by invitation only

¢ The Board met eight times in
2016 Attendance details are
set out above A formal agenda
is prepared for each meeting and
all board papers and information
are circulated to the Board at
least a week before the meetings

d) All of the Directors are subject to
re-election by the shareholders at
the Annual Meeting The Board s
satisfied to support the re-election
of Peter Read, Mike Hartley and
Jess Burley as non-executive
Directors as they have individually

produced excellent performance in

their duties and have shown a high
level of commitment to therr roles.
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e) The remuneration of the Executive

3

Directors s recommended by

the Remuneration Committee,
comprising Jess Burley, who is the
Committee Chairman, Michael
Hartley and Peter Read. A separate
report with respect to Directors’
remuneration 1s included on pages
55 to 61 The Committee meets

at least three times a year At year
end 31 December 2016 the
Committee had met four times.

The Audit Committee 1s comprised
of Michael Hartley, who 1s Committee
Chairman, and Jess Burley The
Board 1s satisfied that Michael
Hartley, together with Jess Burley,
has appropnate financial experience
to fulfil their role Further details of
the Committee's work can be found
on pages 43 to 45



g) The Nominations Committee 15
comprised of Peter Read, who s
Committee Chairman, Michael
Hartley, Jess Burley and Marcus
Leaver Details of the work of the
Nominations Committee during the
year are set out inits report on
page 42

h) A formal review of the performance
of the Board, its Committees and
the Directors was carried out
before the year end, led by the
Chairman and assisted by the
Company Secretary. A questionnaire
was used as part of the process and
individual performance was
reviewed by the Chairman The
Chairman’s own performance
was subject to a review led by the
Senior independent Director. The
output from the appraisal confirmed
that the Board and its Committees
were operating effectively

iy The Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer are
responsible for investor relations.
They meet with major shareholders
during the course of the year to
ensure that they develop an
understanding of their views,which
are commurnicated to the rest of the
Board at Board meetings The
Non-executive Chairman and
Senior Independent Director meet
with major shareholders from time
to time. Shareholders are invited to
attend the Annual Meeting at least
twenty-one days in advance of the
meeting All Directors attend the
meeting which 1s used to
communicate with shareholders
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1} The Board has a procedure for
Directors to take independent
professional advice at the
Company's expense, If required

k) All Directors have access to
the advice and services of the
Company Secretary

1> Quarto has arranged appropriate
insurance cover in respect of legal
action against the Directors

m)The Company has an established
whistle-blowing policy

The provisions of the Code not
complied with are as follows

A 31 - As noted above, Timothy
Chadwick, the Chairman of the Board
until 24 May 2016, was not independent

The Board will continue to review its
corporate governance arrangements,
in the light of the Code, as the Group
develops and grows, and 1n particular
will review those provisions that are
not currently complied with

The Directors consider that the annual
report and accounts, taken as a whole,
are fair, balanced and understandable
and provide the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the Group's
performance, business model

and strategy
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Greenhouse gas emissions
reporting

During the year, the Group worked
with Energy Management LLP, an
energy procurement and carbon
consultancy, to develop GHG reporting
protocol based on DEFRA and World
Resource Institute guidehnes

The Group has chosen to use
Operational Control in their approach
to reporting utiity data, electricity and
natural gas from UK and International
operations. This includes sites that
have been disposed of during the
reporting period Scope 1 (Natural
Gas) and Scope 2 (Electricity) are
reported on below, but the Group are
not reporting on Scope 3 emissions
covering ermissions from transport and
emissions from fully serviced offices
where only a service charge is apphied.

The Group has identified GHG
(Greenhouse Gas) emiIssIONs per
employee as the most appropriate
avallable KPI (referred to as the
intensity ratio) and has chosen 2014
as our Base Year, following the
disposal of our silk screen printing
business in 2013

Global GHG emissions

140435 21931vYLS

2016 2015

Tonnes of CO,e
Scope 1 13 17
Scope 2 258 268
Total GHG 271 285
emissions (CO,e)
Average number 499 321
of staff
Emissions per staff 0.54 089
member

*  Excluding staff at fully serviced offices
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Risk management and
internal controls

The Board i1s responstble for the
Group’s system of internal control
and for reviewing its effectiveness
As stated previcusly, the Directors
have carried out a robust assessment
of the principal businesses and
considered the controls in place to
eliminate or mitigate the impact of
key risks The Board has in place risk
management systems in relation to
the Company's financial reporting
process and the Group's process for
the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements However, such
systems are designed to manage
rather than ehminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives and
can provide only reasonabie and not
absoiute assurance against material
misstatement or loss

Established procedures are in place

to identify and consolidate reporting
entities. Our control activities include
policies and practices covering
appropriate authorisation and approval
of transactions, the application of
financial reporting standards and
reviews of significant judgements

and financial performance

The main elements of the internal
control and financial reporting
systems are;

a) The results of indnidual operating
segments are reported and
reviewed by the Board at 1ts
meetings during the year

b The management reports of each
operating segment are tallored to
suit the business and management
needs of local management, Each
operating segment has its own key
performance indicators and these
are regularly reviewed and assessed

Governance
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<) In addition to monthly reporting,
individual operating units report
certain management information
rmore frequently, where 1t is
considered appropriate

d) All operating units report their
bank balances weekly and a report
15 produced summarising the
Group position

e) The Chief Executive Officer and
the Chief Financial Officer make
frequent visits to all operating
segments. These visits mclude
reviews of the internal control
and financial reporting systems
In 2017, dedicated internal aucht
resource will assume responsibility
for internal audit reviews, reporting
directly to the Audit Committee

£

St

All cperating units prepare annual
budgets and cash flow forecasts
which are reviewed by the Board.

The UK Corporate Governance

Code introduced a requirement that
the Directors perform on-going
rmonitoring and review of the
effectiveness of the Group's system of
internal controls, to cover alf controls
including financial, operational,
comphance, and nisk management.
The Board confirms that there are
ongoing processes covering the
identificatian, evaluation and
management of the sigruficant risks
faced by the Group and covers all
material controls The processes are
carned out through Group Board
meetings, quarterly subsidiary
management meetings, discussion
and review by the Executive Board
and the finance department during
the several visits per year to individual
operating units, and discussions
with professional advisers where
appropriate The Board identified

66

significant falhngs in respect of
financial reporting controls during

the year, which together with remedial
action s discussed in the Audit
Committee Report on pages 43 to 45
We will continue to develop our risk
management framework during 2017

AL

Anne Crompton

Secretary

19 April 2017

Company Registration Number
FCO 13814
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
IN RESPECT OF THE DIRECTORS REPORT AND
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for
preparing the Directors’ Report,

the Directors’ Remuneration Report
and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law

and regulations The Company 1s
incorporated in the State of Delaware,
United States and 1s subject to

the law of that state which places

no requirement for annual reporting
to shareholders upon the Directors
However, since the Company has a
listing on the London Stock Exchange
and a place of business in the UK,
the Directors are reguired to prepare
financial statemnents which comply
with certain provisions which are
contained within the Listing Rules of
the UK Financial Conduct Authorty
(the Listing Rules) and UK company
law for overseas companies.

The Company 15 an ‘overseas’
company within the meaning of
the Companies Act 2006

The Directors have elected to prepare
the Group financial statements in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted

by the EU, and the parent Company
financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and UK GAAP,
including FRS102 ‘The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in

the UK and Republic of ireland’

The Directors have accepted
responsibility for preparing Group
financial statements as required by
IFRSs as adopted by the EU which
present fairly the financial position
and the performance of the group
The Companies Act 2006 provides In
relation to such financial statements
that references in the relevant part of
that Act to financial statements giving
a true and fair view are references to
their achieving a fair presentation.

The Directors have accepted
responsibihty for preparing parent
Company financial statements which
give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs and profit or loss of the
parent company.

In prepanng the parent Company
financial statements, the Directors
are required to.

+ select suitable accounting policies
and then apply them consistently,

+ make judgements and accounting
estimates that are reasonable
and prudent;

+ state whether Financial Reporting
Standard 102 ‘The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable
in the UK and Republic of Ireland’
has been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial
statements; and

+ prepare the financial statements on
the going concern basis unless 1t 1s
inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.
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In preparing the Group financial
statements, international Accounting
Standard 1 requires that Directors.

« properly select and apply
accounting policies,

+ present information, including
accounting policies, in 3 manner
that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable
information;

« provide additional disclosures
when compliance with the
specific requirements in IFRSs
are insufficient to enable users to
understand the impact of particular
transactions, other events and
conditions on the entity’s
financial position and financial
performance, and

+ make an assessment of the
company’s ability to continue
as a going concern

The Directors are responsible for
keeping adequate accounting

records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Company’s transactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of
the Company and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements
and the Remuneration report comply
with the Companies Act 2006 and
Article 4 of the |AS Regulation They
are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud

and other irregularities

140434 21931vd1s
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
DIRECTORS REPORT AND THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

The Directors confirm that.

« 5o far as each director is aware,
there i1s no relevant audit
information of which the
Company's auditor is unaware; and

+ the Directors have taken all the
steps that they ought to have taken
as Directors 1n order to make
themselves aware of any refevant
audht inforrnation and to establish
that the auditor is aware of that
information

The Directors are responsible for
preparing the annual report In
accordance with apphcable law and
regulations Having taken advice from
the Audit Committee, the Directors
consider the annual report and the

financial statements, taken as a whaole,

provides the information necessary to
assess the Company’s performance,
business model and strategy and is
fair, balanced and understandable

The Directors are responsible for

the mamtenance and integrity of the
corporate and financial information
inciuded on the Company’s website
Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements
may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions

We confirm to the best of
our knowledge:

.

the Group Himancial statermnents,
prepared in accordance with IFRSs
as adopted by the European Union,
give a true and fair view of the
assets, labilities, financial position
and profit or loss of the Group and
the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole,
the Strategic Report inciudes a fair
review of the development and
performance of the busmess and
the position of the Company and
the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole,
together with a description of the
principal rnsks and uncertainties
that they face, and

the annual report and financial
staterments, taken as a whoile, are faw,
balanced and understandable, and
provide the inforrmation necessary
for shareholders to assess the
Company’s posttion, performance,
business model and strategy

REa,

Anne Crompton
Secretary
19 Apnl 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF THE QUARTO GROUP, INC.

Opinion on financial statements of The Guarto Group, Inc.
In our opinion:

« the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs
as at 31 December 2016 and of the group’s loss for the year then ended;

» the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union;

+ the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice, including FRS 102 ‘'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland’; and

+ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
which would have applied were the company incorporated in the United Kingdom.

The financial statements that we have audited comprise’

* the consolidated income statement,

* the consolidated statement of comprehensive income;

* the consolidated balance sheet,

» the consolidated statement of changes in equity;

+ the consoiidated cash flow statement,

+ the related notes to the consolidated financial statements 1to 32,

+ the parent company balance sheet,

* the parent company statement of changes in equity, and

+ the related notes to the parent company financial statements 1to 9

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial statements Is
applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union. The financial reporting framework that has been applied
in the preparation of the parent company financial statements 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 'The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’

140d3d 2193194 1S

Summary of our audit approach

Key risks The key risks that we identified 1n the current year were

«  Accounting for the potential Books & Gifts Direct ('BGD”) disposal transactions;
+ BGD Australia Stock in transit accounting and prior year adjustment;

+ Going concern and covenant complance,

«  Acguisition accounting for becker&mayer,

+  Assessment cof the carrying value of goodw:ll of Quarto US 'QUS’,

+  Assessment of the carrying value of pre-publication costs, and

»  Assessing the level of sales returns against revenue recognised.

within this report, any new risks are identified with .~ and any risks which are the same as the
pnor year identified with >,

Materialty The materiality that we used in the current year was $745,000 (2015 $697,000) which was
determined on the basis of 5.7% of adjusted profit before tax (although our adjusted profit
before tax does not add back amortisation of intangibles)

Scoping We complete full scope audits of Quarto US and Quarto UK compenents We also include
Australia, New Zealand and Hong Kong as full scope audits.

These locations represent the principal business units and account for 98% of the Group's
revenue (2015 99%), 94% of the Group's adjusted profit before tax (2015: 97%) and 99% of the
Group's net assets (2015 98%)

Significant changes «  Following management announcing their intention to divest the BGD business and given the
In our approach estimated proceeds were significantly below the carrying value of the goodwill and net
assets, we therefore identified this as a key audit nsk
+ As a result of Group management’s :dentification of material errors in the stock in transit 'SIT’
balance in Australia we identified this as a new key risk
+  As a result of management identifying that the Q4 2016 Cashflow after debt service (CFADS")
covenant test had failed, we identified going concern and covenant compliance as a key risk
+« We included the acquisition of becker&mayer as a key risk given that this was a significant
acquisition in the year
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT CONTINUED

Going concern and the directors’ assessment of the principal risks that would threaten

the solvency or liquidity of the group

As required by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the
directors’ statement regarding the appropriateness of the
going concern basis of accounting contained within Note
to the financial statements and the directors’ statement on
the longer-term viability of the group contained within the
financial review on page 29

Woe are required to state whether we have anything matenal
to add or draw attention to in relation to.

« the directors’ confirmation on page 22 that they have
carried out a robust assessment of the principal risks
facing the group, including those that would threaten
its business model, future performance, solvency or
hgquidity,

» the disclosures on pages 22 and 23 that describe
those risks and explain how they are being managed
or mitigated:

+ the directors’ statement in Note 1 to the financial

statements about whether they considered it appropriate

to adopt the going concern basis of accounting In
preparing them and their identification of any material
uncertainties to the group’s ability to continue to do so
over a period of at least twelve months from the date of
approval of the financial statements, and

+ the directors’ explanation on page 29 as to how they
have assessed the prospects of the group, over what
peniod they have done so and why they consider that
period to be appropriate, and their statement as to
whether they have a reasonable expectation that the
group will be able to continue in operation and meet Its
liabilities as they fall due over the period of their
assessment, including any related disclosures drawing
attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions

We confirm that we have nothing material to add or
draw attention to in respect of these matters.

We agreed with the directors’ adoption of the going
concern basis of accounting and we did not identify any
such material uncertainties. However, because not all
future events or conditions can be predicted, this
statement is not a guarantee as to the group’s ability

to continue as a going concern.

Independence

We are required to comply with the Financial Reporting
Council's Ethical Standards for Auditors and confirm that
we are independent of the group and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
those standards

We confirm that we are independent of the group and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with those standards. We also confirm we
have not provided any of the prohibited non-audit
services referred to in those standards.
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Our assessment of risks of material misstatement
The assessed risks of matenal misstatement described below are those that had the greatest effect on our audit
strategy. the allocation of resources in the audit and directing the efforts of the engagement team

~. Accounting for the potential BGD disposal transactions

Risk description

The Group has been seeking to dispose of its BGD Austraha and New Zealand businesses
Heads of terms were signed in January 2017 and further negotiations followed. A disposal
In Austraha was agreed on 25 March 2017 and completed on 31 March 2017 for
consideration of A$1 together with the assignment of A$1.9m of certain debts owed by
the master franchisees acquiring the business to BGD Australia New Zealand disposal
discussions remain ongoing. These transactions gave rise to management judgements in
particular in relation to the impact on the valuation of the business grven the actual and
potential proceeds were significantly below the carrying value of the goodwill and net
assets, resulting In an exceptional iImpairment of $14.2m.

Management have also set out supplementary information on the face of the income
statermnent to show the results of the BGD segment separately, as the transactions did not
meet the assets held for sale cnteria at the balance sheet date, and management thought
this additional disclosure would be beneficial to the readers. This was discussed by the
Audit Committee (see page 44) Note 5 to the accounts sets out the materal impairments
recognised as exceptional items and subsequent events Note 31 sets out the status of

the transactions

How the scope of our audit
responded te the risk

* We obtained and reviewed the signed sale and purchase agreement for the Australia
disposal

» Woe obtaned the breker information in relation to the New Zealand discussions

+« We reviewed a report from management’s external advisors relating tc potential Australia
and New Zealand disposal options and valuation impacts and considered the evidence
contained in the report

« We reviewed the Group's board minutes to confirm the board’s conclusions on potential
transactions in 2017

«  We considered the component auditor reporting in particular on receivables confirmations
recelved.

Key observations

+  We cencluded, consistent with management, that the BGD transaction completed post year
end and did not represent an asset held for sale at the balance sheet date.

+ Cur audit identified adjustments to the local reported results which were corrected by
Group management. At a Group level these adjustments were offset against the Greup's
impairment charge arising from the estimated transaction proceeds with no overall impact
on the segment results.

+ Management’s estimated proceeds based on the concluded transaction, existing
discussions and other availlable information appeared reasonable

~ BGD Australia Stock in transit accounting and prior year adjustment

Risk description

Group management's identification of matenal errors in the stock in transit *SIT' inventory
balance, increasing cost of sales by $C 7m on the 2015 results and reducing 2014 and earher
pericd retained earnings by $1 Om in Australia, required assessment of the nature and timing
of the errors to determine the appropriate corrections and whether there was a prior period
impact which may result in a prior year restatement.

A high level assessment was performed by a third party adwviser of the business UK
management then undertook a detalled assessmeant with iocal management to establhsh the
corrections required noting that the prior period errors related to cut off procedures in relation
to stock in transit and errors in relation to the accounting for certain inventory returns

The resulting prior year restatement has been detailed in Note 1 of the accounts The audit
committee report on page 44 discusses the control fallures identified which resulted in
the errors,

n
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT CONTINUED

How the scope of our audit
responded to the risk

+  We reviewed the reparts from the third party adviser ta understand therr consideration of
the underlying cause of the errors and their prebminary quantification and assessment of
the errors.

+  We reviewed management's paper and held regular meetings with management to
understand the nature of the errors identified and evaluate the adequacy of the work
performed during the audit process

*« We assessed the prior period errors in hght of 1AS 8 'Accounting policies, changes in
accounting estimates and errors’

Key observations

«  We reported control deficiencies relating to the financial reporting processes and
reconciliations relating to the Australian and New Zealand businesses These are discussed
In the Audit Committee report on pages 44 and 45

«  We concur that it 1s appropriate to account for the pricr year errors as a prior year
restatement, and we consider that the disclosures recorded by management are
approprate

~ Going concern and covenant compliance

Risk description

Management identified post year end that the Q4 2016 CFADS covenant test had falled
although this did not constitute a breach as the current agreement allows for a covenant test
to fail once Additional sensitivities were (dentified for the Q1 CFADS 2017 covenant headroom
and subseguent periods due to the seasonality of the business The exclusion of the
exceptional iImpairments from the future covenant tests was aiso a key factor for forecast
compilance. In ight of this we elevated going concern to a significant risk

Page 84 and Note 1to the accounts sets out management’s disclosure and page 43 of the
Audit Committee report highlights the control falures identified in this area.

How the scope of our audit
responded to the risk

* We analysed the going concern model and additional sensitivities applied by management
in hght of the Q4 CFADS fall, together with the impact of avallable and committea
mitigating actions

+ We reviewed the bank’s confirmation for the permitted exclusion of the exceptional
impairment charges from the covenant calculations.

Key observations

We consider that meeting the Q1 covenant test, the forecast covenant compliance and the
mitigating actions available to management reasonably support the Board's assessment that
there 1s not a material uncertainty in relation to going concern. As noted in the Audit
Committee report on page 43 we also highlighted control deficiencies in relation to this risk

~ Acquisition accounting for becker&mayer

Risk description

The Greup acquired b&m on 31 July 2016 for consideration of $11 3m, Management jJudgement
15 Involved In acquisition accounting In relation to: the identification and valuation of acquired
intangikles (beng pre-publication costs and backlists) and estimation of useful economic hives,
the fair value of consideration, the fair value of the assets and liabilities acguired, and the
alignment of accounting policies. The purchase price allocation and fair value of assets
acquired 1s set out In Note 30 This s also discussed (in the Audit Committee report on page 44

How the scope of our audit
responded to the risk

+  We have assessed the nature of the transaction with reference to IFRS3 ‘Busmness
Combinations’.

+  We reviewed the purchase agreements.

+ We engaged our valuation specialists to assess the appropnateness of the vatuation model
and certain key assumptions within of intangibles valuation prepared by management’s
external expert

* We assessed the forecasts and discount rates used in estimating contingent consideration
for consistency with the impairment review and going concern analysis,

* We audited the acguired assets and habihties to supporting documentation, agreements, as
well as post acqgusition receipts and payments, and inventory count procedures rolled back
to acquisition date.
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Key observations

We concur with management’s view that the b&m acquisition 1s a business combination withun
the scope of IFRS3 '‘Business Combinations’

We identified reclassification adjustments between other assets and liabilities, and goodwili
which were corrected by management as referenced in the Audit Committee report on
page 44 and dentified a deficiency in the controls around acquisition accounting, as
referenced in the Audit Committee report on page 44

> Assessment of the carrying value of QUS goodwill

Risk description

The Group holds $36 1m of goodwill an its balance sheet following the recognition of $3.1m
of goodwill on acquisitions, $6 Om of impairment relating to BGD (see earlier section) and
exchange movements The largest balance relates to QUS ($30 Om) as shown in Note 11to
the accounts and the Group’s impairment policies for this balance are disclosed in Note 1
to the accounts

We identify the carrying value of QUS goodwill as a key risk due to the continuing sensitivity
of this CGU to reasonable possible changes 1in key assumptions around discount rates, cash
flow forecasts and growth rates and the inclusion of these disclosures in the 2016 annual
report This s also discussed 1in the Audit Committee report on page 44

How the scope of our audit
responded to the risk

+  We challenged management on the appropriateness of including the acquisition goodwill
as part of the QUS CGU through evidencing the level of integration of businesses and the
internal reporting of the Group and reviewed the acquisition board papers and the due
diligence reports where avallable

* We critically challenged the key judgements made by management around cash flow
forecasts, growth rates and discount rates through:
~ testing the integrity of management's model;
~ engaging our valuation specialists to independently establish an appropriate

discount rate;
- performing historical forecasting accuracy analysis and assessing key changes
in forecasts,
- performing benchmarking of competitors and industry data,
- considering post year end trading perfermance; and
- performing sensitivity analysis to assess breakeven points and scenaric combinations

Key observations

* ‘We dentified certain process deficiencies in this area, which are discussed in the Audit
Committee report on page 44

* QUS goodwill remains sensitive to changes in key assumptions it 1s appropriate to disclose
reasonably possible change scenaros.
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) Assessment of the carrying value of pre-publication costs

Risk description

The Group’s net book value of capitalised pre-publication costs at 31 December 2016 was
$61.1m (2015 $59 4m) as detaled in Note 15 The Group capitalisas third party costs incurred
and directly attributable costs in developing book titles prior to their pubhcation The Group
amortises Its pre-publication costs over a period of up to three vears on a straight line basis
which 15 considered to reflect the life of Its imprints on a portfolio basis

The nature of the asset invoives jJudgement In respect of the life of an imprint and ultimatety
Its recoverability.

Management also undertook an exercise to review the useful economic lives of its imprints and
Increased the lives of certain imprints to 3 years foliowing this exercise The $2.1m reduction in
2016 amortisation charge (f applying legacy UELS) has been disclosed as a change in
accounting estimate with the effect being appled prospectively, in accerdance with 1ASS
‘Accounting Poflictes, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’

This is alse discussed in the Audit Commuttee report on page 44
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How the scope of our audit
responded to the risk

* We analysed the Group's historical revenue profile by looking at the profile of revenue
earned from 2013 and 2014 additions in the UK and US.

+« We performed testing of third party costs and directly attnibutable internal costs capitalised
In accordance with the requirements of |1AS 38 'Intangible Assets’ by sample testing them to
supporting invoices as well as assessing the vahidity and aliocation of payroll costs to titles
through review of timesheets

« We performed benchmarking of the amortisation policy and profile against a number of
industry peers

= We assessed the recoverability based on a CGU basis as well as a on a sample basis of
current year contribution per title

Key observations

« The results of cur procedures were satisfactory and we agree that management’s change in
accounting estimate and disclosure appears reascnable and consistent with the
requirements of IAS 8, ‘Accounting Policres, Changes in Accounting Estirates and Errors’

> Assessmaent of sales returns against revenue recognition

Risk description

The Group primarily generates revenue from publishing new titles and sales of back catalogue
(see revenue recognition pohicy in Note 1), In certain business units customers have a right of
return for a imited period and revenue 1s recorded net of a provision for these returns based
on historical data Management judgernent i1s required when assessing the level of sales
returns subsequent to the year-end tc be provided for at the year-end. Key assumpticns
principally surround histoncal return experience when estimating future sale return levels
agamnst revenue recogrised in the year. This 1s also discussed in the Audit Committee report
on page 45,

How the scope of our audit
responded to the risk

The audit procedures we performed 1n respect of this sk included

« Testing a sample of underlying returns data used to develop the sales return estimate for
completeness and accuracy and challenging the appropriateness of the rate by reference
te current and post year end sales returns levels.

* Independently recalculated the returns provision and reviewed the level of sales post year
end for refative consistency with year-end assumptions with ne significant issues ansing.

+ Using analytical techniques to assess monthly returns by reference to historical trends

« Considering forecasting accuracy by comparing actual returns against accrual estimates.

Key observations

We concur with management’s view that the adjustment for sales returns against revenue
appears reascnable.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters
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Our application of materiality

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstaterment in the financial statements that makes it probable that the
economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced We use matenality both in
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work

Based on our professional judgement, we determined matenality for the financial statements as a whole as follows

Group materiality $745,000 (2015; $697,000)
Basis for determining Our materiality 1s 5 7% of adjusted profit before tax {2015: 5.0% of adjusted profit before tax)
materiality

Adjusted profit before tax 15 derived from the loss before tax with exceptional items added
back. The exceptional items per Note 5 have been added back to the reported loss before tax

Management’s adjusted profit before tax measure alsc adds back the ameortisation of acguired
intangibles.

Rationale for the benchmark We have determined a profit based measure 1s appropriate in ine with prior year The adjusted
applied profit before tax measure excludes those items identified as exceptional in the annual report
{Note 5) and 15 consistent with the measures used by the Group for internal and external
reporting requirements. This measure has been used to facilitate a better understanding
of the trading performance of the Group, it 15 consistent with cur approach adopted In
pPrevicus years

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Commuttee all audit differences in excess of $37,250
(2015 $13,200), as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative
grounds We also report to the Audit Committee on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

An overview of the scope of our audit
Qur Group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group, its environment and assessing the risks of
material rmisstatement at the Group level

Based on that assessment we include Quarto Publishing Plc, Quarto Publishing USA Inc ., (including the businesses
acquired during the year), and The Quarto Group Inc as full scope audit (Scope A) procedures to statutory or
component matenality completed by Deloitte London,

We include Australia, New Zealand and Hong Kong as full scope audits (scope B) where the audit work 1s performed by
overseas component auditors under our direction and supervision to component materiality or local statutory materiality.

These locations which were subject to full scope audit procedures and represent the principal business units and
account for 98% of the Group's revenue (2015 99%), 94% of the Group's ad)justed profit before tax (2015. 97%) and 99%
of the Group’s net assets (2015. 98%)

We completed analytical procedures for operations in Switzerland and for other holding comparues on an entity only
basis to confirm there are no significant nsks of materal misstatements within these entities

At the parent entity level we also test the Group consolidation process

In the current year given the errars identified 1n the BGD Australia business we performed an increased level of
supervision of our component audit team as they performed their audit procedures. We held regular conference calls to
discuss the issues identified and the progress of the procedures We performed a detared file review of their 2016 audit
working papers
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Governance

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT CONTINUED

Opinion on other matters prescribed by our engagement letter
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit

= the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006 were the requirements of the Act to apply to The Quarto Group Inc,

+ the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements, and

= the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the hght of the knowledge and understanding of the company and s environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not 1dentified any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report.,

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
Under ocur engagement letter we are required to report to you
if, 1IN our opinien

+  we have not received all the information and explanations
we reguire for our audit, or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us, or

« the parent company financial statements are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns

Directors’ remuneration We have nothing to report arising from these matters.
Under our engagement letter we are also required to report If

in our opinion certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration

have not been made cr the part of the Directors’

Remuneration Report te be audited 1s not 1n agreement with

the accounting records and returns

Corporate Governance Statement We have nothing to report arising from our review.
Under the Listing Rules we are also required to review part

of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the

company’s compliance with certain provisions of the UK

Corporate Governance Code.

Our duty to read other information in the Annual Report We confirm that we have not identified any such
Under International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), inconsistencies or misleading statements.

we are required to repoert to you if, in our opimion, informatien

In the annual report Is:

« rmatenally inconsistent with the information in the audited
financial statements; or

« apparently materially incorrect based on, or matenally
inconsistent with, our knowledge of the group acguired in
the course of performing cur audit, or

« otherwise misleading

In particular, we are required to consider whether we have
identified any inconsistencies between our knowledge
acquired during the audit and the directors’ statement that
they consider the annual report 1s fair, balanced and
understandable and whether the annual report appropriately
discloses those matters that we communicated to the audit
committee which we consider should have been disciosed
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Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibiiities Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view QOur responsibility 1s to audit and
express an opinicn on the financial statements in accordance with applicable iaw and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) We alsc comply with International Standard on Qualty Control 1 (UK and lreland) Qur audit
methodology and toels am to ensure that our guality contral procedures are effective, understood and applied Qur
quality controls and systems include our dedicated professional standards review team and independent partner reviews

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members as
a body, for cur audit work, for this report, or for the opimons we have formed

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to

give reasconable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by

fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting pohcies are appropriate to the Group's and the
parent company’s circumstances and have been consistently applhed and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of
sigmficant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In
addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual repoert to identify maternal inconsistencies
with the audited financial statements and to 1dentify any information that 1s apparently materially incorrect based

on, or mater:ally inconsistent with, the knowledge acqurired by us i1 the course of performmng the audit If we become
aware of any apparent matenal rmisstatements or inconsistencies we consider the imphcations for our report

Dot (P

Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London

19 April 2017
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Financial Staternents

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Year ended 31 December 2016 Year ended 31 Dgcember 2M5

Group Group Restated
excluding excluding (Note 1)
Books & Books & Books & Books & Restaled
Gifts Gifts Gifts Gifts (Note 1)
Oirect Direct Group Direct Direct Group
- Notes $'000 $000 $000  $000  $000 3000
C;tinuing o‘peratio:s_ T 7 .
Revenue 2 1869076 19,358 188,434 160,105 22,060 182,165
Cost of sales_; (14,0953 {17.070) a3nesy (105956) (7578) (123.,534)
aogprofi - 54,981 2,288 57,269 _Sﬁg o 4_.482—7 g.s'm_
Cther operating income - - - -
Distribution costs 6.870) (368) (7.258) (6,548) (648) (7196)
Administrative expenses (29,533) (3,720) (33,253) (32,008) (2,952 (34,960
E&ept«ﬂa} impairment of BGL operating assets 5 - (7997 (7997) - - -
Ope;ating p?fit—/aos*r.)ibe—ﬂ;e—a\mo—rt;isatﬁn o ks 18,578 9.817) 8,761 75‘59? o BE; _1%,4-75_
of acquired intangibles and other
exceptional items
Amortisation of acquired intangibles (654) (G (705) (672) (52) (724)
Other_exce_eptlon_a\ items 5 Q9n (6,206) (6.397) (445) - (445)
Operating profit/(loss) 4 17733 (B6074) 1659 14476 830 15306
Finance inccme 7 153 i1 164 e 26 142
Finance ¢osts 8 (309 - (3109 (3.240) - (3.240)
(Loss)/profit before tax 14777 (6063 (1286 1352 856 12208
T@L L L L 9 (4,031 40 (3,991 (2849) (836) (3.685)
(Loss)/profit for the year T 0746 (6023 (5277 8503 20 8523
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to:
Cwners of the parent 10,306 (56,023 (5,697 ans 20 8135
_N__on-controklmg interests 420 - 420 388 - 368
0746 (16023 (5277 8505 20 8523
(Loss)/earnings per share (cents)
Basi¢c 10 517 285 412 413
Diluted 10 505 (285) a1 412
Adjusted basic 10 547 57 460 46 2
Adjusted arfjuted o] 535 56 45 G 461
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Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Year ended 31 December 2016

Year ended 31 December 2015

Group Group Restated
excluding excluding (Note 1)
Books & Books & Books & Books & Restated
Gifts Gifts Gifts Gifts (Note 1)
Cirect Direct Group irect Direct Group
Notes $'C00 $'000 $000 $000 $000 $'C00
Continuing operations
Revenue 2 169,076 19,358 188,434 160,105 22,060 182,165
Cost of sales (114,095) (17.070) (131065) (105,956) (7578) (123,534}
Gross profit 54,981 2,288 57,269 54,149 4,482 58,631
Other ¢perating iIncome - - - -
Distribution costs (6,870) (388) (7,258 (6,548) (648) (7196)
Adminustrative expenses (29,533) (3.720) (33,253) (32.008) (2952) (34,960}
Exceptional impairment of BGD operating assets 5 - (7997) (7.997) - - -
Operating profit/(loss) before amortisation 3 18,578 (9,817 8,761 15,593 882 16,475
of acquired intangibles and other
exceptional items
Amortisation of acquired intangibles (654> &N (705) (672) (52) (724)
Other excephional items 5 (o (6,206) (6,397 (445 - (445
Operating profit/(loss) 4 17733 (16,C74) 1659 14,476 830 15,3086
Finance income 7 153 n 64 ne 26 142
Finance costs 8 (3,09 - (31093 (3,240) - (3,240)
{Loss)/profit before tax 14,777 (16,063) (1,286) 1,352 856 12,208
Tax 9 (4,030) 40 (3,991 (2,849) (836) (3.685)
(Loss)/profit for the year 10,746 {16,023 (5,277) 8,503 20 8,523
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the parent 10,326 (16,023 (5.697) 8115 20 8,135
Non-cehtrolling interests 420 - 420 388 - 388
10,746 (16,023) (5277 8,503 20 8,523
(Loss)/earnings per share (cents)
Basic 10 517 (285) 412 413
Diluted 10 5056 (28 5) 411 412
Adjusted basic 10 547 57 460 46.2
Adjusted diluted 10 535 56 459 461
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Restated
(Note 1)
2006 2015
$000 $'000
{Loss)/profit for the year (5.277) 8,523
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Foreign exchange translation differences 706 (2,340)
Cash flow hedge gams/{losses) arising during the year 150 (64)
Cash flow hedge. reclassification adjustment for net income recognised directly in equity - 68
Tax relating to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss (1,609) (14>
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the year (6,030 6173
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the year attributable to:
Cwners of the parent (6,450) 5,799
Non-controlling interests 420 374
(6,030) 8,173
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Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

Restated Restated
(Note 1) (Note 1)
2016 2015 2014
Notes $000 $'000 $'000
Non-current assets
Goodwill n 36,144 40,112 41,069
QOther intangible assets 12 4,351 1510 as56
Property, plant and equiprment i3 1857 3,368 2,731
Intangible assets Pre-publication costs 15 61133 59,443 57534
Deferred tax assets 20 2,022 - 126
TJotal non-current assets 105,507 104,433 102,416
Current assets
Inventories 6 24,006 25191 23859
Trade and other receivables 17 54,62 57145 51,740
Derivative financial instruments 141 18 -
Cash and cash equivalents 18,824 25,059 2310
Total current assets 97133 107.413 88,709
Total assets 202,640 21,846 201125
Current liabilities
Short term borrowings 19 (5.000) (5,000} (88150)
Derwvative financial nstruments (94) (1o (67)
Trade and cther payables 2 (59,718} (63.716) (53.27y
Tax payvable (4,060) (2,549} (2,430)
Total current liabilities (68,872} (N,275) (144,918)
Non-current liabilities
Medium and long terrn borrowings 2] (75,748) {79,562 -
Deferred tax habilities 20 (10,502) (7.466) (5,927
Other payables (3,407) (99) (537)
Total non-current liabilities (89.657) (8727) (6,464}
Total liabilities (158,529) (158,402) (151,382)
Net assots 44 53,444 49,743
Equity
Share capital 24 2,045 2,045 2045
Paid in surpius 23,764 33764 33,764
Retamned sarnings and other reserves 3,410 12,476 8,993
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 39,219 48,285 44,802
Non-controlling interests 4,892 5159 4941
44'm 53,444 49,743

Total equity

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for tssue on 19 April 2017

They were signed on its behalf by.

Maycus E. Leaver, Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Equity
attnbutable
to owners Non-

Share Paidin Hedging Translation Treasury Retained of the controling

capital surplus  reserve reserve shares earnings parent interests Total

$00C %000 000 $'000 $'00C $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 u

ol
Balance at 1 January 2015 2,045 33,764 - (G611 (634) 16,230 45,794 4941 50,735 1>|
(as previously stated) B
Prior year adjustment (Note 1} - - - - - (992) (992) - 992) 0
o)

Balance at 1 January 2015 2045 33764 - (5,61 (634) 15,238 44,802 4,941 49743 o
Profit for the period - - - - - 8135 8135 288 8,523 %
QOther comprehensive
income/(expense)
Foreign exchange translaticn - - - (2,326) - - (2,326) (14) {2,340)
differences
Cash flow hedge’ losses - - (64) - - - (B4) - (B4)
arising during the period
Cash flow hedge: - - 68 - - - 68 - 68
reclassification adjustment
for gain included in profit
Tax relating to items that may - - 4) - - - (14) - a4y o
be reclassified to profit or loss 2
Total comprehensive - - [¢[e)} (2,326) - 8135 5,799 374 6,173 %
income for the period 12}
Dividends paid to shareholders - - - - - (2,502} (2,502 - (2,502) %
Dividends paid to - - - - - - - 56y  (156) ™
non-contrelling interests
Share based payments charge - - - - - 186 186 - 186
Balance at 31 December 20015 2045 33,764 ao (7937 (634) 21,057 48,285 5159 53,444
(Loss)/profit for the pericd - - - - - (5.687) (5,697) 420 (5,277
Other comprehensive
income/expense
Foreign exchange translation - - - 696 - - 696 10 706
differences
Cash flow hedge losses - - 150 - - - 150 - 150
arising during the pericd
Tax relating to items that may - - - (1.609) - - (1.609) - (.609)
be reclassified to profit or loss
Total comprehensive income/ - - 150 93 - (5,697 (6,460) 43C  (6,030)
(expense) for the period
Dividends pald to shareholders - - - - - (2,902 (2,902) - (2902)
Dividends paid to non- - - - - - - - (697) (697)
controlling interests
Share based payments charge - - - - - 256 256 - 256
Shares released/sold from - - - - 6834 {594) 40 - 40
treasury shares
Balance at 31 December 2016 2,045 33764 140 (8,850) - 12,120 39,219 4,892 44M
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Financral Statements

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Restated
(Note 13
2016 2015
$'C00 $:000
(Loss)/profit for the year (5,277) 8,523
Adjustments for
Net finance costs 2,945 3,008
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and software intangible assets 1,080 1,189
Tax charge 3,991 3.685
Exceptional impairment of BGD assets 14,203 -
Share-based payment charges 256 186
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 705 724
Amortisation of and amount written off pre-publication costs 30,540 33,258
Movement in fair value of derivatives 120 (85)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 48,563 50,578
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories 1,270 {1,098)
Decrease/(increase) In recevables 1,628 (6,156)
(Decrease)/increase in payables (7,715) 8,724
Cash generated by operations 43,746 51,948
Income taxes paid (1,436) (1,981
Net cash from operating activities 42,310 49,967
Investing activities
Interest received 164 142
Investment in pre-publcation costs (37065) (34.872)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment and software intangibie assets {1,562) (2,010)
Acquisition of subsidiaries and business combinations (3,718) (1,614)
Naet cash used in investing activities (42,281) (38,354)
Financing activities
Dividends paid (2.902) (2,502
Interest payments (2,725) (2,891}
Drawdown/(repayment) of revolving credit facihty 5,583 (3,283
Repayment of term loan (5,0C0) -
Dividends paid te non-controlling interests (697) (156)
Net cash used in financing activities (5,741) (8.832)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents {5,712> 2,781
Cash and cash eguivalents at beainning of year 25,059 2310
Foreign currency exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents (523> (832)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 18,824 25,059
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NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 General information and significant accounting policies

The Quarto Group, Inc 1s a company incorporated in the State of Delaware, United States. The address of the registered
office 1s given on page 123 The nature of the Group’s operations and 1ts principal activities are set out in Note 3 and in
the Chief Executive Officer’'s Statement on page 12.

The accounting policies adopted, are consistent with those of the annual financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015, as described In those financial statements, except as described below

Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional currency The presentational currency of the Group s US dollars.

Change in estimate

During the year, the Group undertook a review of useful lives of the pre-publications costs incurred in the developrment
of book titles prior to publication. The review resulted in the change in useful life of certam imprints to a three-year
useful Iife in accordance with 1AS 8 - Accounting Polices, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, the revisions
were accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate and as a result, the amortisation charge

of the Group for the current financial year has been reduced by $2 Tm

Restatement of prior year results

In the process of hinalising the results of the Books and Gifts Direct business for the year ended 31 December 2016,
errors were uncovered in the cut-off procedures and accounting for returns in relation to stock in transit and the related
hability accounts at BGD Australla The errors related to the vatue attributed to stock in transit at each of the three
years ended 31 December 2016, 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 where detailed examination has shown that
suppher invoices for stock in transit were not processed in the correct accounting period, nor was the correct accrual
or return provision recorded in the financial statements. The impact of these errors has resuited in the lower operating
margins for the year ended 31 December 2015

The error was caused by a failure in controls relating to cut-off and recenciliation procedures in respect of stock in
transit and the related purchase clearing accounts, and accounting for returns on certain products.

The error has now been corrected and impacts the Consohldated Income Statement as follows.

+ Cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2015 increased by $C.7m from $122 8m to $123.5m which 1s included
in the restated operating results for the year, and
« Opening retained earnings as at 1 January 2015 have been restated and decreased by $10m

Expected tax losses of $0.5m have not been recognised as there 1s insufficient evidence that future profits are available
against which the losses could be applied

The impact on the Consohdated Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2015 and as at 31 December 2014 s’

As reported Restated As reported Restated
2015 Adustment 2015 2014 Adjustment 2014
$'C00 $'0C0 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'0C0
Inventories 26,147 (956) 25191 24,851 (992> 23,859
Trade payables (63,076) (640) (63.716) (53,271} - (53,277
impact on net assets 55,040 ,596) 53.444 50,735 (992) 49,743
Impact on total equity 55,040 (1.596) 53.444 50,735 (992) 49,743
Earnings per share (cents)
Basic 450 37 4.3
Diluted 449 37 412

Statement of compliance

The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
‘Group’) The parent company financial statements present information about the Company as a separate entity and not
about its Group.

The Group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Directors in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU ('IFRS"). The Company has elected to prepare its parent company
financial statements in accordance with UK GAAP, including The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland ('FRS 102"), these are presented on pages 116 to 121

as
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

1 General information and significant accounting policies continued

Basis of accounting

The financial staterments are prepared on the histonical cost basis, except that derivative financial instruments are stated
at fair value.

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements. estimates
and assurmptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and habilities, iIncome and
expenses The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances Actual results may differ from these estimates The estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
year in which the estimate 1s revised if the revision affects only that year or in the year of the revision and future years
if the revision affects both current and future years Key estimates at the balance sheet date are

Note 1  The revenue recognition policy details our jJudgement in respect of sales returns and the method of
estimating the related sales returns allowance

Note 5 Assessment of the recoverable value of the net assets of the BGD business

Note 11 Key assumptions in making the assessment of carrying value of goodwill and acquired intangible assets
Note 15 Recoverability of pre-publication costs and the assessment of their useful life

Note 17 Assessment of the impairment of trade recevables

Note 20 Caiculation of temporary differences in the assessment of deferred tax habilities

There are no critical judgements that have a significant impact on the financial statements, apart from those involving
estimates which are detalled above

Going concern basis

After making enquiries, the Directors have formed a judgement, at the time of approving the financial statements, that
there 1s a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue In operational existence for the
foreseeable future. For this reason, the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements See also the Group going concern and viability statement on pages 28 and 29

The Group’s business activities, together with the factors hikely to affect its future development, performance and
position are set out In the Chief Executive Officer's Statement on pages 12 to 15,

The financial position of the Group, its cash flows, lquidity position and borrowing facilities are described i the
Financial Review on pages 24 to 29 and in Notes 18 and 19 to the financial statements,

The Group has considerable financial resources together with a number of customers and supphers across different
geographies As a consegquence, the Directors believe that the Group 1s well pfaced to manage its business risks
successfully despite the current economic outlook.

The Group has significant banking facilities including committed facilities comprnising a US$90m mutti-currency
revolving credit and term loan facility These facilities were agreed with the Group's bankers on 6 February 2015 and
expire on 30 April 2019 The Group has prepared a three-year financial plan comprising a budget for the year ending
31 December 2017 together with projections for the two years ending 31 December 2019 These show that the Group

1s forecasting to have sufficient headroom within that period. The Group did not pass the CFADS covenant test at

31 December 2016 This does not constitute a breach of the Group's banking facilities as it was the first permitted time
we have not passed the test and we are forecasting to pass the test at the next quarter testing date The covenants will
be monitored closely by the Board and we have identified mitigating actions that would maintain compliance with all
covenants for the foreseeable future

Basis of consolidation

The Group financal statements include the results of the Company and all of its subsidiary undertakings. A subsidiary
1s an entity controlled, directly or indirectly, by the Group. Control 1s the power to govern the financial and operating
pohcies of the entity so as {0 obtam benefits from its activities The financial staternents of subsidianes are ncluded n
the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

Intragroup balances and any unrealised gains and losses or income and expenses ansing from intra-group transactions
are eliminated 1n preparnng the consolidated financial statements
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1 General information and significant accounting policies continued
The interest of non-centrolling interests on an acguisition 15 initially measured at the minonity's proportion of the net farr
value of the assets, habilities and contingent liabihities recognised.

Business combinations, intangible assets and goodwill

All business combinations are accounted for by applying the acquisition method Goodwill represents the excess of the
consideration transferred over the fair value of the net assets and any contingent liabilities acquired Acquisition costs are
expensed as Incurred

Goodwill arising on acquisitions 1s stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses Goodwill 1s allocated to
cash-generating units and 1s tested annually for impairment

Other intangible assets, such as backlists, that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses

Amortisation of intangible assets 1s charged to profit or 10ss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful Iives of
intangtble assets The amortisatton period for non-contractual relationships 1s 2.5 years, for backlists 1s 5 years and software
1S 4 years.

Volume rebates
In the ordinary course of business, the Group receives volume rebates from its printers This 1s accounted for in
accordance with contractual terms and s credited in full to cost of sales

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets including goodwill

The carrying amount of the Group’s assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there s any
indication of impairment If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable
amount Is the higher of fair value, reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and value in use based on an internal
discounted cash flow valuation,

For goodwill, the recoverable amount 15 estimated at each balance sheet date An impairment loss 1s recognised
whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds 1ts recoverable amount. Impairment
losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and services, net

of sales taxes, rebates and discounts, and after eliminating sales within the Group. For each of the Group's operating
segments, revenugs are recognised on the despatch of goods and when the significant rnisks and rewards of ownership
have been passed to the buyer. The following specific criteria also apply.

+ The Group’s publishing revenues are stated net of an estimated allowance for sales returns, which 1s based on a
review of the historical return patterns associated with the various sales outlets. as well as current market trends
in the business in which the Group operates

* Revenue from e-books is recognised when the content 1s delivered

Leasing

Where assets are acquired under finance leases (including hire purchase contracts), which confer risks and rewards
similar to those attached to owned assets, the amount representing the outnght purchase price of such assets i1s
included in property, plant and equipment All other leases are classified as operating leases Depreciation s provided
In accordance with the accounting policy below. The capital element of future finance lease payments 1s included 1n
liabilities and the interest element 1s charged to the income statement over the period of the lease In proportion to
the capital element outstanding Expenditure on operating leases 1s charged to the iIncome staterment on a straight
line basis

Foreign currencies

Transactions in forelgn currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and hiabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at the
exchange rate ruling at that date with any exchange differences ansing on retranslation being recognised in the
income statement
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

1 General information and significant accounting policies continued

The assets and lhiabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on consclidation,
are translated into WS Dollars at exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The revenues and expenses of foreign
operations are translated into US Dollars at average annual exchange rates Foreign exchange differences arising on
retranslation are charged or credited to other comprehensive income and are recognised in the currency translation
reserve In equity On disposal of a foreign operation, the related cumulative translation differences recognised in equity
are reclassified to profit or loss and are recognised as part of the gain or loss on disposal

Exceptional items

Exceptional 1tems are these which the Group defines as significant iterns cutside the scope of normal business that
need to be disclosed by virtue of their size or incidence in order for the user to obtain a proper understanding of the
financial information.

Retirement benefit costs
The Group’s pension costs relate to iIndividual pension plans and are charged to profit or loss as they fali due.

Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises both current and deferred tax. Current tax 1s the expected tax payable
on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and

any adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous years. Tax provisions are based on Management's interpretation
of country specific tax law and recogrised when it is considered probable that there will be a future outflow of funds to
a tax authonty Provisions are made annually based on the specific informatron available at that time and therefore there
ts imited risk of change in the estimates in the short term. Deferred tax I1s provided using the balance sheet liability
rmethod, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and lhabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. However, deferred tax 1s not provided on the imitial
recognition of goodwill, nor on the initial recognition of an asset or a hability unless the related transaction 1s a business
combrnation or effects tax or accounting profit Not all temporary differences give rise to deferred tax assets/habilities
A deferred tax asset i1s recognised only to the extent that it I1s probable that future taxable profits will be avallable
against which the asset can be utilised. Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of
tax expense m the income statement, except where they relate to itermns that are charged or credited directly 10 other
comprehensive iIncome or equity, In which case the related deferred tax 15 also charged or credited directly to other
comprehensive income or equity, respectively

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at deemed cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for

impairments in value

The Group recognises in the carrying amount of property, ptant and equipment the subsequent costs of replacing part
of such items when there are future economic benefits All other costs are recogrised in profit or loss as an expense
as they are incurred

Depreciation s provided on a straight-line basis to write off the cost, less the estimated residual value, of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives, which are reviewed annually. Where parts of an item of plant
and equipment have separate lives, they are accounted for and depreciated as separate items Residual values are

reassessed on an annual basis Land 1s not depreciated

Estimated useful lives are as follows

Freehold property and long leasehcld property improvements 50 years

Short leasehold property improvements Qver the pericd of the lease
Flant, equipment and motor vehicles 410 10 years

Fixtures and fittings 5to 7 years

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful ives on the same basis as owned assets
or, where shorter, over the term of the relevant lease

The gain or loss ansing on the disposal or retirement of an asset 1s determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and s recognised In iIncome
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1 General information and significant accounting policies continued

Pre-publication costs

Pre-publhication costs represent directly attributable costs and attributable overheads incurred in the development

of book titles prior to their publication Attributable overheads are allocated on a title by title basis. These costs are
carned forward (n current Intanaible assets where the book title will generate future economic benefits and costs

can be measured reliably These costs are amortised on a straight Iine basis upon publication of the book title over
estimated economuc lives oOf three years or less, being an estimate of the expected useful economic Iife of a book title
The investment in pre-publication costs has been disclosed as part of the investing activities in the cash flow statement.

Inventories
Inventory is valued at the lower of cost, including an appropriate portion of overheads, and net realisable value, on a
first in, first out basis Net realisable value 1s the estimated selling price In the ordinary course of business, less estimated

costs of completion and selling expenses

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial habilities are recogmised on the Group’s balance sheet when the group becomes a party

to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

Financial assets
Financial assets other than hedging instruments are divided into the following categories:

+ loans and receivables, and
« financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are assigned to the different categories on initial recognition, depending on the charactenstics of the
instrument and its purpose A financial instrument’s category 1s retevant for the way it 15 measured and whether any
resulting income and expenses 15 recognised in profit or loss or directly in equity See Note 22 for a summary of the
Group’s financial assets by category

Generally, the Group recognises all financial assets using trade date accounting An assessment of whether a financial
asset I1s impaired 1s made at least at each reporting date All income and expense relating to financial assets are
recognised In the income statement line item ‘finance costs’ or ‘finance income’, respectively, with the exception

of trade and other receivables which are recorded in revenue and administrative expenses

Loans and receivables, in¢luding trade receivables, are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market After initial recognition, at fair value, these are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for iImpairment Any change in their value 1s
recognised in profit or loss. The Group’s trade and most other receivables fall into this category of financial
instruments Discounting, however, 1s omitted where the effect of discounting 1s immaterial.

Significant recervables are considered for impairment on a case-by-case basis when they are past due at the balance
sheet date or when objective evidence is received that a specific counterparty will default. All other receivables are
reviewed for impairment in groups, which are determined by reference to the industry and region of a counterparty
and other available features of shared credit risk characteristics, iIf any The percentage of the write-down 15 then based
on recent historical counterparty default rates for each identified group

Dernvative financial instruments are imitially recognised at fair value, and subsequently classified as financial assets at

fair value through profit and loss. Any gain or loss ansing from derivative financial instruments 1s based on changes in
fair value, which i1s determined by direct reference to active market transactions or using a valuation techngue where
no active market exists

Financial liabilities
The Group's financial hatilities include borrowings, trade and other payables {including finance lease habilities)

After initial recognition at fair value, all financial liabilities, with the exception of derivative financial instruments, are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method A summary of the Group’s financial habifities by
category is given in Note 22

All of the Group’s derivative financial instruments that are not designated as hedging instruments in accordance with
the strict conditions explained under the heading ‘Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting', are
accounted for at fair value through profit or loss by definition
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

1 General information and significant accounting policies continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial habilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into An equity instrument 1s any contract that ewvidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of financial habilities

Finance costs
Finance costs comprise interest payabte on borrowings calculated using the effective interest method together with
the amortisation of debt 1ssuance costs

Finance income
Finance income comprises interest receivable, which 1s recognised in profit or loss as it accrues using the effective
interest method

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits and
bank overdrafts that form an integral part of the Group's cash management processes

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group’s activities expose It primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and
interest rates. The Group uses interest rate swap contracts to hedge these exposures The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes

The use of financiat dervatives 1s governed by the Group's policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provide
written principles on the use of financial derivatives

Where a denvative financial instrument 1s designated as a hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset
or hability, or a highly probable forecast transaction, the effective part of any gain or loss on the derivative financial
instrument 1s recognised directly in other comprehensive income If the cash flow of a firm commitment or forecast
transaction results in the recognition of an asset or a liability, then, at the time the asset or hability 1s recognised, the
associated gamns or losses on the derivative that had previously been recogmsed in equity are included in initial
recognmtion of that asset or liabiity Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive Income are recognised in
the profits and loss (n the same pernod in which the hedged item affects net profit or loss Changes in the fair value of
derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in profit or loss as they arise.

The Group’s derivatives are split between level 1and level 2 financial instruments under IFRS 7 The foreign currency
exchange rate denvatives are level 1 and they are valued based on a quoted price in an active market The interest rate
swaps are level 2 financial instruments and they are valued using techniques based significantly on observable market
data such as yield curves as at the balance sheet date.

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrurnent expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer
qualifies for hedge accounting At that bime, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity
1s retained in other comprehensive income until the forecast transaction occurs If a hedged transaction is no longer
expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognised in other compreheansive income 1s transferred to net

profit or loss for the period

Treasury shares

Treasury shares represent holdings of the Company’s own equity instruments, No gamn or 10ss 15 recogrised in profit or
loss on the purchase, 1ssue or cancellation of these equity instruments Consideration pard or received Is recognised
directly in equity

Share-based payments

The Group 1ssues equity settled share-based payments to certain employees Equity settled share-based payments are
measured at fair value at the date of grant The fair value, determined at the grant date, of equity settled share-based
payments 1s expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will
eventually vest,

The fair value of empioyee share ophion grants 15 calculated using a Monte Carlo model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the cptions were granted The value of the charge 15 adjusted to reflect expected and actual
levels of options vesting
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1 General information and significant accounting policies continued

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement in the period in which they are incurred. Debt 1ssuance
costs comprising arrangement fees and legal costs are capitalised and amortised on a straight line basis over the penod
of the borrowing facility or included within the amortised cost calculation as appropriate The annual amortisation
charge 1s included within finance costs in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income

The Group does not Incur any borrowing costs which are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets.

Financial risk management
The principal risk factors faced by the Group are disclosed in Note 22 and on page 104

New standards and interpretations not applied

The International Accounting Standards Board and the International Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC)
have 1ssued the following standards and interpretations for annual penods begimning on or after the effective dates
noted below

IAS/IFRS Standard Effective for years starting on or after
IFRS @ Financial Instruments 1 January 2018
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with custemers 1 January 2018
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
IAS 7 Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows 1 January 2017
1AS 12 Amendments to Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for 1 January 2017

Unreahsed Losses

The potential impact of the future adoption of IFRS 15 and IFRS 16 on the Group's accounts 1s ongoing and it is not
practical to provide a reasonable estimate of the iImpact until this review 1s completed Apart from these standards, the
Directors do not consider that the adoption of the other standards listed above will have a matenal impact on the
Group's accounts in the period of initial application

2 Revenue
2016 2015
$000 $'CC0
Sales of goods 188,434 182,165
Finance income 164 142
Total 188,598 182,307
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X Operating segments
The analysis by segment 1s presented below This 1s based upon the operating results as reviewed by the Chief

Executive Officer

Financial Statements

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Quarte
International Quarto Quarto Books &
Co-Editions Publishing Publishing Total  Gifts Direct,

Group  Group USA Group UK Publishing ANZ Quarto HK Total
2016 $'000 $'000 $C00 $'C00 $000 $000 $'000
Revenue 51915 81189 21,506 154,610 19,358 14,466 188,434
Operating profit/(loss) 9,372 9,589 2777 21,738 (9,817 1,589 13,510
pefcre amortisation of
acquired intangibles and
exceptional items
Amortisation of acquired (253) (356) (45) (654) éBn - (705}
intangitles
Segment result 9119 9,233 2,732 21,084 {9,868 1.589 12,805
QOther exceptional items - agn - a9 (6,206) - (6,397
(Note 5)

anag 9,042 2,732 20,893 (16,074 1,582 6,408

Unaliocated corporate - - - - - - (4,749)
Eexpenses
Operating profit/(loss) 9119 9,04z 2732 20,893 (16,074 1,589 1,659
Finance income 164
Finance costs (309
(Loss)/protit before tax (1.286)
Tax (3,990
(Loss)/profit after tax (5.277)
Capital expenditure (662) (739) (20 (1,421 (134) (€2))] (1,563)
Depreciation 4086 320 159 885 147 48 1,080
Investment in pre- 15,506 17,363 4,296 37165 - - 37165
publication costs
Arnortisation of pre- 14,580 13.017 2943 30,540 - - 30,540

publication costs

* Includes excepbional impairment charge of $8 Om Further detall 15 included in Note 5
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Quarto
International Quarto Quarto Books &
Co-Editions Publishing Publishing Total Gifts Direct,

Group  Group USA Group UK Publishing ANZ Quarto HK Total
2015 (restated) $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'C00 $'000
Revenue 50,147 72,441 22,765 145,353 22,060 14,752 182365
Operating profit before 6,351 8,884 3,302 18,537 882 1,487 20,906
amortisation of acquired
intangibles and exceptional
items
Amortisation of acquired (240) (346) (86) (672) (52) - (724}
intangibles
Segment result 6m 8,538 3216 17,865 83C 1,487 2082
Other exceptional items (445)
Unallocated corporate {4,431)
expenses
Operating (loss)/profit 15,306
Finance income 142
Finance costs (3.240)
{Lossy/profit before tax 12,208
Tax (32.685)
(Loss)/profit after tax 8,523
Capital expenditure 529 773 38 1,340 546 124 2,010
Depreciation 539 329 181 1,049 86 54 1189
Investment in pre- 15,724 14,888 4,260 34,872 - - 34,872
publication costs
Armortisation of pre- 16,246 13,014 3,998 33,258 - - 33,258

publication costs

N
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3 Operating segments continued
Balance sheet

Restated

(Nete 1)

2016 2015

$000 $'000

Quarto Publishing Group USA 110,010 92,154

Quarto Publhshing Group UK 17,277 20,562

Quarto international Co-Editions Group 46,055 49,957

Books & Gifts Direct, ANZ 1,720 16,285

Guarto HK 6,591 7,81

Unallocated (Deferred tax and cash) 20,987 25077

Total assets 202,640 21,846

Quarto Publishing Group USA 29,569 22,567

Quarto Publishing Group UK 5851 7,848

GQuarto International Co-Editions Group 18,668 23,246

Bocks & Gifts Direct, ANZ 5141 5829

Quarto HK 3,895 4,325

Unallocated {Deferred tax and cash) 95,405 94,587

Total habilities 158,529 158,402

Geographical areas
The Group operates in the following main geographic areas
Revenue Non-current assets

Restated

(Note 1)

2016 2015 2016 2015

$'000 $'000 $'00C $'000

United States of America 104,109 92,758 68,586 55,507

Australasia and Far East 25172 28,556 98 8,066

United Kingdem 20,900 24,50 36,823 39,304

Europe 26,303 24,453 - 1,556

Rest of the World 1,950 12,248 - -

188,434 182,165 105,507 104,433
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4 Operating profit
Operating profit has been arnved at after charging/(crediting)

Restated
2016 2015
$'000 $000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,080 1,182
Foreign currency exchange differences 24 (ma)
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 705 724
Amortisation of pre-publication costs 30,540 33,258
Staff costs (Note 6) 34,274 30,843
Auditor's remuneraticn (see below) 604 408
Cost of inventory recognised as an expense 41,474 43,413
Share based payment charges 256 186
Loss/(gain) on derivative financial instruments recognised at fair value through profit and loss 120 (85)
Exceptional items (Note 5) 14,394 445
Auditor’s remuneration
Fees payable tec the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company's annual accounts 30 30
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates for the audit of subsidiary companies 567 370
Fees payable tc the Company's auditor for other assurance services 7 8
604 408
S Exceptional items
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Impairment of BGD assets 7.997 -
Write-off of BGD goodwill 8,000 -
Write-off of BGD intangible assets 206 -
Acqguisition costs 191 257
Aborted carporate transaction costs - 188
Other exceptional items 6,397 445
Total 14,394 445

The impairment of assets compnises principally inventory of $1.9m, trade receivables of $4.3m and property, plant
and equipment of $11m This impairment and the write-off of goodwill and intangible assets reflect the changes to
reduce the carrying value of the assets of BGD to their recoverable value There are no tax credits associated with

these impairments

Acquisition costs relate to the purchase of the assets of becker&mayer and Harvard Commaon Press with a related tax

credit of $65,000 (2015 purchase of the Ivy Press Limited)
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6 Staff costs

2016 2015

Number Number

Average monthiy number of employees (excluding Executive Directors) 499 434
$'000 $000

Wages and salaries 30,869 27,560
Social secunity costs 2,296 209
Other pension costs 1109 1164
34,274 30,843

Directors’ remuneration is disclosed in the Remuneration Committee Report on page 46

The remuneration of Directors and the Executive Committee, who are the key management personnel of the Group,
1s set out below in aggregate for each of the categories specified in 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures.

2016 2015
$000 $'C00
Short term employee benefits 2,735 3.424
Long term employee benefits 2,650 -
Post-employment benefits 256 N7
5,641 3,741
7 Finance income
2016 2015
$'00C %000
Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost 164 142
8 Finance costs
2016 2015
$'00C $'00C
Interest expense on borrowings 2,728 2,837
Amartisation of debt 1ssuance costs 381 403
3.109 3.240
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9 Taxation
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Current tax
Corporation tax 2,344 2,277
Total current tax 2,344 2,277
Deferred tax (Note 207
QOrigmation and reversal of temporary differences 1647 1,408
1,647 1,408
Total tax expense 3,991 3.685

Corporation tax on UK profits is calculated at 20%, based on the UK standard rate of corporation tax, (2015. 20 25%)
of the estimated assessable profit for the year, Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the
respective jurisdictions The table below explains the difference between the expected expense at the UK statutory rate

of 20% and the Group's total tax expense for the year

Group Restated

excluding (Note 1)

Books & Books & 2016 2015

Gifts Direct  Gifts Direct Group Group

$000 $'000 %000 $000

(Loss)/profit before tax 14,777 (16,063) (1,286) 12,208

Tax at the UK corperation tax rate of 20% (2015 20 25%) 2,956 (3.213) (257) 2,472

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries cperating in other 1,095 - 1,095 1163
Junsdictions

Tax effect of items that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 64 3173 3,237 50

Other {84) - (84) -

Tax expense 4,031 40) 3.9 3,685

Effective tax rate for the year 273% 30.2%

The effective tax rate for the year excluding BGD 1s 27.3% (2015: 25.1%)
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10 Earnings per share

2016 2015
Group Group Restated
excluding excluding (Note 13 Restated
Books & Books & Books & Books & (Note 1)
Gifts Direct  Gifts Direct Group Gifts Direct  Gifts Direct Group
$000 $'000 $'Cc00 $'000 $000 $'000
{Loss)y/profit attributable to owners 10,326 (16,023) (5,697} 8115 20 8,136
of the parent
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 473 26 509 508 18 526
(net of tax)
Exceptional items (net of tax) 126 6,206 6,332 441 - 44]
Adjusted profit/(loss) attributable 16,925 (9,780 1144 9,064 38 9,102
to owners of the parent
Number of shares Number Number Number Number
Weighted average number 19,984,824 19,984,824 19,696,729 19,696,729
of ordinary shares
Effect of potentially dilutive share options 452,031 452,03 38,591 38,591
Diluted weighted average number 20,436,855 20,436,855 19,735,320 19,735,320
of ordinary shares
(Loss)/earnings per share (cents)
Basic 517 (285) 412 M3
Diluted 50.5 285) 411 41,2
Adjusted earnings per share (cents)
Basic 547 57 460 46.2
Diluted 535 56 45.9 461
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11 Goodwill
2016 2015 2014

$'C00 $'C00 $'000
Cost "
At 1 January 40,448 41,423 41,744 p
Exchange differences (1)128) (.244) {97 E
Recognised on acquisitions (Note 30) 3,105 269 650 o
At 31 December 42,425 40,448 41,423 =
Accumulated impairment losses 8
At1January (336) (354) G | 2
Impairment (6.000) - -
Exchange differences 55 18 23
At 31 December (6,281 (336) {354)
Carrying value
At 3t December 36,144 4012 41,069
Impairment tests for cash generating units containing goodwill
The following units have significant carrying amounts of goodwill.

2016 2015 2014 o

$000 $:000 $'000 2
Quarto Publishing Group USA (QUS) 29,982 26,878 26,878 ’S
Quarto Publishing Group UK (QGUK) 1.816 2176 2,293 g
Quarto International Co-Editicns Group {QIC) 4,346 5145 5171 Q
Books & Gifts Direct, ANZ (BGD) - 5913 6,727

36,144 4012 41,069
The recoverable amount of each cash generating unit (CGU') 15 based on the value in use basis. In determining value
In use, management prepare a detailed bottom up budget, with reviews conducted at each business unit Cash flows

beyond the budget perniod of twelve months are extrapolated intc perpetuity, by applying the growth and rates
applicable to each unit discounted to present value The key assumptions used In the value in use calculations were

+ Discount rate. 14 57% (2015. 1 58%) pre-tax for QUS, 11.66% (2015 12.17%) for QUK and QIC and 15.60% (2015, 11.58%)
for BGD which reflects current assessments of the time value of money The discount rate has been calculated using
Weighted Average Cost of Capital analysis adjusted to derive the pre-tax discount rate,

+ Cash flow growth rates' based on a short term forecast growth rate of 2% (2015 3%) for the next three years,
and reverting to 3% (2015 3%)into perpetuity, to reflect the long term expected growth in each of the key markets
Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past experience and expectations of future changes in
the market

Determining whether goodwill, specific to the US, 1s impaired requires an estimation of the value of use of each
CGU based on the key assumptions above. The headroom of the US CGU as at 31 Decernber 2015 was $5.0m
2015, $12 7m). Neither a 0.9% decrease in the long term growth rate or a 0.6% (ncrease in the discount rate would
have led to an impairment.
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12 Other intangibie assets

Non-
contractual
refationships Backhsts Software Total
$°00C $'000 $000 $000

Cost
At 1January 2015 1.080 18,493 - 19,573
Exchange differences (55) (223} - 278)
Recognised on acquisitions (Note 30) - 1,365 - 1,365
Disposals (1.025) - - (1,025)
At 1 January 2016 - 19,635 - 19,635
Transfer 1,033 (1,033) - -
Exchange differences 28 (458> - (430)
Recognised on acquisitions (Note 30) - 2,980 - 2,980
Impairment charge for the year {1,061 - - (1,061
Transfer from property, plant & equipment - - 2,312 2,312
At 31 December 2016 _ 21124 2,312 23,436
Amaortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2015 1,080 17,537 - 18,617
Exchange differences (55) 136) - asn
Charge for the year - 724 - 724
Disposals (1,025> - - {1,025>
At 1 January 2016 - 18,125 - 18,125
Transfer 782 (782) - -
Exchange differences 22 (296) - (274)
Charge for the year 51 654 - 705
Impairment charge for the year (855) - - {855)
Transfer from Property, plant & equipment - - 1,384 1,284
At 31 December 2016 - 17,701 1384 19,085
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2016 - 3,423 928 4,351
At 31 Degember 2015 - 1,510 - 1510
At 31 December 2014 - 956 - 956
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Plant,
Leasehold Equipment &
Property Mgtor Fixtures &
Improvements Vehicles Fittings Total
$000 $000 $000 $'000

Cost
At 1 January 2015 857 4,527 984 6,368
Exchange difference (46} (335} (38 (419)
Recognised on acquisitions - 2 - 2
Additions 253 1,525 232 2,010
Dispesals (2 Q77 (58) (237)
At 1January 2016 1,062 5542 1120 7,724
Exchange difference (105> (266) (86) (457)
Recognised on acguisitions (Note 30) - 175 a5 260
Additiens 425 118 22 1,562
Impairment charge for the year (54) (2134) (56) (2,244)
Disposals (78) (1.070) (89) {1237}
Transfer to intangible assets - (2312 - (2.312)
At 31 December 2016 1250 1,050 996 3,296
Depreciation
At 1 January 2015 498 2,718 421 3637
Exchange cifferences (25) {206) {8) (239)
Charge for the year 193 825 17 1,189
Disposals - ara {54) (231
At January 2016 666 3160 530 4,356
Exchange differences {76) (158) (48) (282)
Charge for the year 188 582 210 1,080
Impairment charge for the year (48) (1.020) (32) (1100)
Disposals (77 (1,070) 84 (1,231)
Transfer to intangible assets - (1,384) - (1.384)
At 31 December 2016 653 21C 576 1439
Net book value
At 31 December 2016 597 840 420 1,857
At 31 December 2015 396 2,382 590 3,368
At 31 December 2014 359 1,809 563 273
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14 Subsidiaries

A st of the significant investments i subsidianes, including the name, country of iIncorporation and proportion of
ownership interest is given in Note 5 to the Company’s balance sheet. All of these subsidianes are included in the
consolidated results

15 Intangible Assets - Pre-publication costs

2016 2015 2014

$'000 $°000 $'000
Cost
At 1 January 151,733 17077 102,701
exchange differences (7.671) 2,217) (2,774)
Transfer from inventories - - 660
Recognised on acquisitions (Note 30) 564 2,001 102
Additicns 37165 34,872 33,525
At 31 December 181,791 151,733 134,214
Amortisation
At 1January 92.290 59,543 46,480
Exchange differences (2172) (511) (733)
Charge for the year 30,540 33,258 30,933
At 31 December 120,658 92290 76,680
Carrying Amount 61133 53,443 57534

The amortisation charge i1s included in cost of sales in the Consolidated Income Statement The assessment of the
useful ife of pre-pubhcation costs and amortisation involves a significant amount of jJudgement based on histoncal
trends. A review of useful lives took place during the year Details are included in Note 1.

16 Inventories

Restated Restated

{Ncte {Note 1)

2016 2005 2014

$'000 $'000 $'000

Frnished goods 23,655 249332 23833
Work in progress 153 1581 n4
Raw maternals 198 107 212
24,006 25191 23,859

All of the Group’s inventories have been reviewed for indicators of impairment. Certain inventones were found to be
impaired and a provision of $4,360,000 (2015, $1,649,000) has been recorded accordingly. This includes an exceptional
impairment charge of $1,630,000 n respect of Books & Gifts Direct.
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17 Trade and other receivables

2016 2015 2014

$'000 $000 $000

Trade receivables 42,259 45,475 40,225
Other recervables and prepayments 13,903 N.670 11,515
54,162 57145 51,740

The average crecht period on sales of goods 1s 70 days (2015 65 days)

The Greup's trade and other recewvables have been reviewed for indicators of impairment. Certain trade receivables,
including certain trade receivables not vet due, were not considered to be recoverable and a provision of $670,000
(2015, $908.000) has been recorded accordingly The trade receivables considered irrecoverable relate to customers
which are experiencing trading difficulties In addition, some of the recoverable trade receivables are past due as at the

reporting date The extent of financial assets past due but not iImpared 15 as follows.

2016 2015 2014

$000 $000 $'000

Less than one month 3,869 3,338 3,018
More than one month but less than two months 765 1182 783
More than two moenths but less than three months 27C 339 342
Mare than three months but less than six months 92 599 823
Mare than six months 82 72 444
5,078 5,531 5,410

The Group has not provided against these receivabies as there has not been a significant change in credit gquahty and

the Group believes they are still recoverable No collateral 1s held over these balances

Movement In allowance for doubtfui debts

2016 2015 2014

$'00C $'000 $'000

Balance at beginning of year 908 1,509 1185
On acguisition of subsidiaries - 46 -
Amounts written off in the year (682) (1,571) (434}
Amounts recovered during the year n 150 337
Exchange difference 686) (26) (16}
Increase (n allowance recognised in profit or loss 490 800 437
Balance at end of the year 670 908 1,509

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair value Trade
receivables are disclosed after deducting a reserve for sales returns The reserve Is calculated based on a time lag

between sales and returns and historical return patterns.

18 Cash and cash equivalents

2016 2015 2014

$'000 $000 $Q0Q0

Bank balances 12,824 18,274 13,375
Short term deposits 6,000 6,785 9,735
Cash and cash equivalents 18,824 25,059 2310

The carrying amount of these assets approximates to therr fair value

The effective interest rates on bank balances and short term deposits was 0.2% (2015, 0 4%)
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19 Borrowings

2016 2015 2014

$'000 $'000 $'000

Bank loans 80,748 84,562 89,150
On demand or within one year 5000 5.000 89,150
in the second year 5,000 5000 -
In the third to fifth years inclusive 70,748 74,562 -
80,748 84,562 89,150
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months (shown under current abihties) (5.000) (5,000 {89,150)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 75,748 79,562 -
Weighted Average

average time over

interest rate which

Fixed rate Vanable rate for fixed rate interest rate

Total borrowings borrowings borrowings 15 fixed

$000 $'000 $'000 % Months

US dollar borrowings 56,500 30,000 26,500 36 195
Other currency borrowings 24,248 - 24,248 - -
As at 31 December 2016 80,748 30,000 50,748 36 185
US dollar borrowings 57,000 30,000 27,000 35 85
Cther currency borrowings 27562 - 27562 - -
As pt 31 December 2015 84,562 30,000 54,562 35 185
US dollar borrowings 60,000 - 60,000 - -
Other currency borrowings 29,150 - 29150 - -
As at 31 December 2014 89,15C - 89,150 - -

The variable rate borrowings bear interest by reference to LIBOR plus a margin. At 31 December 2016, undrawn
borrowing facilities totalted $8,320,000 (2015 $16,540,000).

The Directors estimate the fair value of the Group’s borrowings to be eqgual to book value, by reference to market rates

The above barrowings carry interest based on LIBOR plus a margmn of between 2.1% and 2.8%. depending on the
leverage ratio and are secured on the assets of the Group

At 31 December 2016 the Group had a US$20m (2015 US$I5m} multi-currency syndicated bank facility which i1s due
to expire on 30 Apnl 2019

These faciliies are subject to three principal covenants

2016 2015
Consolidated net debt shall not exceed three times EBITDA 176 times 163 times
Consolidated adjusted operating profit shall exceed three times net interest payable 615 times 555 times
Cash flow shalt exceed 1 2 times Debt Service 074 times 389 times

The cashflow cover covenant test was not passed at 31 December 2016; this does not constitute a breach of the Group’s
banking facilites The agreement states that If on a quarter end test date the cashflow covenant test 1s not complied
with due to an adverse movement in working capital, then it shall not constitute a breach provided that it 1s the first
time that such non-comphance has occurred, and on the following test date, the covenant is complied with. The
seasonality of the industry means there 15 always a degree of sensitivity around the Group's working capital movements
Having identified mitigating actions which would maintain working capital headrcom i such situations, the Directors
are conhdent that the Group will comply with all financial covenants for the foreseeable future
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20 Deferred tax

2016 2015 2014
$'CCC $'000 $'000
Deferred tax liabilities
Excess of capital allowances over depreciation - UK 48 59 25 %
Other temporary differences - UK 5369 4190 4,493 ﬁ
5.417 4,249 4518 @
Other temporary differences - US 4,909 2,924 1,545 n@l
Other pverseas temporary differences 176 293 (136) 8
10,502 7.466 5927 g
Deferred tax assets
Other temporary differences - US (2,022) - 126
Net deferred taxation liability 8,480 7468 5801
The movement on the net provision for deferred taxation 15 as follows.
2016 2015 2014
$'000 $000 $000C
Net provision at | January 7,466 5,801 5,452
Acquisiions - 394 145 o
Exchange dfference through other comprehensive income 56 Q137) (305) 2
Charge/(credit) to profit and loss 1,647 1,408 509 g
Net provision at 31 December 8,480 7,466 5,801 z
0O
m

At the balance sheet date, the group had no tax losses (2015 $2.9m) availlable for offset against future profits

At the balance sheet date, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistrnibuted earnings
of subsichares for which deferred tax has not been recognised was $22.7m (2015° $20.2m). The Group has not
recognised the amount as It 1s able to control the timing of the reversal of these temporary differences and it 1s

probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future

21 Trade and other payables

Restated Restated

(Note 1) (Note 1)

2016 2015 2014

$000 $'000 $'000

Trade payables 43,423 49,856 44,047
Other payables 16,295 13,860 9,224
Total 59,718 63,716 53.27

Other payables includes contingent consideration payments and loan notes of $5 8m in respect of current year
acqguisihions. The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their fair value
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22 Risk management objectives and policies

The Group 15 exposed to market risk through its use of financial instruments and specifically to currency nsk, interest
rate risk, credit risk, hquidity nsk and certain other price risks, which result from both its operating and investing
actrvities. The Group's nsk management 1s coardinated at its headquarters, in close co-operation with the Board of
Directors, and focuses on actively securing the Group's short to medium-term cash flows by mirnimising the exposure
to financial markets

The Group does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes nor does It write options
The most significant financial risks to which the Group 1s exposed and a summary of financial assets and labilities by
category are described below,

Foreign currency sensitivity
Exposures to currency exchange rates arise from the Group's overseas sales and costs, which are primarily denominated
In Sterling

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and habihties, translated into US Dollars at the closing rate, are
as follows

2016 2015

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'C00

Sterling Other Sterling Other

Financial assets 6,691 7103 44 5,423
Financial habihbes {2,880) (6,599 (1233 (4,497
Short-term exposure 2,81 504 (79) 926

Financial habilities

Long-term exposure (21,082) (3168) - (3,265)
At 31 December (17,271 {2,664) 79 (2,339)

The following table Hustrates the sensitivity of the net result for the year and equity in regards to the Group’s financial
assets and financial habilities and the US Dollar - Sterling exchange rate

It assumes a +/- 5% change of the US-Dollar/Sterling exchange rate
The sensitivity analys1s 1s based on the Group’s foreign currency financial mstruments held at each balance sheet date

If Sterling had strengthened against the US Dollar by 5% (2015 5%) then this would have had the following impact.

2016 2015

$'C00 $'000
(Loss)/profit after tax for the year {661} 3
Equity 15 (aon

If Sterling had weakened against the US Dollar by 5% (2015 5%) then this would have had the following impact.

2016 2015

$000 $00C

{Loss)/profit after tax for the year 661 3
Equity 151 101

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the year depending on the volume of overseas transactions
Nonetheless, the analysis above 1s considered to be representative of the Group’s exposure to currency risk
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22 Risk management objectives and policies continued
interest rate sensitivity
The Group's policy 15 to minimise interest rate cash flow nsk exposures on long-term financing, through interest rate
swaps A large part of longer-term borrowings are, therefore, usually at fixed rates
At 31 December 2016, the Group 15 exposed to changes in market interest rates through its bank borrowings, which Y
are subject to vanable interest rates - see Note 19 for further information. ;,3
pali
The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the profit after tax for the year and eguity to a reasonably possible g
change in Interest rates of +/-0 25%. with effect from the beginning of the year These changes are considered to be IS}
reasonably possible based on observation of current market conditions. The calculations are based on the Group’s A
financial instruments held at each balance sheet date All other variables are held constant. 8
A O 25% increase Ininterest rates would have the following impact 3
2016 2015
$'000 $000
Profit after tax for the year (78 08)
Equity (78) (108)
A O 25% decrease in Interest rates would have the following impact:
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Profit after tax for the year 78 108
o
Equity 78 168 2
m
Cradit risk analysis z
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk 1s limited to the carrying amount of financial assets recognised at the ;
balance sheet date, as summarised below P
m
2016 2015
$000 $00C
Cash and cash equivalents 18,824 25,059
Trade receivables 42,259 45,475
Other receivables 3,249 3,250
Derivative financial instruments 141 18
64,473 73,802

The Group's credit rigk 1s primarily attnbutable to its trade recewvables. The amaunts presented in the balance sheet are
net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estirmated by the Group’s management based on prior experience and therr
assessment of the current economic environment

The Group continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties, identified either individually or by
group, and Incorporates this information into 1ts credit risk controls Where avatlable at reasonable cost, external credit
ratings and/or reports on customers and other counterparties are obtained and used. The Group’s policy is to deal only
with creditworthy counterparties

The Group's management considers that all the above financial assets that are not impaired for each of the reporting
dates under review are of good credit quality, iIncluding those that are past due

None of the Group's financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit enhancements

In respect of trade and other recervables, the Group 1s not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any
single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar characteristics, The credit risk for hquid funds and
other short-term financial assets (s imited, since the counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external
credit ratings
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22 Risk management objectives and policies continued

Liquidity risk analysis

The Group manages its iquidity needs by carefully monitoring scheduled debt servicing payments for long-term
financial habilities as well as cash-outflows due in day-to-day business Liquidity needs are monitored in various time
bands, on a day-to-day and week-to-week basis

The Group maintains cash and marketable securities to meet its liquidity requirements Funding for long-term iquidity
needs s additionally secured by an adequate amount of committed credit facilities,

The Group's habilities have contractual maturities which are summarised below.

31 December 2016 Current Non-Current
within 6 6to12 1to & Cver 5

months months years years

$'000 $000 $000 $000

Bank loans 6,294 1316 80,148 -
Trade payables 43,423 - - -
Other short term financial liabihties 16,295 - - -
Derivative financial instruments 94 - - -
Other payables - - 3,407 -
66,106 1.316 83,555 -

31 December 2015 {restated) Current Non-Current
within 6 6te12 1to5 Over 5

months months years years

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Bank loans 5,016 - 87,696 -
Trade payables 49,856 - - -
Other short term financial labilities 13,860 - - -
Derivative financial instruments 10 - - -
Other payables - - 99 -
68,742 - 87,795 -
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22 Risk management objectives and policies continued

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and habtlities as recogrused at the balance sheet date of the
reporting periods under review may also be categorised as follows See Note 1, significant accounting policies, covering
financial assets, financial labilities and derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting for explanations about
how the category of instruments affects their subsequent measurement

Restated
(Note 1)
2016 2015
$'000 $'C00
Current assets
Derwvative financial instruments carried at fair value through profit and loss
- Forward exchange contract - 18
Derivative financial instruments designated as hedging instruments
- Interest rate swap 141 -
Loans and receivables:
- Trade receivables 42,259 45,475
Other recevables 3.249 3,250
- Cash and cash equrvalents 18,824 25,059
64,473 73,802
Non-current liabilities
Financial habilities measured at amortised cost
- Borrowings 75,748 79,562
Other payables 3,407 99
79155 79,661
Current liabilities
Derivative financial instruments carried at far value through profit and loss
- Forward exchange contract 94 -
Derwvative financial instruments designated as hedging instruments:
- Interest rate swap - 10
Financial habilities measured at amortised cost
- Borrowings 5,000 5,000
- Trade payables 43,423 49,856
Cther payables 16,295 13,860
64,812 68,726

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as going concerns while
maximising the return to shareholders through an optimal balance of debt and equity. The capital structure of the Group
consists of debt, which includes the borrowings (Note 19), cash and cash equivalents (Note 18) and equity attributable
to equity holders of the parent (Notes 24 and 25), comprising share capital and reserves as disclosed in the
consoltdated statement of changes in equity on page 81

The Board reviews the caprtal structure, including the level of iIndebtedness and interest cover, as required The Board's
cbhjective 1s to maintain the optimal level of indebtedness and manage interest cover to comply with the covenant
requirements set out in Note 19 As part of this review, the Board considers the cost of capital and the nsks associated
with each class of capital. Details of the level of indebtedness, in the form of net debt to EBITDA, and interest cover are
given in Note 19, including a comparison with the covenants under the Group’s financing facilities.
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23 Other Financial Assets/Liabilities
In the reporting periods under review, other financial assets/liabihties comprise denvative financial instruments as follows

2016 2015 2014

$'000 $'000 $'000
Current financial assets
Dervative financial assets - forward exchange contracts - 18 -
Derwative financial instruments - interest rate swaps 141 - -
Total 141 18 -
Current financial liabilities
Derwative financal habilities - forward exchange contracts o4y - B7)
Derivative financial instruments - interest rate swaps - o) -
Total (94 (10) (67

The Group's activities expose it primanly to the financial risks of changes in foraign currency exchange rates and interest rates
The Group uses exchange rate swaps to hedge exchange rate exposures and interest rate swap contracts to hedge the interest
rate exposures The Group does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes All interest rate swaps have
been designated as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges in accordance with 1AS 39

The Greup's interest rate swaps have been designated to match the corresponding loan terms to maximise the effectiveness of
the hedging mstrument, There was no ineffectiveness during the year and all movements were recorded in other comprehensive
income, with amounts reclassified to finance costs within profit or loss Exchange rate swaps are not treated as hedging
instruments for hedge accounting purposes.

The foilowing table details the principal amounts and the remaining terms of interest rate swap contracts ocutstanding at the
reporting date

2016 2015 2014 206 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014
% % % %000 $'000 $C00 $'000 $000 $'000

Within one year 28 K - 10,000 10,000 - (75> (134> (3173
within one to two years 3 35 - 10,000 16,000 - (505) (384> -
Within two to five years 27 38 - 10,00C 10,000 - (714) (674) -

30,000 30000

(1.394) (1192) (317)

24 Share Capital

2016 2015 2014
$'0C0 $'000C $'000

Authorised
28 milhon shares (2015 28 million shares) of common stock of par value 2,800 2,800 2,800

of US$0 10 each
Allotted, called up and fully paid

20,444,550 (2014: 20,444, 550) shares of common stock of par value 2,045 2,045 2,045
of US$0 10 each

The Company has one class of common stock which carries no rnight to fixed income
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25 Retained earnings and other reserves

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging
instruments related to hedged transactions

Translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises all foretgn exchange differences ansing from the translation of the closing balance
sheats of foreign operations of the Group and the results of foreign operations of the Group since 1 January 2004,

Treasury stock

Treasury stock represents the Group's purchase of its own shares During the year, 666,666 of the treasury stock was
used to settle the obligations under the 2014 PSP plan and the remainder was sold. At 31 December 2015, the Group
owned 747,821 shares, representing 3.7% of its shares of commeon stock.

26 Dividends

2016 2015 2014

$000 $'000 $000
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period Interim 1049 1,010 1,089
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 of 513¢/3 35p (2015, 5 13¢/3 35p)
per share
Final dividend for the year ended 31 Decernber 2015 of 8 17¢/4 95p (2014, 1.853 1492 1,478
8 17¢/4.95p) per share

2,902 2,502 2,567
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 of 9 87¢/7.95p 2,018 1,853 1,521

(2015 9.41¢/6.15p) per share

The Quarto Group, Inc, as a US incorporated company, 1s required to collect US dividend withholding taxes on dividend
distributions made to its non-US shareholders The US dividend withholding tax i1s generally 30% of any dividends paid
to Quarto's non-US shareholders, but this amount can potentially be reduced pursuant to an applicable income tax
treaty between the US and the country of residence of the non-US shareholder

For gxample, under the US/UK income tax treaty, the US dividend withholding tax rate can range from nil (applicable
to certain UK resident pension trusts and tax exempt entities) to 15% (applicable to UK resident individual shareholders
and certain UK corporate shareholders) For US shareholders, no US dividend withholding tax is generally applcable

It should be noted that certain documentation reguirerments must be met by all shareholders prior to the payment of
any dividends to certify their status as a US or non-US shareholder, and, if 2 non-US shareholder to ¢claim any apphcable
benefits under the US/ UK or other applicable income tax treaty Each shareholder should consult their own tax adviser
to determine whether and to what extent they may be entitled to claim a reduced amount of US dividend withholding
taxes under a US income tax treaty.

27 Notes to the cash flow statement
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits Cash equivalents are short-term highly hguid investments that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to mnsignificant changes in value
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28 Share based payments
Performance Share Plan (‘PSP?)
The Company operates a PSP scheme that awards free shares

2014 award

The awards under this scheme were granted on 22 May 2014 and vest on 30 June 2016 Vesting 1s conditional on
the average share price being equal to or greater than £2 50 over any consecutive period of 90 days during the
performance period, adjusted for dividends and other cash distributions paid, where the rimmum value of such
drvidends and other cash distributions paid i1s no less than £2.25p per share Participants are entitled to receive
dividend equivalents over the vesting penod of the awards, which are pavable on vesting

For the vear ended 31 December 2014 the awards under this scheme were valued at $nil as the performance critena
were not expected to be met

During the year ended 31 December 2015 the performance criteria was amended such that vesting 1s only conditional
on the average share price being equal to or greater than £2 50 over any consecutive perniod of 90 days during the
performance penocd Following this change, the fair value of the award was reassessed at $226,000.

This award was exercised on 9 August 2016 by the Chief Executive Officer Marcus Leaver Full details are set out In the
Remuneration Report on page 55 The share price on 9 August 2016 was £2 64.

2016 2015

Number Number

Outstanding at beginning of the year 666,666 666,666
Exercised during the perniod (66E,666) -
Outstanding at the end of the year - 666,666
Share price at date of grant £170
Expected ife (years) 21
Falr value per award £0 23
Weighted average remaining contractual life 050
Dwvidend yreld n/a
Expected volatiity of share price (%) 166
Model used Monte-Carlo

2015 award
The awards under this scheme were granted on 24 September 2015. The vesting penod is four years from the date
of grant The award vests in the following proportion,

* 50% is conditional on the cumulative growth in Adjusted Diluted EPS being between 5% and 10% over the
performance period, resulting in the awards vesting on a shding scale of 20% to 100%; and

+ 50% i1s conditional on Total Shareholder Return being between 7% and 15%, resulting in vesting on a sliding scale
of 20% to 100%

Participants are not entitled to receive dividends until awards have vested

Detalls of the share options outstanding during the year are as follows

2016 2015

Number Number

Qutstanding at beginning of the year 143,732 -
Granted during the year 83,732 143,732
Outstanding at the end of the year 227464 143,732
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28 Share based payments continued
The key inputs used to value the options are

EPS Portion TSR Portion

Share price at date of grant £209 £209
Expected Iife (years) 40 40
Fair value per award £178 £1.07
Weighted average remaining contractual life (years) 30 30
Dividend yield (%) 3.97 397
Expected velatiity of share price {%) n/a 19
Model used Dividend discount Monte-Carle
2016 award

The awards under this scheme were granted on 19 April 2016 The vesting penod 1s four years from the date of grant
The award vests In the following proportion

+ 50% s conditional on the cumulative growth in Adjusted Diluted EPS being between 5% and 10% over the
performance perod, resulting in the awards vesting on a shiding scale of 20% to 100%, and

*» 50% s conditional on Total Shareholder Return being between 7% and 15%, resulting in vesting on a slichng scale
of 20% to 100%

Participants are not entitled to receive dividends until awards have vested

Detalls of the share options cutstanding during the year are as follows

2016

Number

Outstanding at beginning of the year -
Granted during the year 366,728
Qutstanding at the end of the year 366,728

The key inputs used to value the options are.
EPS Portion TSR Porticn

Share price at date of grant £2 45 £2 45
Expected life (years) 40 40
Fair value per award £210 £0.44
Weighted average remaining contractual hfe (years) 33 3.3
Dividend yield (%) 3.88 3.88
Expected volatihty of share price (%) n/a 181
Model used Dividend discount  Monte-Carlo
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29 Operating lease commitments

2016 2015
$'0CO $000
Lease payments under operating leases recognised in income for the year 2,264 2153

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows

2016 2015

%'000 $000

Minimum lease payments under operating leases within one year 1,679 1,915
In the second to fifth years inclusive 4,805 2,836
After more than five years 4,427 2,399
10,91 8150

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group, pnmarily for its office properties There were no
capital commitments amounting at the year end (2015 $rl)

30 Acquisitions

becker&mayer

Cn 8 August 2016, the Group acquired the publishing business and net assets of becker&mayer LLC ('becker&mayer')
through its US subsidiary Quarto Publishing Group USA Inc, for a consideration of $9.8m, together with a working
capital adjustment payment capped at $10m and further deferred contingent consideration of up to $1.0m.
Constderation of $2 3m was paid on completion A further $2.5m was paid in January 2017 and the remaining balance
is payable \n separate tranches over the next three years. The fair value of the deferred contingent consideration was
estimated based on the Group's expectation of the future performance of the business, discounted to reflect the timing
of the expected payments

If the acquisition had been completed on the first day of the financial year, Group revenue for the year would have
been $197.9m and Group loss for the year would have been $6 Im The revenue and operating profit of becker&mayer
since the date of acquisition included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive iIncome are $11.4m and $19m
respectively.

Harvard Common Press

On 1 February 2016, the Group acquired selected assets of the publishing business of The Harvard Common Press
through its US subsidiary Quarto Publishing Group USA Inc, for a consideration of $1.0m. Of the consideration $0.1m
was paid during the year ended 31 December 2015, a further $0.1m was paid on completion of the acquisition and
$0.4m was paid in July 2016. The final payment of $0 4m was made in January 2017

The revenue and operating profit of The Harvard Common Press since the date of acquisition included the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income 1s $1.3m and $0C 4m respectively. There would be no difference in these results had
the acquisition completed on the first day of the financial year

These companies were acquired because of their strategic fit within the Group. The transaction costs of $191.000 were
incurred In relation to the acquisition The transactions have been accounted for under the acguisition method The
goodwill arising on these acquisitions is largely attributable to the anticipated incremental sales and cost synergies
achievable as part of The Quarto Group and 1s expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Burgess Lea Press
On 25 May 2016, the Group acquired the publishing business of Burgess Lea Press and recognised intangible backlist

assets of $128,000

12
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30 Acquisitions continued

The fair value of acquired assets and habilities 15 summansed below.

Harvard
becker&mayer Common Press
Fair values Farr values
$'000 $'000
Intangible assets - pre-publication costs 564 -
Other intangible assets - backlists 2,415 436
Property, plant and equipment 259 -
Inventories 2,461 297
Trade and cther receivables 6,340 79
Trade and other payables (3,225) (551)
Net assets acquired 8814 261
Goodwill 2,332 773
Total consideration paid (including deferred consideration) 1146 1034
Net cash cutflow arising on acauisition
Satisfied by
Cash 2,300 230
Loan notes 7.319 804
Contingent consideration arrangements 1527 -
Total n146 1034
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition
Cash consideration 2,300 502

The goodwill for becker&mayer Is provisional using an estimate of fair value and will be reviewed and adjusted in the

next eight months as necessary

31 Subsequent events

On 30 March 2017, the Group completed the cisposal of its 75% mterest in Regent Pubhishing Services Ltd. its Hong
Kong based publishing services business The consideration for the disposal was $7 0m including a payment of $2.5m
(HK$19.5m) for the group’s share of the excess cash in the business, payable in cash on completion The business was
sold to 1010 Printing Group Ltd, 2 Hong Kong based printing business listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange The
consideration will be used to reduce the Group's net debt For the 12 months ended 31 December 2016, Regent
Publishing Services Ltd recorded a profit before tax of $16m and had net assets of $6 6m

On 3 Apnl 2017, the Group completed the disposal of BGD Australia which has been acquired by Zooom Pty Limited (as
trustee for the Zooom Investment Trust), a company Incorporated in Austraba and formed for the purposes of acguiring
the business by a group comprising certan of the master franchisees and former employees of the business (n Australia
The consideration for the sale of the company was A$1 and Quarto will also take an assignment of certain debts owed
by the master franchisees to BGD Australia of A$1 9m (US$1.4m) which are repayabte in monthly instalments over two
years and are interest bearing The repayments will be used to reduce the Group’s bank debt as they are received.
Quarto 15 entitled to receive 10% of the profit before interest and tax of Zooom Pty Limited for the next five years.
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

32 Alternative performance measures
The Group uses alternative performance measures tc explamn and judge its performance

Adjusted operating profit 1s operating profit excluding amortisation of acquired intangibles and exceptional items The
Directors consider this to be a useful measure of the Group operating performance asH it approximates the underlying operating
cash flow.

Exceptional items are those which the Company defines as significant non-recurring items outside the scope of normal
business that need to be disciosed by virtue of their size or incidence in order for the user to obtain a proper understanding
of the financal Infermation

Backlist % of sales refers to book titles that were published in previous calendar years and i1s a key measure of the performance
of our intellectual property assets.

Intellectual property deveiopment spend refers to the amounts spent annually on the creation and publication of bock titles
against which we monitor subsequent sales (see Note 15)

Inventory % of revenue 1s the book value of inventery divided by total revenue for the year Inventory turn 15 cost of sales
divided by book vaiue of inventory and measures the number of times inventory is sold through the business in a year

Product efficiency 15 the ratioc of new title revenue to intellectual property spend i the previous year and 1s an indicator
of the reliability of our back list sales

Return on net operating assets 1s the ratio of adjusted operating profit to net operating assets and 1s used to evaluate
the long term ftnancial performance of the Group,

n4
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32 Alternative performance measures continued

Restated
(Note 1)
2016 2015
$00C $'000
Adjusted Operating Profit
Operating profit 1,659 15,306
Add back - Amortisation of acquired intangibles 705 724
- Other exceptional items {(Note 53 6,397 445
Adjusted operating profit 8,761 16,475
Add/(deduct): Books & Gifts Direct operating (loss)/profit 9,817 (882)
Adjusted operating profit (excluding Books & Gifts Direct) 18,578 15,593
EBITDA
Adjusted profit before tax (before amortisation of acquired intangibles and exceptional items) 13,813 13,377
Net interest 2,945 3,098
Depreciaticn 1,080 1,189
EBITDA, before exceptional items 17838 17,664
Amaortisation of pre-publication costs 17,244 18,184
EBITDA (a5 defined in the committed facility agreement) 35082 35,848
Net debt
Short term borrawings 5,000 5,000
Mediurn and long term borrowings 75,748 79,562
Cash and cash equivalents (18,824) (25,059
61,924 58,503
Net operating assets
Net assets 441M 53,444
Unallocated segment assets (20,987 (25,077)
Unallocated segment habilities 95,405 94,587
N8,529 122,954
Return on net operating assets 7.4% 13.4%
Adjusted dividend cover (excluding BGD)
Adjusted basic earnings per share {cents) 547 460
Total dividend for the year (cents) 150 145
Dudend caver (times) i 32
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

2016 2015
Notes $'000 $000
Fixed Assets
Investments 4 4,080 B444
4,080 8444
Cuwrrent liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 6 (21962) (20,992)
(21.962) (20,992)
Net liabilities (17.882) (12,548)
Equity
Called up share capitai 7 2,045 2,045
Treasury stock - (634>
Reserves - Paid in surplus 33764 13764
- Profit and loss (53.691) (47,723)
Total equity 17.882) (12,548)

The Company reported a loss for the year of $4 4m (2015. $3 8m)

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for 1ssue on 19 April 20717
They were signed on its behalf by

r Z"‘,

Marcus E. Leaver
Director
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Equity
Paid in Treasury Retained attributable
Share capital surplus stock earnings to owners
$000 $000 $'000 $000 $:000
Balance at 1 January 2015 2,045 33,764 (634) (42,680) (7,505}
Loss for the year - - - {3,802) (3,802)
Other comprehensive income
Forewgn exchange transiation differences - - - 1,075 1,075
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 1,075 1.075
Transactions with owners
Dividends to shareholders - - - (2,502} {2,502)
Share based payments charges - - - 186 185
Balance at 31 December 2015 2,045 33,764 (634) (47,723) (12,548)
Loss for the year - - - (4,428) (4,428}
Other comprehensive income
Foreign exchange translation differences - - - 2,265 2,265
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 2,265 2,265
Transactions with owners
Dwidends to shareholders - - - (2,902) (2,902)
Share based payments charges - - - 256 256
Shares released/scld from treasury - - 634 (1159) (525
Balance at 31 December 2016 2,045 33,764 - (53,692) (17,882)

nz
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

1 Basis of preparation

The separate financial statements of the Company are presented and have been prepared in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standard 102 (FRS 102} 1ssued by the Financial Reporting Council These financial statements present
information for the Company, not about 1ts Group, which I1s presented on pages 78 to 115

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards and under the
historical cost accounting rules modified to include certain items as fair value and in accordance with FRS 102 The
financial statements have been prepared using the going concern basis, as discussed 1n the Group gomg concern
disclosure on page 84

2 Accounting policies

The following accounting policies have been applhed consistently in dealing with iterns which are considered matenal
in relation to the financial statements The functional currency of the company 1s Pounds Sterling, with the parent
company accounts presented in US Dollars

Investments
Investments in subsicharnes are stated at cost less, where appropnate, provisions for imparrment

Creditors
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings are initially recognised at fair value, and subseguently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method

Share-based payments

The Group 1ssues equity settled share-based payments to certain employees Equity settled share-based payments are
measured at fair value at the date of grant The fair value, deterrmined at the grant date, of equity settled share-based
payments 1s expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of shares that will
eventually vest The fair value of employee share option grants is calculated using a Monte Carlo model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted The value of the charge 1s adjusted to reflect
expected and actual levels of options vesting. Further detail 1s set out in Note 28.

Cash and cash equivalents
There were no cash transactions during the year and accordingly no cash flow statement has been presented

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated In foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at the
exchange rate ruling at that date with any exchange differences anising on retranslation being recognised in the income
statement The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including gocdwill and fair value adjustments arising on
consolidation, are translated into US Dollars at exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The revenues and
expenses of forelgn operations are translated into US Dollars at average annual exchange rates Foreign exchange
differences arising on retranslation are charged or credited to other comprehensive income and are recognised in the
currency translation reserve in equity On disposal of a foreign operation, the related cumulative translation differences
recognised in equity are reclassified to profit or loss and are recognised as part of the gain or foss on disposal.

Financial guarantee contracts

Where the Company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within
its group, the Company considers these to be insurance arrangements, and accounts for them as such In this respect,
the Company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent hability until such time as it becomes probable that the
Company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee

3 Loss attributable to the Company

The loss for the financial year dealt with in the financial statements of the parent company was $4 4m (2015 $3 8m)
No separate profit and loss account 1s presented in respect of the parent company as permitted by section 408 of the
Companies Act 20086.
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4 Investments
2016 2015
$000 $000
At 1January 8,444 12,060 ”
Amounts wntten off during year (4,364) (3.616) -
At 31 December 4,080 8,444 ﬁ
9]
The write-off Iin the year relates to the Company’s investment in Books & Gifts Directly Limited, a New Zealand company 0
by,
5 Subsidiaries e
a) Trading companies %
=
Incorporation
Registered Issued and fully paid
Name Place Date address keyt up share capital % held Segment
Books & Gifts Austraha 3 December 1890 D 100,004 shares 10C Books & Gifts Direct,
Direct (Pty} Limited of A%l each ANZ
Books & Gifts New Zealanc 27 September 1996 C 400,000 shares 100**  Books & Gifts Direct,
Direct Limited of NZ$1 each ANZ
Quarto Publishing  United Kingdom 1 April 1976 A 100,000 shares 100*  Quarte International
plc of £1 each Co-Editions Group
Quarto, Inc. Delaware, USA 16 October 1986 B 86 shares 100" Quarto International o
of no par value Co-Editions Group e
RotoVision S A. Switzerland 18 July 1977 F 1,500 shares 100 Quarto International %
of SFr500 each Co-Editions Group £
Global Book Austraha 4 November 1899 D 1,000 shares 0o Quarto International (23
Publishing Pty. of A$1 each Co-Editions Group m
Limited
Appie Press United Kingdem 5 June 1984 A 100 shares 100 Quarto International
Limited of £1each Co-Editions Group
Small World United Kingdom 20 September 1997 A 1,536 share 100 Quarto Internaticnal
Creations Limited of £1 each Co-Editions Group
Lewes Holdings United Kingdom 21 July 2005 A 20,840 shares 100 Quarto International
Limited of £0 01 each Co-Editions Group
Aurum Press United Kingdom 31 May 1977 A 382,502 shares 100 Quarto Publishing
Limited of £1each Group UK
Quarto (JS) LLP United Kingdom 6 Novemnber 1998 A 100 units 100 Quarto Publishing
Group UK
Frances Lincoln United Kingdom 15 December 1880 A 565,000 shares 100 Quarto Publshing
Limited of 10p each Group UK
Quarte Australia Austraha 14 September 1981 D 110 shares 100 Quarto Internationat
{Pty) Limited of A$1each Co-Editions Group
Quarte Publishing  Delaware, USA 28 June 2004 =) 280 shares 100 Quarto Publishing
Group USA Inc. of US$0.01 each Group USA
Regent Publishing Hong Keng 23 October 1985 E 1,000 shares 754 Quarto HK
Services Limited of HK$10 each

t  Ses Note 5¢ on page 120
*  Directly held by The Quarto Group, Inc
# The shares held in this company were sold after the year end See Note 30 for further details
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2016 CONTINUED

S Subsidiaries continued
b) Dormant companies
Incorporation

Registered

Name Place Date address keyt \ssued share capital % held
AP Screen Printers Limited United Kingdom 30 September 1980 A 1,000 shares of £1each 100
Cartographica Press Limited United Kingdom 27 July 1981 A 1,000 shares of £1 each 160
Design Eye Holdings Limited United Kingdom 22 June 1992 A 200 shares of £1each 100
Design Eye Limited United Kingdom 18 March 1988 A 00 shares of £1each 100
Design Eye Publishing Limited United Kingdom 17 June 1992 A 2 shares of £1 each 1c0
Fine Wine Editions Limnited United Kingdom 23 June 1949 A 9,020 shares of £1each 100
Frances Lincoln Publishers Lirmted  United Kingdorn 11 March 1387 A 100 shares of £1 each 100
Great American Trading Company  United Kingdom 24 February 1982 A 100 shares of £1 each 100
Limited (THE)

Global Book Pubiishing Pty Limited  United Kingdom 7 July 1986 A 1,000 shares of £1each 100
IQON Editions Limited United Kingdom S December 1972 A 300 shares of £1 each 10C
iqu-cigital com Limited United Kingdom 30 November 1878 A 100 shares of £1 each 100
JR Books Limited United Kingdom 3 September 1986 A 43,004 shares of £1each 100
Marshall Editions Lirmited United Kingdom 7 February 2002 A 1shares of £1 each 100
Marshall Publishing Limited United Kingdom 7 February 2002 A 1shares of £1 each 100
Quarto Magazines Limited United Kingdom 20 May 1986 A 1,000 shares of £1each 100
Quarto Children’s Books Limited United Kingdom € January 1976 A 2 shares of £1 each 100
QED Pubhshing Limited United Kingdem 12 November 1974 A 400 shares of £1 each 100
Quantum Books Limited Unnted Kingdom 7 February 1983 A 100 shares of £1each 100
Quarte Multi-Media Limited United Kingdom 14 December 1984 A 1,000 shares of £1each 100
QU:ID Pubhshing Limited United Kingdom 30 September 1980 A 100 shares of £1 each 100
Quill Publishing Lirmited United Kingdoerm 14 May 1979 A 1,000 shares of £1 each 100
Quintessence Editions Limited United Kingdom 7 February 2002 A 1 shares of £1 each 100
Quintet Publishing Limited United Kingdom 14 May 1979 A 100 shares of £1 each 10C
QEB Publishing Limited Delaware, USA 27 April 2004 B 1,500 shares 100

of no par value
Quartc Media Inc Delaware, USA 10 December 2010 B 1,000 shares of §1each 100
Quarto Marketing Inc Delaware, USA 26 Apnl 1995 B 3,000 shares 100
of nc par value
EYE Quarto inc Delaware, USA 19 December 2002 B 1,000 shares 100

of no par value

*  See Note 5c below

c) List of registered offices

The Old Brewery, 6 Blundell Street, London, N7 9BH, United Kingdom
400 First Avenue North, Minneapols, MN 55401, USA

135b Mornn Read, Saint Johns, Auckland, 1072, New Zealand
c/o ZM Partners, Suite 1C Ground Floor, 123 Clarence Street, Sydney, NSw 20C0, Australia
Unit B & C, 7th Floor, Genisi, No. 33-35 wong Chuk Hand Road, Hong Kong
Passage Perdonet 1, 1005 Lausanne, Switzerland

TmMmoO o>
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6 Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

2016 2015
$'0C0 $'000
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 21,962 20,992

7 Called up share capital and treasury stock
Detalls of called up share capital and treasury stock are set out in Notes 24 to 25 of the consolidated
financial statements.

8 Contingent liabilities
The Quarto Group, Inc has 1ssued guarantees in respect of bank loans of subsidiaries of $80,748.000 (2015
$84,562,000) Refer to Note 19 of the consoldated financial statements

9 Related parties

The company borrowed an amount of $3,236,000 from its wholly owned subsidiary, Quarto Publishing plc, during
the year (2015 $2,511,000 borrowed in the year) The balance on the loan at 31 December 2016 was $15,471,000
(2015 $14,995,000) These balances are non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

i)
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

2016 2015* 2014* 2013*% 2002
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $000
Results
Revenue 188,434 182,165 171,339 175.481 180,632
Operating profit before amortisation of acquired 8,761 16,475 14,927 14,565 14,986
intangibles and exceptional items
Operating profit 1,659 15,306 14,990 10,726 12,962
Profit before tax, amortisation of acquired intangible 5816 13,377 10,950 9,294 9,034
assets and exceptional items
{Loss)/profit before tax (1,286) 12,208 n.013 5,455 7,010
{Loss)/profit after tax (5.277 8,623 809 3,761 5024
Assets employed
Non-current assets 105,507 104,433 102,416 102,364 106,537
Current assets 87133 107,413 98,709 97,907 106,157
Current habihties (68.872) (71.275) (144,918) (70,485} (670023
Nen-current habilities (89,657) (871273 (6,464) (83,776 (98,019)
Net assets 44Mm 53,444 43,743 46,010 47673
Financed by
Equity 39,219 48,285 44,802 41,201 40,726
Non-controlling interests 4,892 5159 4,841 4,809 6,947
44,11 53,444 49,743 48,010 47673
Earnings per share (cents)
Basic (285) 413 395 170 239
Diluted (285) 412 395 17.0 239
Adjusted basic 57 46.2 391 361 16
Adjusted diluted 56 461 391 361 4.6

* Restated as per Note 1

# The 2014 closing balance sheet restatement was ail corrected through the 2014 resuits as it was impractical to determine the impact on
these earher individual financial years and 1t 1s not expected to result in a material change to these years
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